
 
 

 
 
 

 

 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING 

THURSDAY, AUGUST 9, 2012 

CLOSED SESSION – 6:00 PM 

CITY MANAGER’S OFFICE  

An announcement regarding the items to be discussed in Closed Session will be made in the 
City Hall Council Chambers prior to the Closed Session.  Members of the public may, at this 
time, address the City Council on closed session items only. 
 

 

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION  
Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to subdivision (b) of GC §54956.9: Three cases:  

1. City of Capitola Insurance Coverage Claim Against Lexington Insurance  
(Noble Gulch Storm Drain Failure); 

2. Pacific Cove Mobile Home Park Pipe Failure and Closure; 
3. Consideration of lawsuit against the Department of Finance – Disputed Recognized 

Obligations of the Successor Agency.

 
CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION (Govt. Code §54956.9) 

1. Kevin Calvert, D.D.S. and Pamela Calvert vs. City of Capitola, et al. [Superior Court 
of the State of California for County of Santa Cruz, Case #CV 172804]; 

2. Katie Saldana vs. City of Capitola, et al. [Superior Court of the State of California for 
the County of Santa Cruz, Case #CV 172324]; 

3. Foremost Insurance Company vs. the City of Capitola, et al. [Superior Court of the 
State of California for the County of Santa Cruz, Case #CV 173228]; 

4. Truck Insurance vs. the City of Capitola, et al. [Superior Court of the State of 
California for the County of Santa Cruz, Case #CV173071]; 

5. David Ross; Carousel Taffy Morro Bay, Inc.; Village Mouse dba; The Thomas 
Kinkade Gallery Capitola; Judith Ferro vs. the City of Capitola, et al. [Superior Court 
of the State of California for the County of Santa Cruz, Case #CV 173642]; 

6. American Alternative Insurance Corporation; Central Fire Protection District of Santa 
Cruz County vs. the City of Capitola, et al. [Superior Court of the State of California 
for the County of Santa Cruz, Case #CV173926]. 

CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR (Govt. Code §54957.6) 
Negotiator: Jamie Goldstein, City Manager 
Employee Organizations: Capitola Police Officers Association; and the Association 
of Capitola Employees. 

 
  

Mayor:      Michael Termini 
Vice Mayor:           Stephanie Harlan 
Council Members: Kirby Nicol 

    Dennis Norton 
    Sam Storey 

Treasurer      Jacques Bertrand 

City of Capitola Agenda 



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 9, 2012  2 
  

REGULAR MEETING OF THE CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL – 7:00 PM 

 
1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Council Members Stephanie Harlan, Dennis Norton, Kirby Nicol, Sam Storey, and Mayor 
Michael Termini 

2. PRESENTATIONS 

Proclamation honoring Patti Wakefield for 22 Years of Service 

3. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION  

4. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO AGENDA 

5. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Oral Communications allows time for members of the Public to address the City Council on any 
item not on the Agenda.  Presentations will be limited to three minutes per speaker.   Individuals 
may not speak more than once during Oral Communications.  All speakers must address the 
entire legislative body and will not be permitted to engage in dialogue. All speakers are requested 
to print their name on the sign-in sheet located at the podium so that their name may be 
accurately recorded in the minutes.  A MAXIMUM of 30 MINUTES is set aside for Oral 
Communications at this time. 

6. COUNCIL/STAFF ANNOUNCEMENTS 

7. COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS 

ALL MATTERS LISTED ON THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA SHALL BE CONSIDERED AS PUBLIC HEARINGS. 

8.  CONSENT CALENDAR 

All items listed in the “Consent Calendar” will be enacted by one motion in the form listed below.  
There will be no separate discussion on these items prior to the time the Council votes on the 
action unless members of the public or the City Council request specific items to be discussed for 
separate review.  Items pulled for separate discussion will be considered following General 
Government. 

Note that all Ordinances and Resolutions which appear on the public agenda shall be determined 
to have been read by title and further reading waived. 
 

 A.  Approve City Council Minutes of the May 31, 2012 Special Joint Study Session of 
the Capitola City Council and the Successor Agency to the former Redevelopment 
Agency. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Minutes. 
 

 B.  Consideration of awarding a contract to Graham Contractors of San Jose for the 
construction of the 2012 Capitola Slurry Seal Program in the amount of $91,674.48, 
and authorizing the City Manager to sign the contract on behalf of the City. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve contract and authorize the City Manager to 
execute the contract. 
 

 C.  Consideration of approving the Memorandum of Understanding with the Capitola 
Police Officers bargaining unit. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the Memorandum of Understanding. 
 

 
 
 



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 9, 2012  3 
  
8. CONSENT CALENDAR (continued) 

 D.  Consideration of approving an Early Retirement Contract with Patricia Wakefield 
and authorize the City Manager to execute the contract. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  
1. That City Council direct the City Manager to execute the proposed Early 

Retirement Agreement with Patricia Wakefield on behalf of the City;  
2. Amend the FY12/13 Budget by transferring $39,000 from the City Managers 

Salary & Benefits budget to the Compensated Absences Fund, and 
3. Authorize the City Manager to fill the vacant position up to 75% time. 

 
 E.  Consideration of approving a request to proceed with recruitment for a vacancy on 

the City’s Commission on the Environment.  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve request.  
 

 F.  Receive Planning Commission Action Minutes for the Regular Meeting of August 2, 
2012. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive Minutes. 
 

 G.  Consideration of Resolutions of the City Council of the City of Capitola authorizing 
submittal to the California Coastal Commission for the certification of an 
amendment to the Local Coastal Program pertaining to single room occupancy 
parking requirement and emergency shelters. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Resolutions. 
  

9. GENERAL GOVERNMENT/PUBLIC HEARINGS 

General Government items are intended to provide an opportunity for public discussion of each 
item listed.  The following procedure is followed for each General Government item:  1) Staff 
explanation; 2) Council questions; 3) Public comment; 4) Council deliberation;  
5) Decision. 

 A.  Consideration of a Resolution placing a Visitor Service Fee (Transient Occupancy 
Tax – TOT) Measure on the November 6, 2012 Presidential General Election ballot to 
increase the TOT from 10% to a higher figure; authorizing certain Council Members 
to file written arguments for or against the City Measure and filing of rebuttal 
arguments for the City Measure; and approve timeline for filing Arguments/Rebuttals 
for the City Measure. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Council discretion to: 
1. Adopt a Resolution amending the submission to the qualified electors of the City 

of Capitola by adding a question of a certain measure relating to Visitor Services 
Fee (Transient Occupancy Tax) at the Consolidated General Presidential Election 
on Tuesday, November 6, 2012, as called by Resolution No. 3912; and 

2. Adopt a Resolution authorizing certain Council Members, or any member or 
members of the City Council, or any individual voter who is eligible to vote on the 
measure, or bona fide association of citizens, or any combination of voters and 
associations to file written arguments for or against the City Measure and filing of 
rebuttal arguments for the City Measure; and 

3. Provide direction to the City Manager regarding whether a Resolution of Intent 
regarding the use of revenue should be prepared; and 

4. Approve the revised timeline for filing arguments/rebuttals for the City Measure for 
submitting the impartial analysis, arguments for and against, and rebuttals to the 
arguments. 
 

 
 



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 9, 2012  4 
  
 
9. GENERAL GOVERNMENT/PUBLIC HEARINGS (continued) 

 B.  Discussion regarding Lower Pacific Cove Parking Lot Project financing and project 
description. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  

1. Approve the preliminary project description for the Lower Pacific Cove Parking 
Lot Project; 

2. Authorize the release of a request for proposals for engineering and design 
services; 

3. Authorize staff to initiate environmental review of the proposed project; 
4. Approve a Resolution authorizing the advance of funds to pay $75,000 in 

preliminary project costs prior to receiving debt funding. 
 

 C.  Consideration of a Resolution adopting the Fiscal Year 2012/2013 through the Fiscal 
Year 2016/2017 City of Capitola Capital Improvement Program, and directing the 
finance department to enter the Fiscal Year 2012/2013 funding into the current fiscal 
year budget. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Resolution amending the Fiscal Year 2012/2013 
budget. 
 

 D  Consideration of an amendment to Section 12.56.090 (Right-of-way obstructions) of 
the Capitola Municipal Code pertaining to the removal of items from public property 
[1st Reading].  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Introduce Ordinance. 
 

 
AT THIS POINT, ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT CALENDAR WILL BE CONSIDERED

 
10. COUNCIL/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 

 

A. Staff Comments 
 

B. City Council/Treasurer Comments/Committee Reports 

City Council Members /City Treasurer may comment on matters of a general nature or identify 
issues for staff response or future council consideration. Council Members/Committee 
Representatives may present oral updates from standing committees at this time. 

 

11. ADJOURNMENT 

Adjourn to the next Regular Meeting of the City Council to be held on Thursday, September 13, at 
7:00 p.m., in the City Hall Council Chambers, 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, California. 

 
Note:  Any person seeking to challenge a City Council decision made as a result of a proceeding in which, by law, 
a hearing is required to be given, evidence is required to be taken, and the discretion in the determination of facts is 
vested in the City Council, shall be required to commence that court action within ninety (90) days following the 
date on which the decision becomes final as provided in Code of Civil Procedure §1094.6. Please refer to code of 
Civil Procedure §1094.6 to determine how to calculate when a decision becomes “final.” Please be advised that in 
most instances the decision become “final” upon the City Council’s announcement of its decision at the completion 
of the public hearing. Failure to comply with this 90-day rule will preclude any person from challenging the City 
Council decision in court. 

Notice regarding City Council: The Capitola City Council meets on the 2nd and 4th Thursday of each month at 
7:00 p.m. (or in no event earlier than 6:00 p.m.), in the City Hall Council Chambers located at 420 Capitola Avenue, 
Capitola. 

Agenda and Agenda Packet Materials: The City Council Agenda and the complete agenda packet are available 
on the Internet at the City’s website: www.ci.capitola.ca.us. Agendas are also available at the Capitola Post Office 
located at 826 Bay Avenue, Capitola. 



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 9, 2012  5 
  
Agenda Document Review:  The complete agenda packet is available at City Hall and at the Capitola Branch 
Library, 2005 Wharf Road, Capitola, on the Monday prior to the Thursday meeting. Need more information?   
Contact the City Clerk’s office at 831-475-7300. 

Agenda Materials Distributed after Distribution of the Agenda Packet: Pursuant to Government Code 
§54957.5, materials related to an agenda item submitted after distribution of the agenda packet are available for 
public inspection at the Reception Office at City Hall, 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, California, during normal 
business hours. 

Americans with Disabilities Act:  Disability-related aids or services are available to enable persons with a 
disability to participate in this meeting consistent with the Federal Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.  Assisted 
listening devices are available for individuals with hearing impairments at the meeting in the City Council 
Chambers.  Should you require special accommodations to participate in the meeting due to a disability, please 
contact the City Clerk’s office at least 24-hours in advance of the meeting at 831-475-7300. In an effort to 
accommodate individuals with environmental sensitivities, attendees are requested to refrain from wearing 
perfumes and other scented products. 

Televised Meetings: City Council meetings are cablecast “Live” on Charter Communications Cable TV Channel 8 
and are recorded to be replayed at 12:00 Noon on the Saturday following the meetings on Community Television of 
Santa Cruz County (Charter Channel 71 and Comcast Channel 25).  Meetings are streamed “Live” on the City’s 
website at www.ci.capitola.ca.us by clicking on the Home Page link “View Capitola Meeting Live On-Line.”  
Archived meetings can be viewed from the website at anytime. 
 



1

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

Item #: B.A. 

MEETING OF AUGUST 9, 2012 

FROM: OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK 

SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF THE MAY 31,2012 SPECIAL JOINT STUDY SESSION OF THE 
CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL AND THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY MINUTES 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the subject minutes as submitted. 

DISCUSSION: Attached for City Council review and approval are the minutes to the subject meeting. 

ATTACHMENTS 
1. May 31, 2012 Minutes of the Special Joint Study Session of the Capitola City Council and the 

Successor Agency. 

Report Prepared By: Susan Sneddon, CMC 
City Clerk 

Reviewed and 0 

By City Manag 

R:\Agenda Staff Reports\2012 Agenda Reports\City Council\OS-09-12\S.A. CCMinutes staff report .docx 



2

NOT OFFICIAL UNTIL APPROVED BY COUNCIL 

CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CITY COUNCIL 

ATTACHMENT 1 

12240 

May 31,2012 
Capitola, California 

MINUTES OF SPECIAL JOINT MEETING 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 

TO THE FORMER REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

JOINT BUDGET STUDY SESSION 

6:00 P.M. - OPEN SESSION 

CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Termini called the Special Budget Study Session of the Capitola City Council and the 
Successor Agency to order at 6:05 p.m. on Wednesday, May 31, 2012, in the City Hall Council 
Chambers, 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, California. 

1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

PRESENT: 

ABSENT: 
OTHERS: 
STAFF: 

Council Members Stephanie Harlan, Dennis Norton, Kirby Nicol, Sam 
Storey, and Mayor Michael Termini 
None 
City Treasurer Jacques Bertrand 
City Manager Jamie Goldstein, Public Works Director Steve Jesberg, 
Finance Director Tori Hannah, Police Chief Rudy Escalante, and City Clerk 
Susan Sneddon 

2. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Barry Boone, Capitola resident, stated his concerns regarding the harmful effects 
of Smartmeters. 

Marilyn Garrett spoke against wireless technology and Smartmeters. 

Council Member Nicol stated that, due to a growing number of illegal signs, he 
would like staff to review the City's Sign Ordinance for compliance issues. 

3. GENERAL GOVERNMENT 

A. Continued Budget Study Session on the proposed 2012/2013 Fiscal Year 
Budget for the City of Capitola General Fund, the Capitola Successor Agency, 
and an overview of the unfunded Capital Improvement Program. 
[330-05/780-30] 



3

12241 MAY 31,2012 BUDGET STUDY SESSION 
CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL I SUCCESSOR AGENCY SPECIAL MEETING 

3. GENERAL GOVERNMENT (continued) 

Christine Buechting, Finance Advisory Committee (FAC) Chair, provided the 
FAC's recommendations for the City's proposed Fiscal Year 2012/2013 Budget. She 
stated that the FAC is recommending rebuilding the City's reserves and recommends 
transferring balances from the Information Technology, Equipment Replacement, and 
the Stores Funds (Internal Service Funds) to the Emergency Fund in the amount of 
$497,900. She presented the FAC's sources to rebuild the City's Emergency Fund 
and to scale back the unfunded items by twenty-five percent. 

Finance Director Hannah stated that the Internal Service Funds (Information 
Technology, Equipment Replacement, and the Stores Funds) mentioned by Ms. 
Buechting represent one-hundred percent of the fund balance, and there would be 
sufficient funds to make planned purchases for Fiscal Year 2012/2013. 

City Manager Goldstein introduced various department heads who will report on the 
following concerns brought up at the May 23, 2012, Special Budget Study Session: 
(1) review of recreation fees; (2) review of the police budget; (3) review of the 
proposed capital improvement projects from the development impact fees. 

Recreation Supervisor Legare reviewed the recreation budget and presented 
various options to increase revenues. 

Police Chief Escalante provided the following responses to Council's concerns: (1) 
potential revenue for special events; (2) evaluation of police overtime; (3) reasoning 
for the City not hiring private security to provide parking enforcement services; (4) 
police uniform types to distinguish sworn staff and non-sworn officers; and (5) 
clarification of allocated SPCA funds. 

Public Works Director Jesberg reported on Council's request to review the 
proposed funding for the following capital improvement projects: (1) 38th Avenue 
Project; (2) Slurry Seal Project; (3) PG&E Utility Underground Project along Bay 
Avenue; (4) Clares Street Traffic Calming Project; and (5) Pavement Management 
Program. With regards to development impact fees, he stated that Assembly Bill (AB) 
1600 allows cities to charge fees for new development only; typical impact fees can 
be charged for street improvements and park acquisition and improvements. Under 
AB 1600, in order to establish a new fee, a fee study must be developed that identifies 
the connection between the impact of new development, the level of the fee, and the 
burden the new development creates on existing infrastructure; impact fees may not 
be used for maintenance. He recommended the establishment of development impact 
fees be deferred until after the adoption of the City's General Plan Update. 

Council Member Norton requested that further discussion regarding the City's Fiscal 
Year 2012/2013 Capital Improvement Program be agendized for a future Council 
meeting. 



4

MAY 31,2012 BUDGET STUDY SESSION 12242 
CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL I SUCCESSOR AGENCY SPECIAL MEETING 

3. GENERAL GOVERNMENT (continued) 

Finance Director Hannah stated that the Internal Service Funds totaling $497,900 
represents the estimated ending balance and does not include allocated 
expenditures. Staff is suggesting less contributions from these funds to transfer to the 
City's Reserves so that the City could retain some of the Internal Service Fund 
balances. 

Mayor Termini opened the public hearing. 

The following representatives from various nonprofits in Santa Cruz County provided 
support for the City's continued community grant funding: 

Will Sullivan, Human Care Alliance 

Lisa Burkewitz, Meals on Wheels for Santa Cruz County 

Darrell Johnson, Senior Council Board Member Santa Cruz County 

Shirley Hill, Grey Bears and Meals on Wheels 

Jerry Lopez, Retirement Financial Advisor and Meals on Wheels 
Boardmember 

Norma Sanchez, Community Action Board of Santa Cruz County 

Capitola Resident, Santa Cruz Aides Project recipient 

Rita Flores, Santa Cruz County Family Service Agency 

Kurt Antz, Community Bridges Lift Line 

Representative from the Santa Cruz Parents Center 

Executive Director Maria Cubillas, Big Brothers Big Sisters of Santa Cruz 
County 

Jan Shirchild, Project Scout 

Barbara Joy Templeton, Santa Cruz Mental Health Commissioner 

Karen Delanie, Santa Cruz Volunteer Center 

Michelle Williams, Cultural Center of Santa Cruz County 

Brooke Johnson, Second Harvest Food Bank 

Tim Bradley, Grey Bears 

Laura Hink, Santa Cruz Women's Shelter 

Jane, Senior Council of Santa Cruz and San Benito County 

Representative from the Santa Cruz Toddler Care Center 

Brenda Moss, Senior Network Services 

Clay Kempf, Executive Director of the Seniors Council of Santa Cruz and 
San Benito Counties ' 

Lynn Master, Capitola resident,yarious homeless programs 

Monica Churchill, Hospice of Santa Cruz County 



5

12243 MAY 31,2012 BUDGET STUDY SESSION 
CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL I SUCCESSOR AGENCY SPECIAL MEETING 

3. GENERAL GOVERNMENT (continued) 

Terry Hancock, Attorney for Senior Citizens' Legal Services 

Kathleen Johnson, Advocacy, Inc. 

Bud Winslow, Santa Cruz Senior Activities and Community Action Board 

Sandra Williams, City's representative for Seniors Council of Santa Cruz and 
San Benito Counties, and the Santa Cruz County representative on the 
Advisory Council of the Area Agency on Aging 

Maggie Ivy, Santa Cruz Conference and Visitor Council CEO, requested 
continued funding for the Santa Cruz County Visitors Center (CVC). 

Dan Aspromonte, Best Western and Marriott Fairfield Inn, provided his support for 
continued funding to the CVC. 

Mayor Termini closed the public hearing. 

Council Member Storey stated that he does not fully agree with the FAC's proposal 
to pull $100,000 from the Slurry Seal Project. He stated that the ultimate objective is 
to obtain public support for the proposed sales tax measure slated for the November 
2012 ballot. He does not recommend taking funding from the Internal Service Funds 
for capital improvement projects. He stated that he would like the City to make every 
effort to fully fund the Capitola/Soquel Chamber of Commerce, the CVC, and the 
Begonia Festival. He asked if approved by the voters, the sales tax measure would 
become effective. 

City Manager Goldstein stated that if the sales tax measure passes, it would take 
effect July 1, 2013; the City would receive one-half year's allocation of sales tax 
(estimated at $450,000). Early next year staff will come back to Council with the mid
year budget report. He recommended that any remaining funds allocated for 
community grants be held for potential litigation costs. 

Council Member Nicol stated concerns regarding re-establishing $865,000 in City 
reserves over a 5-year period, as well as continued funding for the capital 
improvement projects, community grants, Capitola/Soquel Chamber of Commerce, 
CVC, and the Begonia Festival. He discussed the former Redevelopment Agency's 
"claw-back" of funds, the City's fiscal mismanagemeQt over the past 10 years, and the 
run-away payroll. Revenues have increased 17% with payroll increasing 36%. He 
suggested transferring a large percentage of the Internal Service Funds ($497,000) to 
the Emergency Contingency Reserves, and he felt the City should adopt a policy 
restricting future payroll increases to a sustainable percentage of the City's revenues 
and consider cutting back the staff work week to 36-hours. 

Council Member Harlan stated that the City has a moral commitment to the citizens 
and should not undermine funding the community groups. 



6

MAY 31;2012 BUDGET STUDY SESSION 12244 
CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL / SUCCESSOR AGENCY SPECIAL MEETING 

3. GENERAL GOVERNMENT (continued) 

Council Member Norton stated that the City needs to start re-building reserves and 
agrees with the FAC's recommendations. He suggested Council agendize further 
discussions regarding capital improvement funding. He stated that long-term funding 
for community groups should be based on how well the City does financially in the 
future. 

Mayor Termini stated that he supports stabilizing the annual funding for the 
community grants and setting priorities focused more on non-profits that address "life
needs." He stated that the current payroll expenses are reasonable; the number of 
City staff has decreased compared to 8 years ago. He supports continued funding to 
the Capitola/Soquel Chamber of Commerce, the CVC, and the Begonia Festival. 

City Manager Goldstein stated that the Internal Service Funds have varied year-to
year; a goal is to estimate the average long-term needs for these funds. He 
recommended that it would be prudent to leave some funds in the account because 
there may be a need to purchase additional equipment in Fiscal Year 2012/2013. He 
stated that the City needs additional dollars to help restore the fiscal health of the City. 

Council Member Storey announced that he would recuse himself from voting on the 
Fiscal Year 2012/2013 funding for the Human Care Alliance because he is the 
Community Bridges CEO (non-profit organization), and voting on this item would be a 
conflict of interest. 

Motion by Council Member Harlan, seconded by Mayor Termini, to allocate 
$250,000 for the Fiscal Year 2012/2013 community grants and for the Council to form 
a subcommittee comprised of Mayor Termini and Council Member Harlan to assist in 
providing recommendations to Council regarding community grant funding. Council 
Member Harlan withdrew her motion after further Council deliberation. 

Council Member Storey returned to the dias. 

Mayor Termini stated that the Council will consider the proposed 2012/2013 Fiscal 
Year Budget items with the exception of the community group funding due to Council 
Member Storey's conflict of interest. 

Council discussion ensued regarding funding the Capitola/Soquel Chamber of 
Commerce, .the CVC, the Begonia Festival, capital improvement projects, and 
the City's reserves. 

ACTION: Motion by Council Member Norton, seconded by Council Member 
Storey, to allocate $22,500 to the Capitola/Soquel Chamber of Commerce, 
$17,250 to the Santa Cruz County Conference and Visitor's Council (CVC), 
$5,000 for the Begonia Festival, $22,500 for capital improvement projects, and 
$50,000 for reserves; and for Council to reconsider the balance for the 
Capitola/Soquel Chamber of Commerce and the Santa Cruz County Conference 
and Visitor's Council at the mid-year Fisca/ Year 201212013 budget report if the 
sales tax measure passes. The motion carried with the following vote: A YES: 
Council Members Norton, Storey, and Mayor Termini. NOES: Council Members 
Harlan and Nicol. ABSENT: None. ABSTAIN: None. 

Council Member Storey left the dias due to the previously stated conflict of interest. 



7

12245 MAY 31,2012 BUDGET STUDY SESSION 
CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 1 SUCCESSOR AGENCY SPECIAL MEETING 

3. GENERAL GOVERNMENT (continued) 

ACTION: Motion by Council Member Norton, seconded by Council Member 
Harlan, to fund the community grants at $250,000, and for the Council to form. a 
subcommittee comprised of Mayor Termini and Council Member Harlan to 
assist in providing recommendations to Council regarding community grant 
funding. The motion carried with the following vote: A YES: Council Members 
Harlan, Norton, and Mayor Termini. NOES: Council Member Nicol. ABSENT: 
None. ABSTAIN: Council Member Storey. 

There was Council consensus to cancel the June 7, 2012, and June 21, 2012, 
Special Council Budget Hearings and direct staff to place the proposed Fiscal 
Year 2012/2013 Budget on the June 14, 2012, regular City Council meeting 
agenda (Consent Calendar). 

Council Member Storey returned to the dias. 

4. ADJOURNMENT 

Mayor Termini adjourned at 9:35 p.m. to the next Regular Meeting of the City Council to 
be held on Thursday, June 14, 2012, at 7:00 p.m., in the City Hall Council Chambers, 420 
Capitola Avenue, Capitola, California. 



8

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

Item #: 8.B. 

MEETING OF AUGUST 9,2012 

FROM: DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

SUBJECT: 2012 SLURRY SEAL PROGRAM AWARD OF CONTRACT 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Award a contract to Graham Contractors of San Jose for the 
construction of the 2012 Capitola Slurry Seal Program in the amount of $91,674.48, and authorize 
and direct the City Manager to sign the contract on behalf of the City. 

BACKGROUND: On August 1, 2012 the City received two bids for the subject project. The low 
bidder was Graham Contractors of San Jose with a bid in the amount of $91,674.48. A summary 
of the bids is attached. 

DISCUSSION: This project will complete a slurry seal and restriping on the following streets: 

• Depot Hill Area: Escalona Drive, Sacramento Avenue, southern portion of Hollister Avenue, 
Oakland Avenue, Saxon Avenue, southern portion of Central Avenue, and western end of 
Grand Avenue; 

• Jewel Box east of 49th Avenue: Prospect Avenue, Opal Street, Jewel Street, Garnet Street, 
and Emerald Street; 

• Deanes Lane neighborhood: Deanes Lane, Edmund Lane, Sellars Lane, Albert Lane, and 
Virgil Lane; 

• Reposa Avenue, which will also be restriped to narrow the streets as agreed upon with the 
residents. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Source of Funds: 
Capital Improvement Fund $101,000.00 

Use of Funds: 
Contract Amount 
10% Contingency 
Total 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Bid Summary 

$ 91,674.48 
$ 9,325.52 
$101,000.00 

Report Prepared By: Steven Jesberg 
Public Works Director 

Reviewed and F~rded 
By City Manage\ ~ 

R\Agenda Staff Reports\2012 Agenda Reports\City Council\OS-09-12\S.B. Slurry Seal Contract Award Report.docx 



9

Bid Summary 

Project: 2012 Slurry Seal Program 

. Bid Opening Date: Augusut 1, 2012 

Opinion of Graham Valley Slurry 
Probable Costs Contractors Seal Co. 

Item Description Quantity Units Unit Price Total Unit Price Total Unit Price Total 
1 Mobilization 1 LS $8,500.00 $8,500.00 $4,000.00 $ 4,000.00 $ 5,000.56 $ 5,000.56 
2 Traffic Control 1 LS $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $ 5,000.00 $10,000.00 $ 10,000.00 
3 Slurry Seal (Type II) 36,772 LF $1.50 $55,158.00 $ 2.04 $ 75,014.88 $ 2.02 $ 74,279.44 
4 Pavement Markings (Parking T's) 20 EA $25.00 $500.00 $ 52.00 $ 1,040.00 $ 52.50 $ 1,050.00 
5 Stop Limit Lines 110 SF $10.00 $1,100.00 $ 4.20 $ 462.00 $ 4.20 $ 462.00 
6 Detail 21 Stripe 100 EA $5.00 $500.00 $ 3.20 $ 320.00 $ 3.15 $ 315.00 
7 Detail 1 Stripe 560 LF $5.00 $2,800.00 $ 1.10 $ 616.00 $ 1.05 $ 588.00 
8 Detail27b 1,370 EA $5.00 $6,850.00 $ 1.60 $ 2,192.00 $ 1.60 $ 2,192.00 
9 Stop Letters 264 0 $10.00 $2,640.00 $ 5.30 $ 1,399.20 $ 5.25 $ 1,386.00 
10 Pavement Marker - Blue, Two-Way R 20 0 $20.00 $400.00 $ 20.00 $ 400.00 $ 16.00 $ 320.00 
11 Cross-Hatching (4" stripe) 394 0 $2.00 $788.00 $ 1.60 $ 630.40 $ 2.00 $ 788.00 

12 Handicap Parking Pavement Legend 2 0 $35.00 $70.00 
$ 300.00 $ 600.00 $ 260.00 $ 520.00 

$84,306.00 
10% cont. $ 8,430.60 

$92,736.60 $ 91,674.48 $ 96,901.00 

ATTACHMENT 1 



10

FROM: 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF AUGUST 9,2012 

CITY MANAGER'S DEPARTMENT 

Item #: S.C. 

SUBJECT: POLICE OFFICERS ASSOCIATION MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING FOR THE 
PERIOD OF AUGUST 5, 2012 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2013 AND SIDE LETTER AGREEMENT 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: City Council to take the following actions: 
1) Authorize the City Manager to execute the Memorandum of Understanding with the negotiated 

changes in benefits for August 5, 2012 - June 30, 2013; and 
2) Authorize the City Manager to approve the Side Letter Agreement. 

BACKGROUND: The Capitola Police Officers Association (CPOA) Bargaining Unit Memorandum of 
Understanding (MOU) expired on June 30, 2012. As required by state law the City has negotiated with the 
bargaining unit on working conditions, salary and benefit changes, and has reached an agreement with the 
bargaining unit. 

DISCUSSION: After several weeks of good faith negotiations with the CPOA bargaining unit the City 
negotiating team recommends a one-year contract expiring on June 30, 2013 which includes a requirement 
that new employees pay 5% more toward theiLpension costs during their first five years with the City. 

The CPOA has agreed to a zero Cost of Living Adjustment during the term of this agreement. There will be an 
increase for health care as follows: Employee only and those who choose not to utilize the City's insurance, 
an increase of $25 per month, employee plus one and employee plus two will receive an increase of $50 per 
month to help offset the rising cost of health insurance. In addition, newly hired Lateral Police Officers may 
receive a signing bonus of up to $2,000. 

Finally, due to the downturn of the economy, the opportunities to attend regular training sessions has been 
reduced. The decline causes the Sworn Officers who report for duty for training when there is no training 
available to utilize vacation hours. To mitigate, the City has agreed to provide 20 hours of training leave hours. 
These hours are not cashable and are not cumulative. The unused hours expire on June 30, 2013 . 

. FISCAL IMPACT: The total cost for this agreement is $9,000 for health care in Fiscal Year 2012/2013. 

The 5% PERS cap reduction for new employees will result in limited savings in the next fiscal year as it is 
unlikely the City will hire a significant number of new employees. Over the long term it is anticipated the costs 
savings from the PERS cap reduction, if applied to all bargaining units in the City, will average approximately 
$50,000 - $70,000/year, or 1 % of payrolL 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. MOU for the Police Officers Association Employees' Bargaining Unit. 
2. Side Letter Agreement 

Report Prepared By: Lisa G. Murphy 
Administrative Services Director 

Reviewed and F~ded 
by City Manage\:;t:Y-

R\Agenda Staff Reports\2012 Agenda Reports\City Council\08-09-12\8.C. 2012 POA MOU staff report Rev SU.doc 



11

Article 1.00 

Article 2.00 

Article 3.00 

Article 4.00 

Article 5.00 

Article 6.00 

Article 7.00 

Article 8.00 

ATTACHMENT 1 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
BETWEEN 

CAPITOLA POLICE OFFICERS' ASSOCIATION 
AND CITY OF CAPITOLA 

PERIOD 8/05/2012 -:- 6/30-2013 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
Standard MOU Provisions 

Definitions 
2.01 Employer 
2.02 Association 
2.03 Employee/Representation Unit 
2.04 Patrol Vehicle 
2.05 Peace Officer/Sworn Personnel 

Management Rights Clause 

Association Recognition, Rights and Security 
4.01 Association Recognition 
4.02 Notice of Recognized Association 
4.03 Payroll Deductions and Pay Over 
4.04 Hold Harmless 
4.05 Bulletin Boards 
4.06 Use of Employer Facilities 
4.07 Bargaining 

Hiring Provisions 
5.01 Non-Discrimination 
5.02 Employment 
5.03 Signing Bonus 

Job Classification 
6.01 New Job Classifications 

Hours of Work, Shift, Schedules, and Rest Periods 
7.01 Work Schedule and Change of Shifts 
7.02 Shift 
7.03 Assigning Shifts 
7.03.01 Successive Shifts 
7.03.02 Special Event Assignment 
7.04 Meal and Rest Periods 

Overtime 
8.01 Regular/Overtime Hours 
8.02 Compensation/Overtime Authorizations 
8.03 Compensation/Overtime 
8.04 Overtime not Cumulative 

Page 
1 

1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
2 

2 

2 
2 
2 
2 
3 
3 
3 
3 

3 
3 
3 

4 
4 

4 
4 
4 
4 

5 
5 

5 
5 
5 
5 



12

8.05 Fractions of Less than Fifteen Minutes 5 
8.06 Other 6 

Article 9.00 Health and Safety 6 

Article 10.00 Uniforms 6 

Article 11.00 Holidays 7 

Article 12.00 Flexible Spending Arrangement Contributions 7 

Article 13.00 Educational Incentive Program 7 
13.01 Sworn Police Personnel 8 
13.02 Education Incentive Limitations 8 
13.03 Education Cap 
13.04 Education Reimbursement - Community Service Officer 8 
13.05 POST Certificate Pay - Police Officers 9 
13.06 POST Certificate Pay - Police Sergeants 9 
13.07 Career Officer Program 9 

Article 14.00 Callback Pay - Police Officers, Sergeants and Records Manager 9 

Article 15.00 Night Differential- Police Officers, Sergeants, and Records Manager 10 

Article 16.00 Court Appearances 10 

Article 17.00 Training Compensation 10 

Article 18.00 Specialty Pay 10 

Article 19.00 Additional Compensation 10 
19.01 For Temporary Assignment to a Higher Level Vacancy 10 
19.02 Positions Designated Bilingual 11 

Article 20.00 Leaves of Absence 11 
20.01 Leave May Not Exceed One Year 11 
20.02 No Leave to Accept Outside Employment 11 
20.03 Military Leave 11 
20.04 Leave for Jury Duty 11 

Article 21.00 Vacation Schedule 11 
21.01 Vacation Schedule 11 
21.02 Vacation Accumulations, Maximums, and Cash Out Provisions 12 
21.05 Vacation Accrual and Usage Beginning Dates 12 
21.06 Maximum/Minimum Annual Vacation Leave 12 
21.07 Effect on Leave Without Pay on Vacation Credit 12 



13

Article 22.00 

Article 23.00 

Article 24.00 

21.07.01 When Vacation May be Taken - All Employees but 
Sergeants and Records Supervisor 

21.07.02 When Vacation May be Taken- Sergeants and Records 
Supervisor 

21.08 Rate of Vacation Pay 

Sick Leave 
22.01 Accrual 
22.03 Labor Code Section 4850 
22.04 Sick Leave Usage 
22.05 Medical Report 
22.06 Emergency Leave. Sickness in Immediate Family 
22.07 Sick Leave Cash Out 
22.07.01 Sick Leave Cash Out for Specified Employees 
22.08 Death in Immediate Family 

Wages 

Grievances 
24.01 Definition 
24.02 Department Review and Adjustment of Grievances 
24.03 Effect of Failure of Timely Action 
24.04 Limitation on Stale Grievances 
24.05 Exclusion of Non-Recognized Organizations 

Article 25.00 Departmental Vehicles and Equipment 

Article 26.00 Retirement - Public Employees Retirement System 

Article 27.00 Physical Examinations 

Article 28.00 Family & Medical Leave Act of 1993 

Article 29.00 Miscellaneous 

Article 30.00 Savings Clause 

Article 31.00 Enactment 

Attachments: 
A: Standard MOU 
B: Departmental Order #2 12115/87 
C: Education Incentive Employee List 
D: Personnel Directive #4 11115/88 
E: Individual Sick Leave Maximum Cash Out- May 22, 2003 
F: Wage Schedule, 
G: Side Letter Regarding Non-Sworn PERS, 
H. Side Letter regarding Longevity 

12 

13 
13 

13 
13 
14 
14 
14 
14 

. 14 
15 
15 

15 

16 
16 
16 
17 
17 
17 

17 

18 

19 

19 

19 

19 

20 



14

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

BETWEEN 

CAPITOLA POLICE OFFICERS' ASSOCIATION 
AND CITY OF CAPITOLA 

This MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING is made and entered into this August 5, 2012 by and 
between CAPITOLA POLICE OFFICERS' ASSOCIATION and the CITY OF CAPITOLA for and on 
behalf of its members hereinafter identified. This agreement ends June 30, 2013. This MOU embodies 
all items agreed upon by and ·between the City of Capitola and the Capitola Police Officers' 
Association. 

ARTICLE 1.00 STANDARD MOU PROVISIONS 

The "Standard MOU Provisions", except section 1 thereof, are incorporated herein as though 
fully set forth. Those incorporated provisions are Attachment A. 

ARTICLE 2.00 DEFINITIONS 

2.01 EMPLOYER. 

The term "Employer" as used herein refers to the City of Capitola. The words "Management", 
"Department Head", "Police Chief', may also be used to refer to "Employer" in appropriate 
contexts. 

2.02 ASSOCIATION. 

The term "Association" as used herein shall refer to the Capitola Police Officers' Association. 

2.03 EMPLOYEE/REPRESENTATION UNIT. 

The term "Employee" or "Covered Employee", as used herein, means all persons employed by the 
Employer in the Police Department who are classified as Community Services Officer, 
Community Services Officer-Lifeguard Captain, Police Officer, Records Manager and Sergeant. 
Those positions constitute the unit represented by Capitola Police Officers' Association. 

2.04 PATROL VEHICLE 

The term "patrol vehicle" as used herein shall refer to any motor vehicle as defined under 
the provisions of Sections 415 and 165 of the California Vehicle Code. 

1 



15

2.05 PEACE OFFICER/SWORN PERSONNEL 

The terms "peace officers" or "sworn personnel" means "police officers" as defined in 
Penal Code Sections 830 and 830.1. 

ARTICLE 3.00 MANAGEMENT RIGHTS CLAUSE 

Except as otherwise specifically set forth in this MOU, the CITY retains all management 
prerogatives. These include but are not limited to: determining the mission of its 
constituent departments; setting standards of service; determining the procedures and 
standards of selection for employment and promotion; directing its employees; taking 
disciplinary action; relieving its employees from duty because of lack of work or for 
other legitimate reasons; maintaining the efficiency of governmental operations; 
determining the methods, means, and personnel by which government operations are to 
be conducted; taking all necessary actions to carry out its mission in emergencies; and 
exercising control and discretion over its organization and the technology of performing 
its work. 

Nothing in this article shall be construed to limit, amend, decrease, revoke, or otherwise 
modifY the rights vested in the CITY by state law, city ordinances, or resolutions or other 
laws regulating, authorizing, or empowering the CITY to act or refrain from acting. 

ARTICLE 4.00 ASSOCIATION RECOGNITION, RIGHTS AND SECURITY 

4.01 ASSOCIATION RECOGNITION. 

Except as limited by Government Code Section 3502, the Employer hereby recognizes 
the Laborer's International Union of North America, Local 270, as the sole collective 
bargaining agent of all covered Employees. 

4.02 NOTICE OF RECOGNIZED ASSOCIATION. 

The Employer/Association shall post within the employee work or rest area a written 
notice which sets forth the classifications included and referred to in Section 2.03 hereof 
and the name and address of Association as the recognized employee organization for 
such units. The P.O.A. shall also give a written notice to persons newly employed in 
representation unit classifications, which notice shall contain the name and address of the 
employee organization recognized for such unit. 

4.03 PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS AND PAYOVER 

The unit defined in Section 2.03 shall be an "agency shop" as defined in Government 
Code Section 3512.5 (Chapter 901 ofStats. 2000). Consequently, Employer shall deduct 
Association dues from employee's pay in conformity with State and local regulations. 
The Employer shall promptly pay over to the designated payee all sums so deducted on a 
monthly basis. 

2 



16

4.04 HOLD HARMLESS. 

Association shall indemnify and hold Employer harmless from any and all claims, 
demands, suits, or any other action arising from an employee claim relating to legality, or 
implementation, of Section 4.03. 

4.05 BULLETIN BOARDS. 

Reasonable space shall be allowed on bulletin boards as specified by the Police Chief for 
use by the Association to communicate on relevant subjects with departmental 
employees. Material shall be posted upon the bulletin board space as designated, and not 
upon the walls, doors, filing cabinets or any other place. Posted material shall not be 
obscene, defamatory, or of a partisan political nature, nor shall it pertain to public issues 
which do not involve the Employer or its relations with City employees. All posted 
material shall bear the identity of the sponsor, shall be neatly displayed, and shall be 
removed when no longer timely. 

4.06 USE OF EMPLOYER FACILITIES. 

Employer facilities such as the City Hall Community Room may be made available upon 
timely application for use by employees and the Association. Such use shall not occur 
during regular duty hours, other than the lunch period. Application for such use shall be 
made to the management person under whose control the facility is placed. 

4.07 BARGAINING. 

Employee members of the Association's bargaining committee shall be allowed time to 
absent themselves from duties for a reasonable period without loss of pay, for the purpose 
of participating in contract negotiations. Employee members of Association's bargaining 
committee shall be extended the same privilege to participate in any meetings mutually 
called by the parties during the term of this agreement for review of grievances and 
contract compliance questions. 

ARTICLE 5.00 IDRING PROVISIONS 

5.01 NON-DISCRIMINATION. 

No Employee covered by this Agreement shall be discriminated against by the Employer, 
or by the Association by reason of race, color, religion, sex, age, national origin, or sexual 
preference. 

5.02 EMPLOYMENT 

The Employer shall not discharge or otherwise discriminate against any Employee by 
reason of any Association activity not interfering with the proper performance ofhislher 
work. 

3 



17

5.03 Signing Bonus: 
Sworn employees hired as a Lateral Officer after August 5,2012 may receive a one-time 
signing bonus of up to $2,000 upon the successful completion of probation and obtaining 
regular full time employment status. ·A Lateral Officer is defmed as an applicant who is 
currently working for a recognized law enforcement agency, has successfully completed 
the probation period for that agency, and possesses a State of California Basic POST 
Certificate. The City Manager shall make the determination as to the amount. The 
amount of the signing bonus shall be specified in the hire-letter. 

ARTICLE 6.00 JOB CLASSIFICATION 

6.01 NEW JOB CLASSIFICATIONS. 

If an Employee covered by this Agreement is assigned work of a substantially new or 
different nature so as to constitute a new job classification, the Employer and the 
Association will negotiate regarding the wage rate applicable to such new job 
classification 

ARTICLE 7.00 HOURS OF WORK, SHIFT, SCHEDULES, AND REST PERIODS 

7.01 WORK SCHEDULE AND CHANGE OF SHIFT. 

Prior to the applicable pay period, the Police Chief or hislher designated representative 
shall prepare a schedule showing the hours each employee of the department is, at the 
time of posting, to work. The Police Chief shall make every effort to assure that no 
employee shall have more than one change of shift in any calendar month. This paragraph 
does not limit the Police Chiefs authority to revise schedules as need permits. 

7.02 SHIFT 

For sworn personnel and Community Service Officers, hours of work in the normal 
workday shall be ten (10) hours for police officers and police sergeants, except for 
detective bureau personnel, which is (8) hours. While they are assigned to the detective 
bureau, the sick leave accrual provisions ofthis MOU that are applicable to 5/8 
employees will be applicable to such employees. 

7.03 ASSIGNING WORK SHIFTS. 

In assigning work shifts, the department shall give due regard to assigning shifts which 
will not disrupt or interrupt any employee's education or trai..'1ing programs and schedules. 
Undesirable work shifts shall not be used as punishment, intimidation, or harassment. 
Shift assignments shall be carried out in accordance with department policy (currently 
Departmental Order #2, Attachment B). 

7.03.01 Successive Shifts 

It is understood that the assignment of shifts is a prerogative of management that has been 
delegated to the Chief of Police. It has been the practice to assign at an officer's request, 

4 



18

on the basis of seniority, the same shift for two successive shift changes. It is understood 
that this practice will be continued for the duration of this MOU. Although the 
assignment of successive shifts remains with the Chief of Police, should an officer allege 
that such assignment has been made in an arbitrary or discriminatory manner, the matter 
may be reviewed through the City Manager level of the Grievance Procedure. 

7.03.02: Special Event Assignments 

The parties agree that except as required in Departmental Order No.2, "Manpower 
Deployment" dated December 15, 1987, Item III A, Holiday Staffing and III B Overtime 
Shifts, any special event outside of a member's work schedule shall receive 30 days 
notice which will include the following: location, time and hours to be worked. If this 
condition is not met, the officer or sergeant will not be required to work the event (a 
special event is not an emergency). 

7.04 MEAL AND REST PERIODS. 

A meal period of 30 minutes shall be provided to all other employees during each 
assigned shift no sooner than 3 hours after commencement of the shift and not later than 3 
hours prior to the end of the shift. Such meal period for sworn officers (including those on 
detective assignment) and community service officers shall be considered time worked. 

ARTICLE 8.00 OVERTIME 

8.01 REGULAR/OVERTIME HOURS. 

The normal workweek for all bargaining unit employees shall consist of forty (40) hours. 
Except as provided in section 18.02 (regarding canine care), all work in excess of forty 
hours in a workweek shall be considered overtime and shall be compensated pursuant to 
the provisions of Sections 8.00-8.06 ofthis agreement. 

8.02 COMPENSATION/OVERTIME AUTHORIZATION. 

No employee shall receive compensation for overtime, whether in cash, or in time off, or 
a combination, unless such overtime work has been approved by the Police Chief or his 
designated representative. 

8.03 COMPENSATION/OVERTIME. 

All overtime work shall be compensated at the rate of one and one-half times the hourly 
rate in cash. Overtime compensation shall be paid in the paycheck covering the pay period 
in which the overtime was worked. Except as otherwise provided in Labor Code Section 
204.3, at the option of the employee, compensatory time off may be earned in lieu of cash. 
Up to 120 hours may be accumulated. Any time over that maximum shall be in cash at 
time and one-half. Compensatory time off will be scheduled by means of management 
responding to the requests of the employees. Such requests will not be arbitrarily or 
unreasonably denied. 

5 



19

8.04 OVERTIME NOT CUMULATIVE. 

Any hours worked which qualify as overtime under one measurement may not be used 
under another measurement 

8.05 FRACTIONS OF LESS THAN FIFTEEN MINUTES 

No overtime payment shall be allowed for any period of less than fifteen minutes, and 
fractions of less than fifteen minutes of overtime worked may not be accumulated in order 
to total fifteen minutes or more, except where such fractions are part of a regularly 
scheduled shift. 

8.06 OTHER. 

Court appearances and callbacks may also, at times, result in overtime. See Sections 
16.00 and 14.00 respectively. Overtime may occur as a result of the last paragraph of 
section 11.00. 

ARTICLE 9.00 HEALTH AND SAFETY 

9.01 Employer shall comply with all applicable state, federal, and local safety regulations and 
shall furnish to all employees safety equipment required by law or deemed necessary by 
the Police Chief. 

9.02 The City and the Association agree during the term of this agreement to establish a labor 
management committee that will seek to reduce the incidents and cost of industrial injury 
and provide opportunities to improve employee fitness. 

ARTICLE 10.00 UNIFORMS 

10.01 The employer will purchase initial uniforms for newly hired. uniformed employees and 
will repair or replace uniforms including uniform boots, on an as-needed basis. 

The City will designate a police captain to whom the officer will submit the uniform 
request for authorization for repair or replacement. If the officer disagrees with the 
captain's decision with regard to the necessity for repair or replacement, he or she may 
have the dispute reviewed by the Chief of Police through the grievance procedure 
included in this 
MOU. 

In addition, the employer will cover the cost of reasonable cleaning of departmentally 
authorized uniforms. Employees will be responsible for delivering uniforms to, and 
retrieving uniforms from, the employer-designated cleaning establishment. 

Police Officers and Sergeants assigned to the Detective unit shall be eligible to choose 
EITHER the repair, cleaning and replacement policy for their official uniforms as 
provided in Section 10.01 above OR a uniform allowance of $50.00 per month for the 

6 



20

duration of their assignment to the Detective Division. (The latter choice will be shown as 
taxable income on an Employee's W-2 form.) 

Compensation paid or the monetary value for the purchase, rental andlor maintenance of 
required uniforms will be reported to CaIPERS, to the extent allowable by CaIPERS. 

10.02 Employer agrees to provide the following items for Police Officers and Sergeants 
assigned to motorcycle duty: two pairs of motorcycle pants; one pair motorcycle boots 
and one pair of gloves. Police Officers shall also be entitled to an allowance for safety 
glasses not to exceed $20.00. 

ARTICLE 11.00 HOLIDAYS 

Holidays will be expressed as an annual (calendar year) bank of hours and taken as 
scheduling permits. Employees working 411 0 schedules shall receive 150 hours per 
calendar year and employees working 5/8 schedules shall receive 120 hours per calendar 
year. Upon termination, if an employee has not actually taken as much holiday time as a 
pro-rated amount, helshe will be entitled to compensation for the unused portion. For 
instance, if a 4110 employee whose last day was June 30 had taken only 55 hours of 
holiday time, (s)he would be entitled to 20 hours of compensation. Personal Holidays are 
included in the foregoing 150/120 hourly figures, and not in addition to them. Employees 
working 411 0 schedules will be debited for 10 holiday hours when they take time off as a 
holiday; those working 5/8 schedules will be debited for 8 hours. 

For Sergeants and Records Manager, December 25th will be a paid holiday if not worked 
(and 10 hours and 8 hours, respectively, of holiday time will be consumed). If worked, 
employee will be paid time and one half. 

ARTICLE 12.00 FLEXIBLE SPENDING ARRANGEMENT CONTRIBUTIONS 

The City makes a flexible spending arrangement (Flex Plan) contribution on behalf of 
each employee. For those employees who have selected health coverage though PERS, 
from the monthly contribution set forth herein, $112 per month as of January 1, 2012 
and $115 effective January 1,2013 will be-paid to PERS for what is sometimes referred 
to as "employer contribution". This amount is the minimum amount required by PERS, 
recognizing that state law may increase this minimum from time to time requiring 
compliance by City. For all employees who receive a Flex Plan contribution, a $1.50 
per paycheck plan fee is paid from the monthly contribution set forth herein. Effective 
8/05112, the contribution for full time regular employees in this unit is: 

Employee Only: $675 per month 
Employee + l: $849 per month 
Employee + 2 or more: $1,049 per month 

Employees who can verify to the City's satisfaction that: they have equivalent health 
coverage for medical (including dental & vision) provided through their spouse, which 
will remain in effect until the next enrollment date; or who purchase a Cal PERS 

7 



21

Health Plan and dental and vision coverage, but do not use their entire monthly 
contribution, may use the remaining funds to purchase benefits other than medical 
(including dental & vision) coverage or take this amount in cash for the employye only 
contribution amount. (If a cash payment is taken, it is not included in the employee's 
compensation for the Cal PERS retirement plan.) 

The. City reserves the option of adding additional programs to the cafeteria plan, as they 
may become available. 

ARTICLE 13.00 EDUCATIONAL INCENTIVE PROGRAM 

Sworn Police Personnel. 
13.01 After successful completion of the probationary period, sworn police personnel and the 

Records Manager shall be eligible to have base pay increased by an additional two and 
one-half (2.5%) for completion of thirty (30) college units, five (5%) percent for 
completion of sixty (60) college units, and seven and a half (7.5%) percent for 
completion of a Bachelor's Degree from an accredited institution. College units may 
include graduate level work. Courses and degrees must be work related as approved by 
the Department Head and City Manager. 

To receive Educational Incentive Pay, the Employee shall write a memo to his/her 
supervisor and include a copy of transcripts as evidence of the number of units required 
for the appropriate incentive pay. The supervisor will review the memo and send it to 
the Police Chief, who, in turn, will review it and send it to the City Manager for 
approval. 

The City will reimburse employees for tuition and textbooks upon the completion of 
courses approved in advance by the City Manager in accordance with the following 
schedule: 

State-supported California colleges and universities - 100% tuition and textbook 
reimbursement. 

Private colleges and universities - 100% of tuition or the tuition of the University of 
California whichever is less. Textbook reimbursement at 100%. 

13.02 Effective August 5,2004, all employees enrolled (Attachment C) in an approved degree 
program shall receive the benefits outlined above. 

13.03 Beginning July 1, 2008 the education incentive is limited to a maximum of $500 per 
year per employee; beginning July 1, 2009 the limited maximum amount will increase 
to $1,000 per year per employee, with the exception of those employees that are already 
acknowledged to be grandfathered in at the prior program rates (see Attachment C). It 
is agreed by the City and the Association to negotiate in good faith on this provision 
upon the termination of the Memorandum of Understanding. 

13.04 Community Service Officer Education Reimbursement: Beginning July 1,2008, the City 
will reimburse employees for tuition upon the completion of courses with a grade C or 

8 



22

better, approved in advance by the City Manager, up to a maximum of $500 per 
calendar year for classes completed in that same calendar year. Beginning July 1,2009 
the limited maximum amount will increase to $1,000 per year per employee. 

13.05 P.O.S.T. CERTIFICATE PAY - Police Officers. 

P.O.S.T. Certificate Pay was eliminated effective 7/1/90, however, all police officers 
receiving P.O.S.T. Certificate Pay at that time will continue to receive it. This 
Certificate Pay may not be collected in addition to education incentive pay or career 
officer program pay. 

13.06 P.O.S.T. CERTIFICATE PAY - Police Sergeants. 

Sergeants shall be eligible to receive 2.5% increase in base pay for completion of the 
intermediate P.O.S.T. Certificate; 5% for completion of the Advanced P.O.S.T. 
Certificate; and 7.5% for completion of the P.O.S.T. Supervisory Certificate provided 
the employee has an A.A., A.S. or equivalent Degree. This Certificate Pay may not be 
collected in addition to education incentive pay. This program became effective 7-1-85. 

To receive P.O.S.T. pay, the Sergeant shall write a memo to his/her supervisor 
including a copy of the appropriate P.O.S.T. Certificate. The Supervisor shall review 
the memo and send it to the Police Chief, who, in turn, shall review it and send it to the 
City Manager for review, and, if approved, it will be effective the first of the month 
after approval. 

13.07 CAREER OFFICER PROGRAM - Police Officers Only. 

In accordance with standards set by Personnel Directive #4 dated November 15, 1988 
(Attachment D), the City agrees to compensate police officers qualifying under the career 
officer program by increasing base pay rates in the following percentages: 

Senior Officer I 2.5% 
Senior Officer II Additional 2.5% more than Senior Officer I 
Master Officer Additional 2.5% more than Senior Officer II 

An officer is eligible for either the Educational Incentive Program or for the Career 
Officer Program but may not receive payment under both programs. 

ARTICLE 14.00 CALLBACK PAY - POLICE OFFICERS, POLICE SERGEANTS AND 
RECORDS MANAGER 

Any Police Officer, Police Sergeant or Records Manager who has departed from hislher work 
location and is called back to work shall be guaranteed a minimum of four hours compensation at 
the overtime rate for each call-back. If the employee is no longer needed and at the employee's 
request, he/she can leave the work location and be 'paid at overtime rates for time actually 
worked. When called back, the canine officer and Detectives will receive a minimum of two 

9 



23

hours pay at the overtime rate regardless of th.e number of hours actually worked. All hours 
worked in excess of the minimum call back shall be paid at overtime rates. 

ARTICLE 15.00 NIGHT DIFFERENTIAL - POLICE OFFICERS, POLICE 
SERGEANTS & RECORDS MANAGER 

The Employer shall compensate Police Officers, Police Sergeants and Records Manager who on 
a regularly scheduled basis work fifty percent (50%) or more per month of their time on swing or 
graveyard shift, a night differential pay of $.50 per hour for hours worked on swing shift, and 
$.75 per hour for hours worked on graveyard shift. Temporary assignments or emergency 
assignments for a short period of time and not on a regularly scheduled basis shall not be eligible 
for night differential pay. 

ARTICLE 16.00 COURT APPEARANCES. 

Any employee who is required to testify in court in connection with an employee's usual, official 
duties, or in connection with a case in which the City is a party, during his normal working hours 
shall be allowed to do so without any loss of pay. For hours in court outside of normal assigned 
duty hours, employees shall be compensated for a minimum of four (4) hours pay at time and a 
half pay. If notice of cancellation is made to employee either through the recorded telephone 
message from the court or from the officer's personal voice mailbox by 6:00 p.m. the day prior to 
scheduled appearance, no payment will be made. 

ARTICLE 17.00 TRAINING COMPENSATION. 

Those positions designated by the Police Chief as Field Training Officer shall receive an 
additional five percent (5%) of salary, or pro-rated portion thereof, per month for the period 
actually engaged in training. 

ARTICLE 18.00 SPECIALTY PAY 

18.01 Individuals assigned to the Detective Bureau shall be additionally compensated at the rate 
of five (5%) percent of base pay for performing detective duties. It is understood that this 
assignment is a rotational one and movement from the Detective Bureau shall not be 
considered a disciplinary action unless done for disciplinary reasons. 

18.02 Police Officers assigned as Canine Officers will receive additional compensation at the 
rate of five (5%) percent of base pay for the care and maintenance of their dog, whether 
the actual time is slightly more or less than that. The parties mutually agree that this is 
adequate for care and maintenance. 

18.03 Longevity Pay: Upon completing 10 continuous years of service with the City, all 
employees covered by this MOU will receive additional compensation of five (5) percent 
of base pay. 

10 



24

ARTICLE 19.00 ADDITIONAL COMPENSATION 

19.01 FOR TEMPORARY ASSIGNMENT TO A IDGHER LEVEL VACANCY. 

An employee specifically assigned on a temporary basis to a higher level position shall be 
compensated at the pay rate for the higher level position if the service in such position 
exceeds a total of twenty days at anyone time in any twelve-month period, which 
payment shall be retroactive to the first day of such services; provided, however, that the 
employee meets the minimum qualifications for the higher level position and the full 
range of duties of the higher level position is assigned. The out-of-title pay level shall be 
the lowest step of the salary schedule of the temporarily assigned position that will 
provide a salary increase of at least 5%. 

19.02 POSITIONS DESIGNATED BILINGUAL. 

Upon the recommendation of the Police Chief or his designated representative and the 
approval of the City Manager, no more than two persons occupying a position designated 
as requiring fluency in a language other than English shall receive an additional five 
percent (5%) of salary. 

ARTICLE 20.00 LEAVES OF ABSENCE 

20.01 LEAVE MAY NOT EXCEED ONE YEAR. 

A leave of absence without pay may be granted by the City Manager upon the request of 
the employee seeking such leave. Each request will be evaluated on a case-by-case basis. 

20.02 NO LEAVE TO ACCEPT OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT. 

A leave of absence without pay may not be granted to a person accepting either private or 
public employment outside the service of the City of Capitola. 

20.03 MILITARY LEAVE. 

The Employer agrees to provide employees all military leave benefits guaranteed under 
federal, state and case law. 

20.04 LEAVE FOR mRY DUTY. 

Leave of absence with pay shall be granted to a person while serving on jury duty, 
including time spent going to and from court and serving on jury duty. Any jury fee 
awarded to such person shall be deposited with the City Treasurer. Any person assigned 
to an afternoon or evening shift shall be entitled to equal time off leave with pay from his 
or her next regularly scheduled shift for all time spent while going to and from court and 
serving jury duty. 

11 



25

ARTICLE 21.00 VACATION SCHEDULE. 

21.01 Effective 1211100, all employees in this unit shall accrue vacation as set forth in the 
following chart. The rates shown are for full time employees. On the effective date of this 
plan, all employees in the unit are full time. If a position hereafter is occupied on less than 
a full tinle basis, the rates of accrual will be adjusted as set forth in Section 4 (b) of the 
attached standard provisions. The rate at which vacation accrues is not affected by 
whether or not overtime is worked in a pay period. Vacation accrues while on sick leave, 
except that it does not accrue after the date of separation. Employees working 411 0 
schedules and those working 5/8 schedules will both be debited for 40 hours of vacation 
for each complete week (Sunday through Saturday) of vacation taken. For partial weeks, a 
411 0 employee will be debited 10 hours for each day of vacation taken that the employee 
would have been scheduled to work if vacation had not been taken; 8 hours for 5/8 
employees. 

Year of Service 
1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8-9 
10-14 
15-17 
18-19 
20+ 

Number of Hours/Years 
80 
80 
100 
100 
120 
130 
140 
150 
160 
170 
180 
200 

An employee is in the first 'year of service" from the first through the 365th day of employment 
and (except leap years) on the 366th day is in the second year of service. 

21.02 VACATION ACCUMULATIONS, MAXIMUMS, AND CASH OUT PROVISIONS 
(See Section 12 of attached Standard Provisions) 

21.05 VACATION ACCRUAL AND USAGE BEGINNING DATES 

Vacation will begin to accrue as of the date of employment. An employee may take 
vacation upon the completion of one year of service. 

21.06 MAXIMUM/MINIMUM ANNUAL VACATION LEAVE. 

In all instances, the Employee shall have the right to take the earned equivalent of one 
year's vacation accumulation at one time. In the event the Employee wishes to take more 
than one year's accumulation, approval of the supervisor is required. 

12 



26

21.07 EFFECT ON LEAVE WITHOUT PAY ON VACATION CREDIT. 

No vacation credit shall be earned during the period when an employee is absent on leave 
. without pay. 

21.07.01 WHEN VACATION MAY BE TAKEN - ALL EMPLOYEES BUT SERGEANTS 
AND RECORDS SUPERVISOR. 

21.07.02 

21.07.03 

On December 1st of each year, the Patrol Captain and POA President will post a 
vacation schedule calendar. All such employees will pick one "major" block of 
vacation in order of seniority. All vacation picks will be made with regard to Section 
21.07.03 of this Memorandum and current Department policy. The calendar will be 
submitted to the Patrol Captain no later than January 15th. 

Other vacation requests will be submitted in accordance with current practice and 
seniority will prevail in the event of conflicts between employees. The POA 
President and the Association will handle all conflicts. 

WHEN VACATION MAYBE TAKEN - SERGEANTS AND RECORDS 
SUPERVISOR. 

The Police Chief or his designated representative shall in each case detelmine when 
vacation leave may be taken. Sergeants and records supervisors shall be allowed to 
divide their vacation leave in any calendar year into segments. 

Seniority in the City service among employees in a classification and working unit, 
consistent with department operating requirements, shall be the basis on which 
vacation schedule conflicts are resolved. In any calendar year, the first such conflict' 
shall be resolved in favor of the most senior employee. Subsequent vacation 
schedule conflicts shall be resolved in favor of the most senior employee who has 
not, by virtue of his senior position, previously had such a conflict resolved in his 
favor during the calendar year. In the event of vacation schedule conflicts among 
such employees, all of whom have, by virtue of their senior positions, had such 
conflicts resolved in their favor during the calendar year, the senior employee who 
has had the least number of such conflicts resolved in his . favor shall prevaiL 
Vacation leave can be started on any day of the week. 

21.08 RATE OF VACATION PAY 

Compensation during vacation shall be at the rate of compensation that such person 
would have been entitled to receive if working at the time vacation occurs. 

ARTICLE 22.00 SICK LEAVE 

22.01 ACCRUAL 

Effective with the first full pay period following Council ratification of this agreement, sick 
leave accrues at rate of 120 hours per year for swom officerst and Community Service 

13 



27

Officers, and all unit employees working a 5/8 shift including Detectives and the Records 
Manager shall accrue ninety six (96) hours of sick leave per year. The rate at which 'sick 
leave aCcrues is not affected by whether or not overtime is worked in a pay period. As 
stated in Section 15 of the attached Standard provisions, "sick leave accrues on a prorated 
basis, based upon a 30 day month." 

22.03 LABOR CODE SECTION 4850 

Nothing in this article will be deemed to supersede Labor Code Section 4850. 

22.04 SICK LEAVE USAGE 

A 411 0 employee will be debited 10 hours for each day of sick leave taken that the 
employee would have been scheduled to work if sick leave had not been taken; 8 hours 
for a 5/8 employee. 

22.05 MEDICAL REPORT. 

To the maximum extent allowable under the Family and Medical leave Act and the 
Family Rights Act, the Police Chief, as a condition, of granting sick leave with pay, may 
require medical evidence of sickness or injury acceptable to the Police Chief, which may 
include a statement of diagnosis and treatment from a licensed physician or a medical 
clearance to return to work. Absent exceptional circumstances, no medical evidence will 
be requested for absences of three or less consecutive days. 

22.06 EMERGENCY LEAVE. SICKNESS IN IMMEDIATE FAMILY. . 

Leave of absence with pay because of sickness or injury or disability in the immediate 
family of an employee may be granted by the Police Chief during the time reasonably 
necessary to care for the sick person or arrange for care of the sick person by others, but 
not to exceed the amount of accrued sick leave of such person. Time taken for leave of 
absence under the provisions of this subsection shall be deducted from the accrued sick 
leave of such person. For the purposes of this subsection "immediate family" means 
mother, step-mother, father, step-father, husband, wife, son, step-son, daughter, step
daughter, foster parent, foster child, or any person sharing the relationship of in loco 
parentis; and when living in the household of the employee, a brother, sister, brother-in
law, sister-in-law, mother-in-law, father-in-law and grandparents. The chief's 
discretionary authority under this section does not lessen any employee rights under the 
FMLA or CFRA. 

22.07 SICK LEAVE CASH OUT -

Sick Leave cash out rights and limitations are set forth in section 14 of the attached 
Standard MOU Provisions, subject to the following additional provisions. "Cashable sick 
leave," as used in this section, means the amount of sick leave that an employee could 
cash out under Section 14 of the attached Standard MOU provisions, if the employee's 
separation date was the date of the computation. Employees who have cashable sick leave 

14 



28

may cash out that sick leave, subject to the following provisions: 

A. Such accelerated cash out shall take the form of a contribution to the 
employee's deferred compensation account (presently administered by ICMA) 
and may not exceed the amount the parties believe is allowed tax-deferred 
treatment under applicable law. 

B. No accelerated cash out will occur until the three-year period that precedes 
employees "normal retirement date", as that term is used in deferred 
compensation plans. For the term of this agreement "normal retirement date" 
is age 50 for safety members (sworn officers) and age 55 for other employees. 

C. Under no circumstances will the amount converted exceed the amount of 
cashable sick leave, nor leave the employee with less sick leave than necessary 
to cover the waiting period of the applicable Employer provided Disability 
Insurance Policy. 

D. The City Manager, in reviewing requests pursuant to this section, could reject 
any request that the City Manager believes would leave the employee without 
an adequate amount of sick leave. "Adequate amount" means an amount of 
sick leave that would meet the purposes of sick leave, i.e., to adequately 
protect an employee from loss of monthly cash flow due to sickness or injury, 
after taking into account the employee's rights under the City-provided 
disability insurance policy and other relevant information. 

E. The City manager may reject such requests if he determines that the City has 
insufficient funds available. 

F. In addition to the cash out rights set forth in sub-section paragraphs A -E 
above, an employee with cashable sick leave, regardless of hislher normal 
retirement date, may cash out up to eighty hours of cashable sick leave for any 
fiscal year, provided a written request, specifYing the number of hours, is 
delivered to the City Manager's Office no later than the April 15 that precedes 
the fiscal year of the payout. Payment will be made immediately after the City 
Council adoption of the budget for the fiscal year, or August 1, whichever is 
earlier. Any sick leave cashed out pursuant to any of the provisions of this 
section 22.07 will correspondingly reduce the total number of hours of 
cashable sick leave. (First Amendment dated 3/7/01) 

22.07.01 SICK LEAVE CASH OUT FOR SPECIFIED EMPLOYEES 

Administration of the Sick Leave Cash Out for those employees designated by 
the May 1, 1995 "Individual Sick Leave Maximum" agreement is detailed in 
the May 22, 2003' letter from the City Manger in Attachment E 

22.08 DEATH IN IMMEDIATE FAMILY. (See Section 15 of Standard MOU provisions) 

15 



29

ARTICLE 23.00 WAGES (SEE ATTACHMENT F). 

All wages for employees covered by this Agreement shall be paid in accordance with the 
provisions of the attached wage schedule and progression through the steps will be in accordance 
with section 6 of the attached standard provisions. 

ARTICLE 24.00 GRIEVANCES 

24.01 DEFINITION. 

A grievance is defmed as an allegation by an employee or group of employees that the 
Employer has failed to provide a condition of employment, which is established by law, 
Memorandum of Understanding, by written City or departmental rules, provided that the 
enjoyment ~f such right is not made subject to the discretion of the Police Chief or the 
Employer by the terms of this Memorandum of Understanding and, provided further, that 
the conditions of employment which is the subject matter within the scope of 
representation as defined in California Government Code Section 3504. 

24.02 DEPARTMENT REVIEW AND ADJUSTMENT OF GRIEVANCES. 

The following is the procedure to'be followed in the resolution of grievances. 

24.02.01 An employee 'having a grievance shall have the right to consult with and be 
assisted by a representative of his own choice in this and all succeeding steps 
of this subparagraph 23.02 and may thereafter tile a grievance in writing with 
his immediate supervisor. Within five actual working days after receipt of any 
written grievance, the immediate supervisor shall return a copy of the written 
grievance to the employee with his answer thereto, in writing. 

If the grievance is not resolved at the first level, the employee shall have five 
actual working days after receipt of the answer within which to file an appeal 
with the Captain. The Captain shall have five actual working days in which to 
review and answer the grievance in writing. If the grievance is not resolved at 
this second level, the employee shall have five actual working days after 
receipt of the answer within which to file an appeal with the Police Chief. The 
Police Chief shall have five actual working days in which to review and 
answer the grievance in writing. If the grievance is not resolved at this third 
level, the employee shall have five actual working days from receipt of the 
answer within which to file an appeal with the City Manager. 

24.02.02 The City Manager shall have five actual working days in which to review, and 
if necessary, hold hearings, and answer the grievance in writing. Unless 
waived by the mutual agreement of the employee or his representative and the 
City Manager, a hearing is required at this step, and the employee, and his 
representative, shall have the right to be present at, and participate in such 
hearing. The time limit at this step may be extended by mutual agreement 
between the City Manager and the employee or his representative. The Union 
may, in its own name, file a grievance alleging that the Employer has failed to 

16 



30

provide it some organizational right which is established by law, provided that 
such right is not made subject to the discretion of the Police Chief or 
Employer. Such Union grievances shall be filed with the City Manager and 
heard and determined pursuant to the provisions of this step of the grievance 
procedure. 

24.02.03 In the event that the grievance is not resolved at the City Manager's level, the 
Employee may, within ten (10) working days, request that the grievance be 
heard by the City Council. 

24.03 EFFECT OF F AlLURE OF TIMELY ACTION. 

Failure of the employee to file an appeal within the required time limit at any step shall 
constitute an abandonment of the grievance. Failure of the Employer to respond within 
the time limit at any step shall result in an automatic advancement of the grievance to the 
next step. 

24.04 LIMITATION ON STALE GRIEVANCES. 

A grievance shall be void unless presented within twenty-one (21) calendar days from the 
day upon which the Employer has allegedly failed to provide a condition of employment, 
or within twenty-one (21) calendar days from the time at which an employee might 
reasonably have been expected to have learned of such alleged failure to provide. In no 
event shall any grievance include a claim for money relief for more than the twenty-one 
day period plus such reasonable discovery period. 

24.05 EXCLUSION OF NON-RECOGNIZED ORGANIZATIONS. 

For the purpose of this section, the provisions of Article 4.00 of this agreement shall not 
be construed to limit the employee's right of selection of a representative to the extent 
that the agents of any other employee organization which is not party to this agreement, 
are specifically excluded from so acting. In those cases in which an employee elects to 
represent himself or arranges for other representation, Association shall have the right to 
participate in the resolution procedure for the purpose of protecting the interest of its 
members in negotiated conditions of employment. 

ARTICLE 25.00 DEPARTMENTAL VEmCLES AND EQIDPMENT. 

25.01 Patrol Vehicles (Defined). Any motor vehicle as defined under the provisions of Sections 
415 and 165 of the California Vehicle Code. 

25.02 All necessary repairs and maintenance of vehicles (as defined 'in Section 25.01) shall be 
performed as necessary to insure the safety of the operator of the vehicle. 

25.03 Under no circumstances will a Supervisor or the Department require an employee to 
operate an unsafe patrol vehicle or other equipment. 

17 



31

25.04 An employee may refuse to operate a vehicle that is unsafe. The watch commander shall 
determine the vehicle's condition upon an employee complaining of safety hazards. The 
patrol vehicle shall not be used until repaired if a determination is made of safety 
problems. 

25.05 Routine maintenance of a patrol vehicle shall be no less than required by the 
manufacturer. Only high quality parts and tires will be used on the vehicles. 

25.06 Capitola Police Officers' Association may review and make recommendations on any 
new patrol or emergency vehicle purchased or leased by the City for use by its members 
prior to putting out bids for purchase purposes. 

25.07 Any equipment necessary for the safety of any operator shall be provided for the 
departmental vehicles. 

25.08 All patrol vehicles will be fitted as nearly as practical with identical controls for activating 
emergency lighting, siren and communication equipment. As new equipment is 
purchased, every effort will be made to locate the controls in the same general area in the 
patrol vehicle. 

ARTICLE 26.00 RETIREMENT - PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM. 

26.01 Non-Sworn: The City participates in the Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) 
operated by the State of California. Benefits provided are detailed in separate 
publications, depending upon the plan. City agrees to provide 2.5% at 55 Retirement 
Plan for non-sworn employees in the Unit and the single-highest-year option. Each 
member of the bargaining unit agrees to a cap on the amount that the City will pay to 
PERS. The cap for existing employees is 16.488%. For all eligible employees hired on 
or after August 5, 2012 the City's PERS contribution rate shall be capped at no more than 
11.488% of reportable salary. Once an employee hired on or after August 5, 2012 accrues 
five (5) years of total service, s/he shall be entitled to the same terms that apply to all 
other current employees. EPMC and the Value of EPMC will be the same for employees 
hired after August 5, 2012 as employees hired prior to that date. 

All employees hired prior to August 5, 2012 the City's contribution cap shall remain as 
stated above at 16.488%. 

26.02 Sworn: The City pays both employee and employer contributions to the plan and has the 
3% at 50 program for safety employees. The parties understand that when the City's 
PERS Excess Assets have significantly decreased, the City's Total Employer Rate will 
increase: Each member of the bargaining unit agrees to a cap on the amount that the City 
will pay to PERS. The cap for existing employees is 28.291 %. For all eligible 
employees hired on or after August 5,2012 the City's PERS contribution rate shall be 
capped at no more than 23.291 % of reportable salary. Once an employee hired on or after 
August 5, 2012 accrues five (5) years oftotal service, s/he shall be entitled to the same 
terms that apply to all other current employees. EPMC and the Value ofEPMC will be 
the same for employees hired after August 5, 2012 as employees hired prior to that date. 

18 



32

All employees hired prior to August 5, 2012 the City's contribution cap shall remain as 
stated above at 28.291 %. 

26.03 Should at any time the PERS costs to the City exceed the percentages defmed above, the 
employees agree that the portion of the employer paid employee costs or employer paid 
contributions will be reduced and assumed by the employee in an equal percent or any 
part of a percent that actual PERS costs exceed the above caps. If at any time the 
employer paid employee costs or employer paid member contributions are wholly paid by 
the employee and PERS costs continue to increase the employee will also assume those 
increases. It is agreed by the City and the Association that this provision expires with the 
termination of this Memorandum of Understanding and is open for negotiation for 
renewal of the next Memorandum of Understanding. 

26.04 With regard to the "Amortization of Side Fund" portion of the employer rate, ie the 
portion of the employer rate attributable to the City's unfunded liability, if PERS should 
in the future decrease that rate as a direct result of a City payment to reduce the Side 
Fund, the City's cap would reduce by the percentage decrease that PERS identifies as 
resulting from the City payment. This also applies to the 2007 Capitola Pension 
Obligation Bond. 

26.05 The City shall expeditiously implement the PERS Credit for Unused Sick Leave and 
employee paid Military Service Credit options. 

ARTICLE 27.00 PHYSICAL EXAMINATIONS 

City agrees to pay up to $100 over the amount covered by the health insurance for an 
annual physical exam. 

ARTICLE 28.00 FAMILY & MEDICAL LEAVE ACT OF 1993 

The City shall follow the provisions provided for family leave as specified in the federal 
Family & Medical Leave Act of 1993 (FMLA) , and the California Family Rights Act 
(CFRA) as they apply to public employers. 

ARTICLE 29.00 MISCELLANEOUS 

29.01 POA agrees to waive the Police Department's past practice of giving a 30-day notice for 
the current shift change. 

29.02 During the term of this agreement, each sworn employee that, in response to the Chief's 
directive, purchased a tape recorder before 2/15/01 will be reimbursed up to forty ($40) of 
the recorder's cost. After that date the City will choose between either supplying such 
recorders, or reimbursing the employee up to $40 for such recorders. 

19 



33

ARTICLE 30.00 SAVINGS CLAUSE. 

If any provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid by operation of law or by any court of 
competent jurisdiction, or if compliance with enforcement of any provision shall be restrained by 
any tribunal the remainder of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby, and the parties shall 
enter into negotiations for the sole purpose of arriving at a mutually satisfactory replacement for 
such provision. 

ARTICLE 31.00 ENACTMENT 

This Memorandum will be effective on August 5, 2012. 

CITY OF CAPITOLA 

Jamie Goldstein 
City Manager 

Date 

CAPITOLA POLICE OFFICERS' ASSOC. 

Date 

20 



34

Section 1. 
Section 2. 
Section 3. 
Section 4. 
Section 5. 
Section 6. 
Section 7. 
Section 8. 
Section 9. 
Section 10 
Section 11. 
Section 12. 
Section 13. 
Section 14. 
Section 15. 
Section 16. 
Section 17. 
Section 18 
Section 19. 
Section 20. 
Section 21. 
Section 22. 
Section 23. 
Section 24. 
Section 25. 

CITY OF CAPITOLA 

STANDARD MOD PROVISIONS 
ADDITIONAL MOD PROVISIONS 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Standard MOD Provisions 

Effective Date 
Wage Schedule/Hourly Rates 
Service 
Types of Appointment 
Beginning Salary Rates 
Advancement Within the Schedule 
Promotion to New Position 
(Reserved) 
Personnel Rules 
Effective Date of Pay Increase 
(Reserved) 
Vacation 
(Reserved) 
Sick Leave Cash Out 
Sick Leave Accrual 
Bereavement Leave 
FMLA and CFRA 
Leave of Absence Without Pay 
Accruals after Date of Separation 
Insurance 
Mileage Reimbursement 
Drug Policy 
F air Labor Standards Act 
Grievance Defined 
Layoff Procedures 

ATTACHMENT A 

1 



35

STANDARD MOU PROVISION 

. 1. Effective date. August 5, 2012 through June 30, 2013 

2. Wage Schedules/Hourly Rates 

The wage schedules contained in, or attached to, this Memorandum of Understanding set forth 
the base pay, subject to such adjustments (such as longevity pay) as are specifically set forth in 
this MOD. Letters, such as "A" to "E", designate the respective pay steps for each position. The 
rates contained in the wage schedule do not include overtime or benefits 

Whenever it is necessary to compute an hourly pay rate in order to apply any provision of this 
MOU, that will be done by multiplying any monthly rate by 12 in order to derive an annual rate, 
and dividing the annual rate by 2080 (or proportionate number of hours for part time positions, 
e.g., 1040 for a half-time position). 

3. Service 

The word '''service'' as used in this Memorandum of Understanding means continuous full-time 
service in the position in which the employee is being considered for salary advancement, service 
in a higher position, or service in a position allocated to the same salary schedule and having 
generally similar duties and requirements. A lapse of service of any employee for a period of 
time longer than thirty days by reason of resignation or discharge shall serve to eliminate the 
accumulated length of service time of such employee, and any such employee re-entering the 
service of the City shall be considered as a new employee. 

4. Types of Appointment 

The following types of appointment may be either full-time or part-time, as established by the 
City Manager. 

a. Probationmy appointment 

A probationary appointment is for a specified period of time, during which job 
performance is evaluated as a basis for subsequent regular appointment 

b. Regular appointments. 

A regular appointment ordinarily follows successful completion of a probationary 
. . 

period. "Regular" means a position that is, regardless of the number of hours worked 
per week, intended to be continuous and uninterrupted (except for authorized paid or 
unpaid leave). Positions intended to be seasonal, of a limited term, on call only, 
emergency, intermittent, substitute, or on any other irregular basis are not "regular." 
The positions set forth in the wage schedule are all regular positions, and unless 
specifically stated, the pay rate is applicable to a full-time position. All positions 

2 



36

covered by this section are half time or more. 

c. Acting appointments 

An acting appointment occurs when an employee is temporarily assigned to, and 
performs all the duties of, a position other than the position he/she nomlally occupies, 
or when an employee is assigned an acting appointment pending evaluation of the 
employee's ability to perform the duties ofthe position. 

d. Accruals for part time positions. 

When a position is less than full time it will be classified by a fraction. For example 
- "half-time" regular employment is expected to average 20 hours per week, "three

quarters" employment is expected to average 3 0 hours per week. Vacation accrual, sick 
leave accrual, Flex Plan contributions, holidays, personal holidays are paid or accrued 
according to these classifications. Thus, compared to a full time employee, a half-time 
employee, even if actual time occasionally exceeds or falls below 20 hours in a week, 
when compared to a full time employee: receives one-half the Flex Plan contribution; 
accrues one-half the number of hours of vacation or sick leave; and is paid for four 
hours on a holiday or personal holiday. 

5. Beginning Salary Rates 

A new employee's base pay shall be computed by using the rate shown as step "A" in the 
schedule allocated to the class of employment for which the employee has been hired, except that 
upon recommendation of the department head under whom the employee will serve and with the 
approval of the City Manager, such new employee may be employed at a higher step, depending 
upon the employee's qualifications. 

6. Advancement Within the Schedule 

The following provisions govem salary advancement within the schedule 

a. Probationary advancement 

Upon successful completion of probation, an employee (except an employee that was 
hired at the top step) will advance one step. 

b. Regular Merit advancement 

An employee, may be considered for advancement upon completion of the minimum 
length of service specified for step increases. Unless specifically otherwise stated, this 
will be 12 months for full-time appointments and proportionately adjusted for other 
appointments. For instance half-time appointments will be evaluated for regular merit 
adjustments every 24 months. Advancement to higher steps shall be granted only for 
continued meritorious and efficient service and continued improvement by the employee 
in the effective performance of the duties of the position held. 

3 



37

c. Special Merit advancement 

When an employee consistently demonstrates exceptional ability and proficiency in the 
performance of assigned duties, the supervising department head may recommend to the 
City Manager that said employee be advanced to a higher pay step without regard to the 
minimum length of service provisions containcd in this MOD. The City Manager may 
approve and effect such advancement. 

d. Denial of advancement 

When an employee has not been approved for advancement to the next higher wage step, 
such employee may be reconsidered for such advancement after the completion of three 
months of additional service. 

7. Promotion to New Position 

When an employee is promoted to a position in a higher classification, such employee shall be 
assigned to step "A" in the appropriate schedule for the higher classification. However, if such 
employee is already being paid at a rate equal to or higher than step "A", he/she shall be placed in 
the step in the appropriate salary schedule which will grant such employee a salary increase of 
not less than 5%. 

8. (Reserved) 

9. Personnel Rules 

The City retains the right to amend and create per~onnel rules, provided they are not in conflict 
with specific provisions of this MOD. Where appropriate, City will meet and confer with 
applicable employee group or groups (Government Code Section 3300 and following), before 
amending or creating new personnel rules. 

10. Effective Date of Pay Increase 

A merit pay advancement for an employee shall become effective on the first day of the pay 
period in which the minimum length of service has been satisfactorily completed. All other pay 
rate changes, except those given a specific calendar date herein, shall become effective at the 
beginning of a two week pay period as approved by the City Manager. 

11. (Reserved) 

12. Vacation 

a. Accumulation 

(1) An employee may generally not accumulate more than, but instead each year must 
cash out pursuant to Section 12.c, below, all accumulated vacation in excess of 63 
days (504 hours); except that 

4 



38

(2) An employee who had accumulated more than 63 vacation days (504 hours) as of 
6/30/94 may maintain that level: provided, however, that if accumulated vacation 
falls below 63 days (504 hours), the provisions of (a) (1), above, shall thereafter 
apply. 

b. Vacation Cash Out OnTermination 

Upon termination, an employee shall be paid for all accumulated vacation to the 
separation date, at a rate equal to 100% of hislher. current hourly pay rate. Alternatively, 
an employee may individually contractually establish, in writing, with the City Manager, 
mutually agreeable provisions regarding the timing and terms of the cash payout. 

c. Vacation- Mandatory Cash Out Before Termination 

An employee who has accumulated more than 504 hours as of the last pay period in April 
of any year shall be paid in cash at a rate equal to 100% of hislher current hourly pay rate 
for all hours in excess of 504 except that such payment shall not exceed the employees 
annual vacation accrual amount These cash out payments will be included with the 
paycheck for the fIrst full pay period in May. 

13. (Reserved] 

14. Sick Leave Cash Out 

a. AT TERMINATION, PRIOR TO 6/30/04: An employee, upon termination from City 
service having completed at least ten (10) years of continuous service with the City of 
Capitola, will, subject to subparagraph (b) through (g), receive payment for 100% of 
the accumulated, unused sick leave. Employees shall have the option of applying 
unused sick leave as a service retirement PERS credit. Employees may, with City 
Manager approval, individually contract regarding the timing of the pay offs. 

b. Any such sick leave cash out will be limited to 240 hours, subject to the following 
exception. An employee who accumulated more than the 240 hours of sick leave as of 
6/30/94 is entitled to cash out that extra (i.e., over 240 hours) sick leave. However, if 
any portion of such extra sick leave is used after 6/30/94 and before the date of 
termination, it may not again be built up for cash-out purposes, except to the extent that 
it has fallen below 240, 180, 120, or 60 hours, respectively in accordance with 
subparagraphs (c)(d),(e),and (:t). 

c Effective July 1,2004, the amount of time available for cash-out shall drop to one 
hundred and eighty (180) hours. Concurrently, employees with at least ten (10) years of 
service credit as of June 30, 2004, shall have the right, but not the obligation, to sell 
back to the City sixty (60) hours of sick leave, at 100% of employee's 2004/05 hourly 
pay rate. 

d. Effective July 1,2005, the amount available for cash-out shall drop to one hundred and 



39

twenty (120) hours. Concurrently, employees with at least ten (10) years of service 
credit as of June 30, 2005, shall have the right, but not the obligation, to sell back to the 
City sixty (60) hours of sick leave, at 100% of employee's 2005/06 hourly pay rate. 

e. Effective July 1,2006, the amount available for cash-out shall drop to sixty (60) hours. 
Concurrently, employees with at least ten (10) years of service credit as of June 30, 
2006, shall have the right, but not the obligation, to sell back sixty (60) hours of sick 
leave, at 100% of employee's 2006/07 hourly rate of pay. 

f. Effective July 1,2007, the ability to cash-out shall end entirely. Concurrently, employees 
with at least ten (10) years of service credit as of June 30, 2007 shall have the final right, 
but not the obligation, to sell back sixty (60) hours of sick leave, at 100% of employee's 
2007/08 hourly rate of pay. 

g. Cash out shall not be available for employees hired after 6/30/98. 

15. Sick Leave Accrual 

Sick leave accrues on a pro-rated basis, based upon a 30-day month. 

16. Bereavement Leave 

Leave of absence with pay because of death in the immediate family of an employee shall be 
granted for a period not to exceed three days. Entitlement to leave of absence under this section 
shall be in addition to any other entitlement for sick leave, or any other leave. For purposes of 
this section, "immediate family" means mother, step-mother, father, step-father, husband, wife, 
son, step-son, daughter, step-daughter, brother, sister, foster parent, foster child, brother-in-law, 
sister-in-law, mother-in-law, father-in-Iawahd grandparents. 

17. FMLA and CFRA 

The City shall follow the provisions provided for family leave as specified in the federal Family 
& Medical Leave Act of 1993 (FMLA), and the California Family Rights Act (CFRA) as they 
apply to public employers. 

18. Leave of Absence Without Pay 

A leave of absence without pay may be granted by the City Manager upon the request of the 
employee seeking such leave, but such leave shall not be for longer than one year. 

19. Accruals after Date of Separation 

An employee's separation date is the last date actually worked, except that an employee who, as 
of the last day worked, has not, used all of his/her yearly allotment of vacation may extend the 
separation date by the number of days necessary to reach the full yearly allotment. "Yearly 
allotment" means the amount of vacation that the employee was entitled to accrue in hislher last 
year of employment. Unless otherwise provided by state law, none of the following accrue after 
the date of separation: sick leave, vacation, personal holidays, holiday pay, administrative leave, 



40

Flex Plan contributions, or the insurance described in Section 20. 

BENEFITS 

(Regarding benefits available to part time employees, see Section 4, above.) 

20. Insurance. 

The City will continue to provide term life insurance in the amount of $50,000 and long-term 
disability insurance. 

21. Mileage Reimbursement 

Employees required to use their personal vehicles while on City business will be reimbursed at 
the rate set by the Internal Revenue Service. 

MISCELLANEOUS 

22. Drug Policy 

The City is implementing its "Drug Free Workplace Policy." 

23. Fair Labor Standards Act 

All positions included in this Memorandum of Understanding are covered by appropriate 
sections of the Fair Labor Standards Act of 1935, as amended. 

24. Grievance Defmed 

A grievance is defined as an allegation by an employee or group of employees that the employer 
has failed to provide a condition of employment, which is established by law, the terms of this 
MOU, or by written City or departmental rules, provided that the enjoyment of such right is not 
made subject to the discretion of the employer by the terms of this MOD and, provided further, 
that the condition of employment which is the subject matter is within the scope of representation 
as defined in California Government Code Section 3504. 

25. Layoff Procedures: 

Layoffs shall be governed by Personnel Rule 12, in addition, all sworn members ofthis unit, if 
being reinstated after a layoff, must be certified by a physician as able to fully perform the duties 
of the sworn position. The member may choose their own physician, or at the member's request 
the City will pay for its choice of physician. The sworn member must have a current basic 
POST certificate prior to reinstatement. 



41

. ' .. 

9 •••• 

ATTACHMENT B 

.. Departm~ntal Orde~ No. 2' 
, . 

. MANPOWER DEPLOYMENT . , 
'.' ... 

EffeCtive Date: Dece.mber 15, 1987· " , 
• .". • '. ~' • I I '. • , • 

" "Polity' St~temi3rit:, T ci . establish' minimum. staffipg levels. and holiday . 
. ·staffing levels which will. ensure the. security of the citizens of CapitQia . 

. ' . and"the safety aftbe offiCers Of Capitol'a Pblice Depaiirnri Additionally f • 

: this policy defjnes the proce~~re to be used whs'1 going "out-of ... service~' . 
for any reason.and the. procedure to be used when ~aking breaks as 
defined in th~ M$morand~m of Unde,rstanding. . I' 

, . . 

I,· Minimum Staffing: I " 

. . . '. 

. . ' .. A.' The niinimum number 'of' patrol p~rsonnel, oli' dutY will be ·twp;·' 
. including the Supervisor or OIC. .. '. ' .' , . ", . 
.' " . '.. 

8.' 'To ensL.:!·re a'dequate supervision b~iween the "ho~~s Of Q3Qo-
, 0700, at least.~ne officer with th~ status of Field Training Officer 

. ' (FTO), 'Senior or, Master. OffiCer as 'defined .,In Personnel: 
. Directive '~o.· 4, shall be,assigned to the graveyard shirl. An 
. Field'T'ra)ning"Officer (FTO) .. acting in th~ capaci1;Y of OIC will 

r.eceive ·FTO pay.,' up·'to. ,$85 a· month, for 'that .period' of "the 
month,: which they act in an :oic .~E!=Icity. Only one FTO per' . 
team .is eligible to receive 'OIC paY' per shift or pay period. 

, ,. I . 

. C. :At any time a' se~~a~t 'i~ not: on duty, the .hi~hest"~nking··Ff'O,.'· :. 
Senior or Master' Officer on diJty Will b~ designated as tt"!e 

. Officer in 'Charge. The, Officer in charge will ~e, responsible ,for 

. overseeing ·the ~mooth ,operation of patrol' f4Jn~i6ns, which 
, inolude re~i~wing and appr~ving reports. 

'II.. All e~ployee;il ar~ to repo~ ready for ~utyl at ~he t~rne assigned . 

. " ". U~.. Holiday StErmng ... ~: ' 
" , . 

A. .. ' No tim~ off. ~nl ~~, .. gr~nte.;:I.io_p!;;ltrol· personnel.on-.the .following . , , ' 
._ ..... _~ ··boljp~Yi.9.rbgll:r:j§y_w.e.:e.ker.Ids.:.~ .. :....- -, -~ .. --:;." -- - :.. - - -- - -.- .. _ .... ,_: .. - -.. 

1. ' New Year=s Eve . 

2. Halloween 



42

, " 

I .,' 

" 

':,.J 

Depa~mental Order No.2 

3, . Art CJnd \Nirl$ Festival (Saturday &, Sunday) 

4. Labor Day WeeRend (Friday, Saturday, S~nday, & Monday).'" : 
, . ' 

, i' , 

,5. Begonia Festival Na!-ltioal Parade' weekend (FridaYi 
Saturday, Sunday) , , 

6. 'Memorial Day Weekend (Friday, Saturday, Sund~y'; & 
Monday) , " " ..' ,', 

, ' . 
7. July 4th If it falls on a Friday, Satur,day, Sunday,or MondElY; , 

then, no'tlme offwill b!9 granted Friday! Saturday, Sunday 
or Monday:, ' , , " ' 

, , ,B. Overtime shifts will be wOrked by officers on, the fon~wing, 
"holidays: 

Julv 4th, 
" 

Both teams work, unless"the summer'sohedule is in 'effect. .'. . 
" 

Wharf ... to .. Wherf Race , " 

, :' , 80th teams day shift. 
Both- teams' Cdver shift, 

Begonia Festival Weekend 

- Team I graveyard shift work Saturday 21 OO..Q1 00 
Team I swing shift work Saturday 1700~100 
Team,lI day shift work Sunday 1100 .. 1500 
-T~a.mrlJ cover shift Wt;lrk Sunday 1100 ... 1500 " 

C. It will b~ the responsibility of 'the individual submItting the' 
, -request tGl-deteimine-whetMer time~ff~requests -ar.e-inconfiict -
, ·with this'policy~ Etrors-made';jn-grantingiime-'-off'in' OtJnfnctwith 

this p'olicy will be resolved by canceling the time off in order. to 
maintain-staffing levels. ' ' 



43

" 

Departmental'Drder No.2 
" , 

,IV. Going' Out .. Qf .. Servioe 

All unjf~rnied personnel will advise the di~patcher, by ,radio of 
location and/or telephone numper wh!3n going cut-of':'Ssrvicefor any , 
reason, even thoL!gh th~y have a walkie-tl?1lki~ in their possession. , 

,<":" ,V.; Lo~ticn and Number of. Units Ta~ing Breaks 

. ~. 

" , 

" ' 

• .1, E 

. A. Uniformed personnel,wiJI riot"· go beyond the limits" on' the' 

·Chi 

, attached map for' breaks and.will. not \sa\le the city limits for . 
breaks without th.e permission of their supervisor., . Officers., . 
intending to take a break will obtain permission from'their. . 

, 'supervisor and advise dispatch, ,by racli~, of their ,st~tus an~ '. " ' 
. locatiort. Uniformed personnel"will I)ot'make ~my discretionary· , 

'trips ciutside the city Hnii~, without e~ress permission from 
their supervisor wh;iJn there are only'two patrol persorinel on ' , 
,duty..' " " 

B .. ~o more: than tw~ unitS will be permitted out en breaks ·at t~e 
: ,same time1 except with 1Me sergeaJit1s permission.. " '. 

. , . ,.' . . . :. 

'"'' 

", 

Revised: 12/26/90 I' 5114191 1'11/1'91 1' 512419315121195, 7/1197, 2f26/01, 
8/24/01,9/21/01 1 9/03/03 . " 

.. ~. 
. ' 

... : .... " .~ .-........ - .:... ",:.,- -.... .-- .. - . -. - --.... - - ..... 
. .1. -. ~._ ....... ~ .. , _. --. - -- .• _-- ._ ..... . -'-<oj-' .- .. ,-::- - .. - .-.... -.. - -. '''-',' --.- -- -:-~'" .- -

. . ~/. 



44

... :). 

) 

• . I 

EDUCATI.o'NAL INt~NTIVE-PARTIGIPANTS 
. AS OF AUGUST5 1 2004 

. . 

ATTACHMENT C 

The Individuals on this list are 'ellglble for 1000
;'; Education Incentive Program 

reimbursement as detailed In· Article '.13.01 of the PoHce Office rsJ Assoolation, 
MemQrandum of Understanding dated JuIY'1 ~ 2004 - June 3D, 2008. . 

K'ai'Drechsler . 

. ' Brian Martin . 

Todd Mayer' 

James t0urpJiy 

. Jason'Smith 

" 

.. ~ . 

. ", . 

... ~:;:- .. ~~~-, _ .. --.- - -- -..... -:-....... - .. -.. _.,;... .. -:- - - _.- : .-. ' .......... -- .- -- ..... : .. - _ .. - _ ... - -.- - '-"'.- '-'--'- .- . __ .. _ ... : ... - ... -' .; .......... -

') 
., ,-



45

,~ 
) 

ATTACHMENT 0 

Personnel Directive No.4 

CAReER 'OFFICE~ 'PROGRAM . 
. '. . . . 

Effective Date: Nov~mber 1.5, 1Q88 
. , 

Policy Statement: To d.evelop a .meaningf~laareer officer program intended to 
encour.a·ge 'qfficers to develop their Ptofessional experience .through education 
and training, 'coupled with·.competent Jcib performance.' .. 

1. Senior Officer I' 
.. , 

',: A. . insignia .. 

. . , . 

. .... 
1. 'Qorporal' stripes on all shirt~ and j~ake~s . 

• • '. • I _.' • 

B.. Qu.alifi"cations, 
. ., 

"1.. ,Five years. 'with, the Capitola. Po'lice Department as ·a.· full4ime 
'. sworn Police officerj and ... . 

. 2 ... ·An ~'Effective - Meets Standar.ds"·· annual e~a'iuation for ·the 
previo.us three yearsl with 'no che¢klist factors .m~rked..below 
meets standards@ ,for the previol:ls year; . ~n.d 

... ~.At least 30 ~oll~ge ~ern~~er.units (academy ~nit5 included) . 

. c: . . . S~lectipn.'· 

t. ,The officer ~haii send 'a' memo requesting tD6. design~tion to 
his/her imrned.iate· supervisor. . ' . 

·2. The superVisor will. determine. whether.. the. officer meets the 
.oriteria for the p~~itlon" and ,make recommendations to. the 
Diyision Captain.' , . , 

3. The Divi~i~n' Captain will review the. recommen'dations al!d send" 
.. the information.;tp ~he Chief ~f polid.e. for final. appro.val. . 

D. Responsibilitie~.' " 

... 

.. '. - ,~.:... -- .. ~- _.-: ..... -:- .- - - "1: "'-Trfe ·dffi6er fn0sfrriaififaiif'lIEffecfive -~ -tvlei9ts-Sta-nClafasli annLial· - " .-... -
:" ) .' . ,evaluations, with no checklist factors marked. below meets 

". /. . 
. standards. 

. . 
2. The officer will provide guidance and/or training to other .officers 

·.as needed. 



46

.) 

Personnel Dlr.ectlve No, 4 - 2 

I. E. Removal 

1, . Upon receipt of one "requlres Improvement oheokllst factor/I the 
offioer must achieve a "meets standardsll in all check list factors 
In the offlcer=s next evaluation to· retain the "Senlor Officer I" 
status. 

'2, Upon receipt of one "Not Satisfactory" evaluation, the Chief of 
Police may remove the status. . . 

3. The status may be removed at the discretion of the Chiefof Police. 

F. 'Reinstatement 

1. The officer must qualify again, 

11. Senior Officer \I 

A. Insignia 

1. Corporal.stripes on. all·shirts and jackets .. 

8, Quaiificati~n~ .. ' 
, . 

1. . Eight years with the Capitola Police Department as a 'fllll-~ime 
sworn. Police Officerl and 

Exception: A lateral entry officsrl·atthe GIi'scretion oHhe Chiefof 
Polics, may' use 50 percent. af' prior service· towards this' 
achievement.' " 

.' 

" 2. . Possess an Interm'ecllate P .O,S.T. Cf?rtificate, and" 

, '. S. . An "Effectiye .. Meets Standards" annual', evalu~tion. for .t~e 
previous .three years with no checldist factors m~rlced below 

. Ameets stand.ards@ and . . 
~ "I" 

4. Must meet the tequi~ements set forth for I\Senior Officer ~. 

-- .. 5';" . Minimum::af 'one 'ys'aras"a S-enlar'Offic'er '1· imrrredlately"prior-to' " ... '. ~ 
application, ,.' 



47

,oj 
Personnel Directive No,. 4 ~ 3 

II. 

'\ .. '. . 
.. ,,/). .. ; . ., 

o. Selection 

'1. the affio~r shall send a' memo. requesting th~ deslgn~tiori to. 
his/her immedlat,e supervisor. " '.' 

, 2.' The superVisor wU( determlrie wheth'er the' officer -'meets the 
. criteria fo.r, the position and make recommendations to I the 
Division Captain., ' ' ' . ' 

3. The O'j0ision Captain will review 'the, recomme'ndations and s~~d 
, tbe informati~ri to the Chief of ~olice for.final approv?L ' . " .. ' 

" ' '. 
,D',. ,Respensibll,itie~' .. 

" 

'1. 

. " . 

Th~ . offl'cer 'must maintain' "Effective' .. ' :Meets Standards"· 
. evalu'ations,: with no. checklist facters marked belo.w Arrieets' 
Standards@, .' .-...'.' . .' , .' " : ,' .. 

. 2 .. , . The o.ffi~er will prqvld~ gulda~~e and/or :training t~ other off.i~!3rs 
, '. : as 'needed; , , . .' .. . ,',. .' . 

• ' • • • . • • '0" 

'3. Will act as'the .a.,I .. e. in th~ absence of a ~ergeant or master' officer~' . . . ; . 
. ' .. 

4. M~y 'perftmn other supervisC?ry 'd~tie~a~ directaQ ,by th~ division', 
captain.:' ,', ' , '. . 

, . 
E. ' Reinoval '. " . 

F. 

" '. 

1'., : U~o~ r<3ceiPt' of on~ nrequires'lmp~ove~ef.1tll . ch~ckIist f~cto~, th~, ' 
offioer must achieve Ameets standardsll ;in ,all checklist fa'ct6~s by 
the next, evaluation to ret;:lin the ','Senior Dffics'r 11" status. 

. ..' 

2. . 'upon 'receipt of one ;'Nt?t Satisfactor:t' e~al~atj~nl' the Chief of 
Police m·aY.remove the Senior Officer'\I status.' ,". . 

, '. 
3. The status may be- removed 'at the discretion of the Chief of Police,'- , 

Reihstatement ' 

~ --'-~~)'" -,- "-' -,~ ". - .. ,._ .. '-'1. Tfieofffcsr'musfqu~iify agaJn:--- ,--, _ .. - '-' --, .. _'.".,-, -- ~,-... -' -, ",- .. ,_.
,-j 



48

/--, 

) 
-... /' 

~. 

Personnel C)lrectlve No, 4 - 4 

Ill. Master Office.r 

A., Insignia 

1', A C~pltola Police Officer badge with the title "Master Offl~sr'!' 

2, Gold and blaci~cqrporaPe s.tripes with star on all shirts and jaok~ts, 

8" . Qualifications ' 

" 

1'.. Twelve 'years with the Capitola Police Department as· a fullHtlme 
sworn' Polioe 'Offioer, and ' , 

. ' 
.... Exception: A lateral entry .offlcerj at the discretion of the Chief of 

Police, may use 50 percent of prior service tGJ~ards this achievement. 

2.' Possess an Advanced \=I.O,S,1. Certificate, ,arid . . . . 

.' '3, An ,lIEffective ... Meets Standards" ,ann.ual evaluation 
with no checklist factors marked below Ameets standards@ for-' 
the. previous five years, ~nd' . . . ,,"' : 

, 4., Must meet the requirements 'set forth for "Senior' Officer. II." ' 

Minimum of two years as a Senior Officer lllmmediate\y prior. to 5. 
.. application. . " ' 

c. Sel'ectlon' , ~. 

1. The officer shaH send a ,memo. requesting the· deaignation of 
his/her- immediats',supEirylsor; , " . 

2. The supervisor 'will. determine whether- the offioer- meets the" 
oriteria for the posltbn' and make recommenaations to the,' " ,', 
Division Captain. . ' 

',3. The Division taptain will rS\ilew the recommendations and send 
the ,information to the Chief of Pollce for final approval.-



49

oo--...., 
~ 

-0 0) Personnel Directive No.4 - 5 

III. . D. Responsl.bititles 

i" The. offioer must maintain,lIEffeotive ~ "M~ets Standardsll annual 
-evaluations, with no cheokllst factors, marked below Anieete 
, standards@ and maintain'. the -high standard which earned their 
appointment to this status. .' '. 

, . . 
.' 2. ' .. The officer· must 'exhibit leadership qualities and provide. 

guidance and/or training to other officers as need~d. _ 

3. The officer will be the OJ.C, in the ·absel1ce of a supervisor. If 
: two Master Officers .are' working the supelVisorls :r.espqnsibility 

-' . '!Viii be determir.lsd 'by the. date of appointment to, Master Officer .. ' 

4 •. ·The officer·may be' assigned as an acting supervisor; and other' " 
, superVisory dutle.s- 'as' directed by the division captain, . 

E', Re.mov:al 

. ·1. Wpon ·r.eceipt of one IIrequires Imprci~ement" ch~cklist factor on 
the_ .officer=s evaluation, the 'officer mu~t achieve' -a ,lImeets
starydan;lsll i.t1.all checklist factors by the; next evaluation .. ' .' . 

. 2r .. Upon rec.eipt. of, a' "Not Satisfactory';' evaluation! the Chief ·of 
. ,Police may remove th~ .Master .officer status. . . , . 

. . . ~ . 

3. . Th.e status' may be remoVed at the discretion Qf the· Chief of 
P \

' ., .. - .,.. " ,-
a Ice. . ',. ' .. ' . . . : 

.' 

. F. Reinstatement· 

1. Tbe . officer must achieve two consecutive years of "Effective 
Meets Standafdsll

' evaluations, with no checklist factors marked 
bel~w "meets st~ndards! nand the'hadge mas 'be: r~Issued. ' 

·l~ .. , ; Exe~utive ~ppointment~~~ 
. 4· . " 

A. The aforemef:1tio(1ed criteria is established 'as "a guide.line for staff 
. . -- ,-' . :pers.~mnel-·to-· u.tilizs:in. o·e_vE!.Iu;:tting -.offic~r . .qualificatiQl'Js; .- Jh!3 Ohi.!3f of ._ 

- _ - .~-.:.~.--~ - '~-. ::-:-._ .. -'-;-- .~·-:--:Pdlioe;::r.rowever;:l:ias:tl:i e-Q isCfetiof.f=te nma-Rs appo j·fifme Ii:t's-as'-qeerfied-' -.- --.. -'''-
_.) necessary ~o 'fulrill the departmental mission. 

Richard J. Ehle 
Chi-ef of Police· 



50

ATTACHMENT E 

Office of the 

Cip,' Manager 
----------------~----------------~--~~----~------~~~~~" 

MEM;ORANDUM 

TO:' , " A~ected Employees and 'File 

FROM: City Ma~tager 

DA~: May 22! 2903 

SUBJECT: Seoiiou',14. of'theStanclard MOD Ptovision~ickLeave Cash Out 

This'memora:n.ctu~ further explains' section 14. oftheStandardMOUprov~siQns a:p.d is 'based UJl~n'a, 
,meeting the City' Manager ~ad with ,a group of affected empl.oye~s. 'The iilfQrmation: is, this 
memorandUm 'will \1e 'used to interpret section 14 ~~ ifthere.is any actual or perceived conflict between, " 

:' .. , this memorandum' and the language of section .14:D this memora'D:duril. shall prev.ail. : , 
. .. . 

, '1:. ' When charging ~eagai:i1~t ac6~ulited sick leave the'liOin's last accumUlated ~ha11 b~ fust 
", ' used. F or example~ if an employee has 500 hours pf ,cashable' siok leave as defined' in seCtion 

"j' , 14, and an additional acoumulation of250 hoUrs of non cas~ble sickleave,hourwhioh have 
./ " ' 'been aoquiredafter,the cashablenoUrwere acquire4~ any si61tleave taken shall aome first ' 

, from the .250 ,non cashable hours~ 1UltiI the non cashable siok leave 'i51 oompletely ,~onSum.ed, 

2. With.. regard to' siokleave ~ul:s aCQuttllllation,there are several :types of emp1~yees. One set 
of employ~es are those hired after6/30/98. These'eIn,ployees cannot accrue oashable siylc 
,leave nor have they ever aoorued oa~able siok leave. ' , , :', , " ' .' : 

3, ,A, second set of employees ~re those who hav'e a~cumulate~ more- than 240: 'hours of sick 
leave as- of 6/30/94, and who h~ve beEln employed for at least ten years. These ,employees are 
identified by name on' a list mafutained by the Executive A,ssismnt to the City Manager~ and 
these enwloyees have their cashabl~ sio.k leave capped at th~ amount acoumulatedon that 
6/30/94 date, and. this amount of cashab~~ sick leave shall remain as cash~ble sick U1ltil~ 1) 
,tillar any portion of.the caShable sicl\: leav~ is ,dashed 9ut, iIi which case the ~ount of 
accumulated cashable molt leave hours is pennariently red)lce~bY' the amoun~ ofhourB 

. caSh=d out and shall .. not ever bdncreased; 2) all or any portion of the cashable siok leave is 
reduced through use, in which case the amount ofcashab1e siok le:ave hours is permanently , 

, ' reduced by the number ~f.hours used and shall not ever be increased; 3) termin~tion, at 
" wJ,1ich time' all remaining cashable sick leave shall be cashed out, unless an agreement to, 
, extend the period, of cash out ,is ,reached between, the City and employee." , 

'" .. ' :.:,,," -.-.:, - .:.. '-4;- - .... : Th~;e~is;'ati~the~~e~te~6~ '~f~fupI~;~~~ ~li-6- ~~~T3bi9~'iaa:~46-6r;'le~s ~~~s 'of~cctini~la~ed:-
~' ') " siok leave, or who were employed on or before 6/30198 and will h,aye at least ten years of, ' 
' ...... j ,continuous service with the City. These employees can acoumulate a maximum cap of240,' 

hours of oashable siok and are subjeot to the reduotions in this maximum cap and other 
associated provisions identified in subparag:i'aphs 14,c through 14.f 0fthe Standard MOD 
provisions, ", 



51

CITY OF CAPITOLA 
INDIVIDUAL SICK LEAVE CAPS 
APRlL 2007 (before 2007 cash-out) 

GENERAL EMPLOYEES (Non-safety employees) . L 
. . A "L L 1. ~~u.:x-

oyo,Barbara . 115.18 4~~ 
Downe ;--~d 119. 4;..--6rO"" -:: S 0, . 7 L/ 
Kostelec, Danie' 83.10 - I.a 0 .~ d."3. ) 0 

Turcotte ~ Lo 0 -;::: (.::;.--: 

otal 336.07 -"'-_~--'-----

.-;'~....Q:.~ 

POLICE EMPLOYEES 

Martin, Brian 1,3"~tr.'8i (cashing (5ttrp-enrgreem~~~eaa-r>el'iercl;-'28f)5'~ RL-hRu{ 
Held, Thomas 517.68'- Ct1-P+R~ tJ 
Ink, Bruoe k+ifLe.J " 

---'~='~:';~:!~----~ ~~ N SLj &a-u.e 
Total 4,044.97 >< 0 f.o "/ " 

/ 

-ra{{~ ~{e)w ;2.007 

( 

t'-j,,£.- j\.(- C,,-) 



52

ATTACHMENT F 

POA Salary Schedule 

August 5, 2012 Step A Step B Step C Step D Step E Step F 

Community Service Officer $ 4,337 $ 4,554 $ 4,782 $ 5,022 $ 5,274 $ 5,538 
Police Officer $ 5,478 $ 5,752 $ 6,040 $ 6,342 $ 6,660 $ 6,993 
Records Manager $ 4,997 $ 5,247 $ 5,510 $ 5,786 $ 6,076 $ 6,380 
Sergeant $ 6,710 $ 7,046 $ 7,399 $ 7,769 $ 8,158 $ 8,566 



53

DEC-14-2006 16:53 

SIDE LETTER 
BETWEEN 

CITY OF CAPITOLA AND 

ATTACHMENT G 

CAPITOLA POLICE OFFICERS ASSOCIATION, REPRESENTED BY 
LIUNA, LOCAL 270 

WHEREAS; the City of CApitol.a (City) and Capitola. Police officers Association 
(CPOA)I represented by LIDNA, Loca1270 (collectively, the Union) previously entered 
into a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with effective dates July 1, 2005 through 
June 30. 2008; and 

'WHEREAS, the current MOD provides for the City to provide non-sw~m 
employees represented by LTIJNA/CPOA to receive the 2% at 55 California Public 
Employee Retirement System (PERS) retirement benefit. with a cap on the City's cost 
obligation to PERS of24.88% for non-sworn employees and with non-sworn employees 
to be responsible to pay any costs associated with an increase in the PERS r.rtes in excess 
of 24.88%; and 

VlHEREAS. the t.'Urrent MOD also states as follows: 

"Should at any time the PERS cost to the City exceed the percentag~s 
defined above, the employees agree that the portion of the employer paid 
employee costs or employer paid contributions will be reduced and 
assumed by the employee in an equal percent or any part of a percent that 
actual PERS costs exceed the above caps. If at any time the employer 
paid employee CO$.ts or employer paid member contributions are wholly 
paid by the employee and PERS costs continue to increase the employee 
will also assume those increases, It is agre¥ by the City and the 
Association that this provision expires with the termination oftbis 
Metnorandum ofVnderstanding and is open for negotiation for renewal of 
the next Memorandum of Understanding." 

"The City shall expeditiouSly implement the PERS Credit for Unused Sick 
Leave and employee paid Military Service Credit options." 

. WHEREAS, the City and Union have met and conferred in good faith rogarding 
enhancement of the City's PERS contract trorn2.0% at 55 to 2.5% at 55 subject to the 
conditions set forth in this Side Letter. 

IT IS HEREBY AGREED AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City and Union have agreed to enhance the City's retirement benefits 
contract with PERS for Miscellaneous employees from the current 2.0% at S5 formula to 
the 2.5% at 55 formula~ to be effective the first full pay period in January 2008) subject to 
the City's other Miscellaneous hru:gaUling UIlits agreeing to the PERS enhancement,. and 
subject to the Miscellaneous employees approvmg the PERS enhancement in a PERS 
election. lfthe PERS enhancemertt is approved in 3. PERS election. then beginriing the 
first full pay period in January 2008 v.ith implementation of the 2.5% at 55 enhanced 
benefit~ employees would "?e req'uired to pay any PERS cost amount in excess of 24.88% 



54

Side Letter Between 
City of Capitola and T.JfJNAlCPOA 

.Page2 

of salary, which is the current FY 200~7 rate und~ the 2.0% at 55 program. (lfthe 
PERS enhancement is not approved in a PERS election. there shall be nO change to the 
existing agreement and obligation of the City and employees with respect to retirement 
benefits.) 

2. The City and Union Win take all necessary actlonS I including an employee 
election, filing paperwork with PERS and anY'o1;her applicable organization.<;, and 
adopting any required resolutions~ to effectuate the PERS contract amendment from the 
2.0% at 55 plan to the 2.5% at 55 plan and to enSure that the employee's pa)'1l1ents to 
PERS, if .any~ will be tax exempt to the extent permitted by law. 

3. In connection with the PERS enhancement from 2.0% at 55 to 2.5% at 55. 
the City also will amend its contract with PERS to modify the employee member paid 
contribution (EMPC) from 7.0% to 8.0%. This change will not impact the City's cap of 
24.88%. 

4. Tn connection with the PERS enhancement from 2.0% at 55 to 2.5% at 55~' 
the City also will report total employee PERS cost-sharing contributions into the 
employees'mdividual retirement aCcounts. The City will contract with PERS to . 
establish a cost-sharing program and a'dopt resolution(s) as/if required to accomplish this 
reporting. This agreement to contract with PERS to estab1ish a cost-sharing program 
shall not impact the City's cap of24.88%. 

" With regard to the "Amortization of Side Fund" portion of the employer 
rate. i.e. the portion of the employer rate attributable to the City's unfunded liability, if 
PERS should :in the future decrease that rate as a direct result of a City payment to reduce 
the Side Fund) ~e Citts cap of24.88% would reduce by the percentage decrease that 
PERS identifies as resulting from the City payment 

6. The "Single Highest Year" option shall, for the dura.tion of this MOU, 
continue to be an existing feature of the Plan benefit provided employees 

7. PERS Credit for Unused Sick Leave option and PERS Credit for Military 
Service Option are existing featutes·ofthe plan. 

8. The parties undersbmd and agree that this Si.de Letter shall.not be 

~era~ until approved by the Capitol. ~&: 

Leslie ~ Richard Hill . 
LIUNA; Local 270, for the City Manager 
Capit<;>la Police Officers Association Cit of Capitola . 

Dated: . /¥¢6 .. Dated: 12~M 
876898-1 

TOTAL P.02 



55

.... 

,) 

SIDE LETTER 
, BETWEEN, 

ATTACHMENT H 

, ,CITY OF CAPITOLA AND 
CAPITOLA'POLICE OFFICERs ASSOCIATION, 

REPRESENTED BY,LIUNAJUPEC, L<?CAL '792 

WHEREAS, the City of Capitola (Citr) and Capitola Police Officers Association 
(CPOA), represented by LIUNAfUPEC~ Local 792 (collectively, the Union) have met 
and conferred in good faith regarding salary & benefit increases and working conditions; 
and ' 

WHEREAS, the City and the Union have agreed. 011 a new MOD with a term 
, beginning on 'July 1, 2008 and expiring on June 30,201,1; and, , 

, . WHEREAS, one of the items. agreed upon is.a longevity increase offive (5%) 
, , percent ofbas'e salary.for ten (10) years of continuous service;: and, 

WHEREAS, it-is understood that the r~ason the City, agreed to the longevity 
specialty pay was to promote ~plQyee retention. ' 

IT IS HEREBY AGREED AS FOLLOWS: ' 

1. Forthe'purpose' of a unique situati~n where Sergeant Darrell Hamson "'Yas 
, 'previously emplqyed,by the City for 14 years, separated from the City and then was 
reemployed in. 2002, he will be 'eligible'fOJ; the 5% longevity increase effective July 1, 
2008. ' , 

'2. The parties understand and agree that this Side Letter shall not be 
operative unless and until ~eMem:orandum ofU:p.derstanding is approved by the 
Capitola, City Council. ' ",' 

apitolaPolice, Officers Association 

£!2ZJ£4· Richard Hill, Ity l'4anager ' 

Dated: 74, ·td'& 

Dated: 7 - 1.. -' 0 8 

"" '\ 
( 
'<.:x,,,) H:\Human Resources\Unions\POA \SIDE LEITER _ Dharrison.doc 



56

SIDE LETTER 
BETWEEN 

ATTACHMENT 2 

CITY OF CAPITOLA AND 
CAPITOLA POLICE OFFICERS ASSOCIATION, 

REPRESENTED BY LIUNAlUPEC, LOCAL 792 

WHEREAS, the City of Capitola (City) and Capitola Police Officers Association 
(CPOA), represented by LIUNAIUPEC, Local 792 (collectively, the Union) have met 
and conferred in good faith regarding salary & benefit increases and working conditions; 
and 

WHEREAS, the City and the Union have agreed on a new MOU with a term 
beginning on August 5, 2012 and expiring on June 30, 2013; and 

WHEREAS, the City and the Union recognize that due to the downturn of the 
economy, the opportunities to attend regular training sessions that are put on by other 
agencies on Wednesdays has been significantly reduced. The decline causes the Sworn 
Officers who report for duty for training purposes when there is no training available to 
utilize vacation hours. 

IT IS HEREBY AGREED AS FOLLOWS: 

1. To mitigate for the reduction in training opportunities, Sworn members of the 
POA will be granted 20 "Training Leave Hours" on August 5,2012. The Training 
Leave Hours are not cashable and are not cumulative. All hours not used by June 30, 
2013 will expire. 

2. It is recognized that this is oflimited duration and will expire with the MOD. 

3. The parties understand and agree that this Side Letter shall not be operative 
unless and until the Memorandum of Understanding is approved by the Capitola City 
Council. 

Capitola Police Officers Association City of Capitola 

Jamie Goldstein, City Manager 

Dated: --------

Dated: -----------

H:\Human Resources\Unions\POA \SIDE LETTER_training hours.doc 



57

FROM: 

Item #: 8.0. 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF AUGUST 9,2012 

CITY MANAGER'S DEPARTMENT 

SUBJECT: PATRICIA WAKEFIELD EARLY RETIREMENT CONTRACT 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

1. That City Council direct the City Manager to execute the proposed Early Retirement 
Agreement. with Patricia Wakefield on behalf of the City; 

2. Amend the FY12/13 Budget by transferring $39,000 from the City Managers Salary & 
Benefits budget to the Compensated Absences Fund, and 

3. Authorize the City Manager to fill the vacant position up to 75% time. 

BACKGROUND: The City has experienced negative budget impacts due to several significant events which 
include the depletion of the Reserve Funds to pay for the March 2011 disaster, loss of the Redevelopment 
Agency, and the prolonged economic downturn. The City is a service based organization which relies upon 
personnel to deliver those services, therefore the most significant cost to the General Fund is staffing. The 
City Receptionist was planning to retire in three years, but has agreed to retire early in August 2012 in 
exchange for $39,000 which is the equivalent amount to purchase three years of CalPERS service time that 
the employee would have earned. 

DISCUSSION: The Receptionist position is currently a full time position with a total cost to the City of $70,000 
annually. A potential plan to reduce the position to 75% time, and to hire an entry level staff person, will 
initially reduce staffing costs approximately $30,000, with decreased saving in future years. 

FISCAL IMPACT: The proposed Early Retirement Agreement will increase costs by approximately $4,000 in 
the current fiscal year. Thereafter the net savings to the City will be between $20,000 - $30,000 year. 

ATTACHMENT: 
1. Early Retirement Agreement 
2. Budget Adjustment 

Report Prepared By: Lisa G. Murphy 
Administrative Services Director 

Reviewed and F~~ 
by City Manager 

R\Agenda Staff Reports\2012 Agenda Reports\City Council\08-09-12\8.D. Early Retirement-Wakefield FINAL.doc 



58

ATTACHMENT 1 

EARL Y RETIRElVIENT AGREEMENT 

This early retirement agreement ("Agreement") is entered into August 9, 2012· by and 

between the City of Capitola ("City") and its employee Patricia Wakefield ("Employee") .. 

WHEREAS, Employee has been employed by the City since April 4, 1990; 

WHEREAS, in accordance with the City's contract with the California Public Employee 

Retirement System ("PERS") and the City's Memorandum of Understanding with the 

Employee's bargaining unit, Employee is currently eligible to retire from City employment and 

receive retirement benefits from PERS; 

WHEREAS, given the current economic circumstances being experienced by the· City 

and the City's resulting need to curtail the expenditure of City funds including funds directed to 

the maintenance of the City's workforce, it is in the City's interest that Employee exercise 

Employee's prerogative to retire from City employment in the immediately foreseeable future; 

WHEREAS, Employee is willing to accommodate the City by retiring from City 

employment sooner than Employee had planned on doing so under certain terms and conditions 

which are acceptable to City. 

NOW THEREFORE, City and Employee hereby agree as follows: 

1. Employee hereby agrees to retire from Employee's City employment with an effective 

retirement date of no later than August 17,2012 ("Employee's Retirement Date"). Employee's 

signature on this Agreement constitutes Employee's official notice of retirement to the City and 

·the City's signature on this Agreement constitutes the City's official acceptance of that 

retirement notice. 

2. In consideration for Employee's agreement to retire as set forth in Paragraph I, the City 

agrees to remit to Employee a payment of Thirty Nine Thousand Dollars ($39,000) ("Retirement 



59

Contribution") payable in two installments as follows: $34,000 in the Employee's paycheck for 

the pay period ending August 18,2012 and $5,000 payable ih the pay period ending January 19, 

2013. Employee acknowledges that said Retirement Contribution is properly characterized as 

City employment compensation and hence subject to the same City withholding requirements to 

which the City must adhere with respect to Employee's regular bi-weekly payroll payments. 

3. In consideration for the City's payment of the Retirement Contribution,Employee agrees 

to accept payment of compensation for accrued, but unused, vacation as of Employee's 

Retirement Date and according to the attached Reconciliation schedule. Employee 

acknowledges that said periodic leave balance payments may be subject to the same withholding 

requirements as Employee's regular payroll payments and the Retirement Contribution. 

4. City and Employee agree that, upon Employee's election to do so, City and Employee 

will cooperate with one another in establishing a deferred compensation plan relative to the 

Employee payments called for by this agreement (Le., the Ret4:ement Contribution and the 

accrued vacation leave payments) so as to reduce, to the extent legally authorized, Employee's 

tax liability incurred in conjunction with the receipt of such payments. Possible deferred 

compensation plans may include, but are not limited to, a 457 Plan or 401(a) Plan established in 

cooperation with the International City·Manager's Association, an IRA or any other tax-deferral 

instrument. Employee shall be responsible for any administrative fees incurred in connection 

with the establishment of any such plan and Employee acknowledges that the City cannot, and 

does not, warrant the efficacy of any such plan to address the Employee's specific economic 

needs. Employee is responsible for obtaining independent legal and tax planning advice in 

deciding to pursue such a deferred compensation plan, and concerning the economic advantages 

that the Employee can expect to realize from any such deferred compensation plan. 



60

5. Attached is a Reconciliation Schedule that identifies the Retirement Contribution and the 

payout of accrued leave, and other modifications to Employee's final compensation amount. 

6. It is hereby understood and agreed that no promises, representations, ~derstandings or 

warranties have been made by any party other than those which are expressly ·contained herein. 

This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding of the parties on the subjects covered. The 

parties acknowledge and represent ·that they are voluntarily entering into this Agreement and that 

this Agreement shall be interpreted in accordance with the plain meaning of its terms. 

Dated: ____ ~-__ _ 

Dated:--1-~~-_5_~ ~I ~=--=-,-----

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

John G. Barisone, City Attorney 



61

RECONCILIATION SCHEDULE 

.. . 

All cash due Employee as identified in this schedule may be deposited in Employee's 401(a) or a 
. 457 plan or a combination of contributions in each such plan, or a tax deferred Health . 
. Reimbursement Arrangement (HRA). It is Employee's responsibility to establish a valid plan 

that is eligible to receive any such deposit(s). 

The following amount is due to Employee as may be adjusted in this schedule. Final Vacation 
Cash out may be calcUlated during Employee's last week of employment. 

Early Retirement Payment 

Final Vacation Leave Cash Out: 
Hours on Retirement Date 

Amount Due 

TOTALDUEENWLOYEE.~$~ ______ _ 

Payable as follows: 

$39,000 

Hours 

Included in employees paycheck ending August 18, 2012: Vacation Cash Out: $ ___ _ 
August 24, 2012: 
457 Plan: $34,000 

January 25, 2013 
457 Plan: $5,000 

It is agreed that the above payout terms in this Reconciliation Schedule are acceptable. 

. Patricia Wakefield 

Jamie (Joldstein 
City Manager 

Date 

Date 



62

ATTACHMENT 2 
City of Capitola Budget Adjustment Form 

Date 

Requesting Department 

Administrative 
Council 

2216-00-00-000-3910.100 

Total 

City Manager 

. Item # 
Council Date 
Council Approval 

8/9/2012 

Com Absence-Trans In Gen F 

8. D. 
8/9/2012 

39,000 

39,000 

2216-00-00-000-xxxx.xxx Camp Absence-pymt to emj2loYE 39,000 
1000-99-99-000-4910.206 Gen Fund-Transfer to Co~ Ab~ 39,000 
1000-10-11-000-4110-010 Wages-Ace (39,000) 

Total 39,000 

INetImpact 

Purpose: To remove Receptionist Staffing cost (10 months) and 
Transfer from General Fund to Compensated Absences for payout 

DepartmentHeadAPprov~ ~ 
Finance Department Approval ____________________ _ 

City Manager Approval 

8/3/20123:31 PM 8.0. Attachment 2 Budget Amendment.xlsxGeneral Fund 



63

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

Item #: a.E. 

MEETING OF AUGUST 9,2012 

FROM: CITY CLERK'S OFFICE 

SUBJECT: COMMISSION ON THE ENVIRONMENT RECRUITMENT (COE) 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Accept the Commission on the Environment's recommendation to find 
one COE seat vacant, and approve request to proceed with recruitment for the vacancy of the 
unexpired term ending December 2012. 

DISCUSSION: Council Member appointed Commission on the Environment member Uriah Langmeyer 
has not attended a meeting since his appointment on September 8, 2011. Formal communications by 
phone and email has not resulted in improved communications regarding his absence, nor improved 
attendance. 

FISCAL IMPACT - None 

ATTACHMENTS 

1. Susan Westman's email on COE's recommendation 

Report Prepared By: Michele Deiter, CMC 
Records Coordinator 

Reviewed and ~ed 
By City Manag : 

\ \ 
\ ' 

R\Agenda Staff Reports\2012 Agenda Reports\City Council\08-09-12\8.E. COE Recruitment 8-9-12_stf.doc 



64

Deiter, Michele 
~c_ ... _ .. ~ _________ ~.~~~. 

From: Westman, Susan 

Sent: Wednesday, July 25, 201211:24AM 

To: Deiter, Michele 

Cc: Goldstein, Jamie 

Subject: Commission on the Environment 

Hi Michelle, 

Page 1 of 1 

ATTACHMENT 1 

Uriah Langmeyer did not attend the Commission on the Environment meeting last night even though he said he 
would. He has not attended a meeting since September 2011. The Commission would like the City Council to 
remove him as a member and appoint someone new. He has not attended a meeting since They want the Youth 
Member to be open until filled. Susan 

7126/2012 



65

CITY C·OUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

Item #: S.F. 

MEETING OF AUGUST 9, 2012 

FROM: COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR 

SUBJECT: PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION MINUTES OF AUGUST 2,2012 

1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Commissioners: Ed Newman, Gayle Ortiz, Mick Routh, Linda Smith and 

Chairperson Ron Graves 
Staff: Consultant Susan Westman 

Senior Planner Ryan Bane 
Minute Clerk Danielle Uharriet 

2. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

A. Additions and Deletions to Agenda - NONE 
B. Public Comments - NONE 
C. Commission Comments - NONE 
D. Staff Comments - NONE 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

A. July 5,2012 Regular Planning Commission Meeting 

APPROVED 5-0 

4. CONSENT CALENDAR 

A. 4895 CAPITOLA ROAD #12-064 APN: 034-023-14 

Sign Permit for a wall sign and monument sign in the CN (Neighborhood Commercial) Zoning 
District. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Bruce Handloff, filed 5/7/12 
Representative: Mardeen Gordon 

CONTINUED TO THE SEPTEMBER 6, 2012 PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 4-0 
COMMISSIONER NEWMAN ABSTAINED. 

B. 215 CAPITOLA AVENUE #12-083 

Sign Permit for a wall sign in the CV (Central Village) Zoning District. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Paul Ballantyne, filed 6/20/12 
Representative: Bo Zirnkowski 

APN: 035-231-07 

CONTINUED TO THE SEPTEMBER 6,2012 PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 5-0 



66

CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION MINUTES - AUGUST 2, 2012 

5. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

A. 205 SACRAMENTO AVENUE #12-013 APN: 036-125-03 

Coastal Development Permit and Design Permit to discontinue a nonconforming mobile home 
park and construct a two-story single-family residence in the R-1 (Single-Family Residence) 
Zoning District. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
This project requires a Coastal Permit which is appealable to the California Coastal 
Commission after all possible appeals are exhausted through the City. 
Owner: Peter Tiemann, filed: 2/6/12 
Applicant: Frank Ho 

APPROVED 5-0 WITH CHANGES: 
Condition #9: The final landscape plan shall be submitted with the building permit application and will 
include the specific number of plants of each type and their size, as well as the irrigation system to be 
utilized. Two 15-gallon trees shall replace each tree removed. Front yard landscaping shall be 
installed prior to final building occupancy. 

Finding D: The Planning Commission finds that the Mello Act is not applicable for this project as the 
underlying R-1 Zoning does not allow for feasible replacement housing on site, nor does the City of 
Capitola have more than 50 acres of vacant private residential land in the coastal zone available for 
housing. 

B. 205 SACRAMENTO AVENUE #12-014 APN: 036-125-15 

Coastal Development Permit and Design Permit to discontinue a nonconforming mobile home 
park and construct a two-story single-family residence in the R-1 (Single-Family Residence) 
Zoning District. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
This project requires a Coastal Permit which is appealable to the California Coastal 
Commission after all possible appeals are exhausted through the City. 
Owner: Peter Tiemann, filed: 2/6/12 
Applicant: Frank Ho 

APPROVED 5-0 WITH CHANGES: 
Condition #9: The final landscape plan shall be submitted with the building permit application and will 
include the specific number of plants of each type and their size, as well as the irrigation system to be 
utilized. Two 15-gallon trees shall replace each tree removed. Front yard landscaping shall be 
installed prior to final building occupancy. 

Finding D: The Planning Commission finds that the Mello Act is not applicable for this project as the 
underlying R-1 Zoning does not allow for feasible replacement housing on site, nor does the City of 
Capitola have more than 50 acres of vacant private residential land in the coastal zone available for 
housing. 

C. 1823 49th AVENUE #12-090 APN: 034-023-36 
Fence Permit to construct a 6' stucco wall in the front setback for a single-family residence in 
the R-1 (Single-Family Residence) Zoning District. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Craig Sala, filed: 7/17/12 
Representative: Bill Fisher 

APPROVED 4-0 WITH CONDITIONS. 4-0. COMMISSIONER ORTIZ ABSTAINED. 



67

CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION MINUTES - AUGUST 2, 2012 

D. 2265 41 st AVENUE #12-092 APN: 034-191-03 

Design Permit to construct fagade improvements to a medical office building, and a Sign 
Permit for wall signs in the CC (Community Commercial) Zoning District. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Capitola ASCRE, filed: 7/19/12 
Representative: Avila Construction, Inc. 

6. DIRECTOR'S REPORT 

7. COMMISSION COMMUNICATIONS 

8. ADJOURNMENT 

The Planning Commission adjourned the meeting at 8:50 p.m. to a Regular Meeting of the Planning 
Commission to be held on Thursday, September 6, 2012 at 7:00 p.m., in the City Hall Council 
Chambers, 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, California. 



68

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

Item #: B.G. 

MEETING OF AUGUST 9,2012 

FROM: COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

SUBJECT: RESOLUTIONS OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
AUTHORIZING SUBMITTAL TO THE CALIFORNIA COASTAL COMMISSION 
FOR THE CERTIFICATION OF AN AMENDMENT TO THE LOCAL COASTAL 
PROGRAM PERTAINING TO SINGLE ROOM OCCUPANCY PARKING 
REQUIREMENT AND EMERGENCY SHELTERS 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt two Resolutions authorizing staff to submit California 
Coastal Plan amendments for two Ordinances approved by City Council on April 12, 2012. 

BACKGROUND: Typically the City Council is requested to approve Resolutions authorizing 
staff to submit changes to the California Coastal Commission with the second reading of 
Ordinances that affect the City Coastal Land Use Plan. Staff overlooked including these 
Resolutions when Ordinance No. 967 pertaining to parking requirement for single room 
occupancy, and Ordinance No. 968 pertaining to emergency shelters were approved. 

DISCUSSION: Staff is requesting the City Council approve the attached two Resolutions 
authorizing the submittal amendments to the Coastal Commission. 

FISCAL IMPACT: N/A 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Resolution authorizing submittal to the California Coastal Commission for the 

certification of an amendment to the Local Coastal Program pertaining to Emergency 
Shelters; 

2. Resolution authorizing submittal to the California Coastal Commission for the 
certification of an amendment to the Local Coastal Program pertaining to Emergency 
Shelters. 

Report Prepared By: Susan Westman 
General Plan Coordinator 

Reviewed and F~ed 
by City Manager \-t-e-

R\Agenda Staff Reports\2012 Agenda Reports\City Council\08-09-12\8.G. Staff Report Coastal Commission Resolution Rev Su.doc 



69

ATTACHMENT 1 

RESOLUTION NO. 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
AUTHORIZING SUBMITTAL TO THE CALIFORNIA COASTAL COMMISSION FOR THE 

CERTIFICATION OF AN AMENDMENT TO THE LOCAL COASTAL PROGRAM 
AMENDING CHAPTER 17.36.040 OF THE CAPITOLA MUNICIPAL CODE 

PERTAINING TO ADDING SUBSECTION H. EMERGENCY SHELTERS 

WHEREAS, the City of Capitola's Local Coastal Program (LCP) was certified by the 
California Coastal Commission in December of 1981 and has .since been amended from time to 
time; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Capitola's General Plal1;.yv~~>ad9PJ~d on September 29, 1989, and 

has been amended from time to time; and /t":!'·;/":.~,;"}~t,,>. 

WHEREAS, the City of Capitola reVi\?~~:~:I~~d use deSign~~ibri§;\~nd zoning in order to 
regulate appropriate use of land and to protect\t~~,r::>ublic health, safety, a'nCl\W~lfare; and 

,\;-;,~<~\ 

WHEREAS, on December 18" 2009, in ~a~p~c:lqIJ4~·iith the calif~~hich Environmental 
Quality' Act (CEQA), a draft Initial SJI.{ijf .aQd Negativ~<9¥~laration ~ereprepar~d for the City's 
Housing Element; and;\;' .~;~;;> .,'; 

WHEREAS, from D,E'}gember 18,~'QQ~,' t~'~~~§h;.JClnuarY.~t;'7D1 D, a 3D-day review period 
was advertised in the'p~p;et:'~Oq. the draftr~port \fo{~~:;a~~.il.a~le 'fbtteview and no comments or 
questions were recely,~~';du'ring'tff~;r~view p~'rl~~!:~~a)' ';;::;;:"~~;>1 

WHEREAS, o~JanU9ry 21 ,\g01 0, the Planning Commission reviewed the Initial Study and 
Negative Dec:;Jarptionfor th'~;hiqU~ir,"l9'~ste91~nt and;i~9ommended its adoption by the City Council, 
and the~~ggttveb.~.8Iwati0r1;qp:~'gfudes·th~~.\~(). ,sig'~jftcant environmental impacts are associated 
with th,~:::pr6ject; and ."/;' '~";~:-"f' ',' ""-" .. , ':)-:,'=~'::~-{7 " 

"'-,- -,- ~<~ '_,;0, '''·;:-;.:;:~·'''L~ 

V\fHp~~AS, on F~b~~~ry 3,~~10,the City Council adopted the Housing Element 2007-
2014 which~n~ic::ipated the ad'bp!i(ln of ~r~~,sonable accommodation Ordinance; and 

WHEREAS,tti,ePlanning{p,ommission reviewed the draft Emergency Shelter Ordinance on 
October 22, 2011; arid '\:' 

;- ';~;-{ ~' 

WHEREAS, theCitY.:Gouncil reviewed the draft Emergency Shelter Ordinance at its 
meeting held October 27,2011, and directed modifications be made to the draft ordinance; and 

WHEREAS, at its regular meeting held on March 22, 2012, the Ordinance adding Section 
17.36.040 was passed to a second reading and was finally adopted by the City Council on April 12, 
2012. 



70

RESOLUTION NO. 2 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of 
Capitola hereby finds, as follows: 

1. The City of Capitola intends to carry out this amendment to its Local Coastal Program in 
a manner fully consistent with the California Coastal Act. 

2. This Local Coastal Program Amendment is consistent with the Local Coastal Land Use 
Plan and the Coastal Act. 

3. The Local Coastal Program Amendment containeclJn:'prdinance No. 968. Ordinance 
adding Section 17.36.040 H pertaining to emerg~Jicyshelters of the Capitola Municipal 
Code in the City's Land Use and Zoning and BuHdir)gRegulations, to require Consistency 
with the Local Coastal Program and Cqast~1 A~t..are hereby found to be in full 
conformance with the City of Capitola G~nerarPlan,'th~;,City of Capitola Local Coastal 
Program, and the provisions of the Calif9rQi~;Coastal Act~Qq will secure the purposes of 
the Zoning Ordinance, the General E'1<:If1Z~nd the Local Coa~t?1 Program, and is hereby 
authorized for submittal to the California Coastal Commission f6Bcertification. 

":--:>~~::~.:.:--, .. ', :.>:-:,--- . 

4. This LCP Amendment will take effect aufon:lC3ticallx\lpon Coastal CO,rnmission approval; 
however, if the Coastal C,qrnmission modifies:t/1~,amendment, modific~tions will require 
formal action by the City ofG?~it9Ia. " " 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the above anclfotegaing resolutipn was passed and adopted by 
the City Council of the Cjtyp(Capitola on t~~ 9th day of August, 2012; py the following vote: 

,;j;(;;< 
,.". -. AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN:' 

Michael Termini, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

_____________________ ,CMC 

Susan Sneddon, City Clerk 

R:\Agenda Staff Reports\2012 Agenda Reports\City Council\08-09-12\8,G. Resolution Emerg.Shelter.docx 



71

ATTACHMENT 2 

RESOLUTION NO. 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
AUTHORIZING SUBMITTAL TO THE CALIFORNIA COASTAL COMMISSION FOR THE 

CERTIFICATION OF AN AMENDMENT TO THE LOCAL COASTAL PROGRAM AMENDING 
CHAPTER 17.51.130 TO THE CAPITOLA MUNICIPAL CODE PERTAINING TO PARKING 

REQUIREMENT FOR THE SINGLE ROOM OCCUPANCY UNIT 400 SQUARE FEET OR LESS 
IN THE CITY'S LAND USE AND ZONING AND BUILDING REGULATIONS 

WHEREAS, the City of Capitola's Local Coastal p(9~fa'm (LCP) was certified by the 
California Coastal Commission in December of 1981 and';~aS0~ince been amended from time to 
time; and <:,::';00:;\;/ 

-',':.:.:;,-r.:' 

WHEREAS, the City of Capitola's Gen~{?f;;~ian was ad~~\¢~';9n September 29, 1989, 
and has been amended from time to time; an,d<,;;:~':;u ' '", 

~·.~3:-~?ti;'~ '--'jJ:'" .. 

WHEREAS, the City of Capitola revie~~::I~l:ld, useq~,~ignations ah~~3orIng in order to 
regulate appropriate use of land an~ktq protect the p'i:ipliy oealth, safety, and welf5lte; and 

~'" '. ~ -.$--. '-':' ,", - • ' ,-

'-:;':->"-: <';' -;,->~j,:~?-:'-~-

WHEREAS, on December 18~:';2dQ9;\in, accordahc~.'with the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA), a draft Initial Stud~.~,ndYN~g~tiY~ Declat~ti9~ were prepared for the City's 

Housing Element; and,.".,.;y;;\'~~~~~,';;> '<'~c" 

WHEREASi\JtQmiDe!2~li1b~r 18, i~Q9vtAf6u9h"J~b~ClIY 21, 2010, a 30-day review 
period was adverti~~l:tin the p13'~~r and tI~;e1.~r~ft report VJ~~ available for review and no 
comments or questions)we~~ recej~~g during th\~:,e~yiew period; and 

.'-~/\:?:», ,.);:~::;..).':'~" '~_;-"'" -_r;~~ 

vyHE~'~AS;)onJa~6~~'\2'/'\~d¥6/tb~~la~~jlJg Commission reviewed the Initial Study 
and tN~lgative Decl~h:ittc,IJ.Jor ttre:t!pusing 'Eii;rJ,~.ntand recommended its adoption by the City 
Council,~,nd the Negativ~)',qeclar~tlQncQncludes' that no significant environmental impacts are 
associafed,&Y~th the project;;~~B, . "" 

WHE~'Elf.~" on Febru~&3, 2010',ithe City Council adopted the Housing Element 2007-
2014 which anticip~)ep the adoPtj~n of a Ordinance to advance single room occupancy; and 

WHEREAS"'~h~'::PJa6~i~0'commission reviewed the draft Ordinance to advance single 
room occupancy on OctobeE:22, 2011; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council reviewed the Ordinance to advance single room occupancy 
at its meeting held October 27,2011, and directed modifications be made to the draft ordinance; 
and 

WHEREAS, at its regular meeting held on March 22, 2012, the Ordinance amending 
Section 17.51.130 regarding single room parking standards was passed to a second reading 
and was finally adopted by the City Council on April 12, 2012. 



72

RESOLUTION NO. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of 
Capitola hereby finds, as follows: 

1. The City of Capitola intends to carry out this amendment to its Local Coastal 
Program in a manner fully consistent with the California Coastal Act. 

2. This Local Coastal Program Amendment is consistent with the Local Coastal Land 
Use Plan and the Coastal Act. 

.::_ ~. __ -,:~.~;-::\~J 
3. The Local Coastal Program Amendment contain~tlJpOrdinance No. 967. Ordinance 

amending Section 17.51.130 of the Capitolary1gniGipal Code in the City's Land Use 
and Zoning and Building Regulations, to rf(ql.iite 0c>[lsistency with the Local Coastal 
Program and Coastal Act, are hereby f9\Jfld;t() be irrf~II:;conformance with the City of 
Capitola General Plan, the City of Ca,pitq!~fLocal Coastal):?[ogram, and the provisions 
of the California Coastal Act and V!{ilJ~ecure the purposes'q:tJhe Zoning Ordinance, 
the General Plan, and the LocatG()"astal Program, and'is>h~reby authorized for 
submittal to the California Coastal Commission for certification. """"'" 

'{--'-

4. This LCP AmendmentWill take effec{a'utqrnatiCally upon Coast$I' Commission 
approval; however, ir(tb~:.,c~oastal C'Cln1tnr$sion modifies the amendment, 
modifications will require iofm,af~Gt!qn by the 6'itY,ofCapitola. 

"",,"/" d<_-:.~ j-- ~:-;.">;> 
. :."-~'j~;,.:. -, 

I HEREBY CERTIFY Ahat the abt;yeandf6r~gcfing resol4tiPrJ was passed and adopted 
by the City Council ofthe'City;~fJ;apitola orl'the 9t~d<=lyofAugust,2012, by the following vote: 

-.-, ' 

"'l)'-;"'" c~·',,-·,·--

AYES: , ~-v 

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

Michael Termini, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

____________________ ,CMC 

Susan Sneddon, City Clerk 

R:\Agenda Staff Reports\2012 Agenda Reports\City Council\08-09-12\8.G. Resolution Single Room.docx 

2 



73

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

Item #: 9.A. 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF AUGUST 9,2012 

CITY MANAGER'S DEPARTMENT 

CONSIDERATION OF A VISITOR SERVICE FEE (TRANSIENT OCCUPANCY TAX) 
MEASURE TO INCREASE THE FEE FROM 10% TO, A HIGHER FIGURE FOR 
NOVEMBER 6,2012 GENERAL MUNICIPAL ELECTION 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Council discretion to: 

1. Adopt a Resolution amending the submission to the qualified electors of the City of Capitola by 
adding a question of a certain measure relating to Visitor Services Fee (Transient Occupancy Tax) 
at the Consolidated General Presidential Election on Tuesday, November 6, 2012, as called by 
Resolution No. 3912; and 

2. Adopt a Resolution authorizing certain Council Members, or any member or members of the City 
Council, or any individual voter who is eligible to vote on the measure, or bona fide association of 
citizens, or any combination of voters and associations to file written arguments for or against the 
City Measure and filing of rebuttal arguments for the City Measure; and 

3. Provide direction whether a Resolution of Intent regarding uses of the potential tax revenue is 
necessary; and 

4. Approve the revised timeline for filing arguments/rebuttals for the City Measure for submitting the 
impartial analysis, arguments for and against, and rebuttals to the arguments. 

BACKGROUND: Over the last several months the City Council has held hearings to discuss a potential 
Visitor Services Fee (Transient Occupancy Tax - TOT) ballot measure for the November, 2012 election. In 
March the City Council adopted a resolution adding a permanent Quarter Cent Sales Tax Measure to the 
November General Election. At the July 26, 2012 City Council meeting staff was directed to prepare 
resolutions to add a measure to the ballot to increase the TOT from 10-12%

• Those resolutions are 
attached. 

DISCUSSION: The City currently imposes a 10% Visitor Service Fee (TOT). At tonight's hearing City 
Council has the option to adopt the resolutions as prepared, which would place a measure on the 
November ballot to raise the TOT to 120/0, adopt resolutions to change the TOT to a different figure , or 
choose not to take any action and leave the TOT unchanged. Approval of the attached resolutions would: 

1. Place a general purpose tax measure on the November, 2012 ballot to increase the TOT from 10% 

to 12% that requires a simple majority vote for adoption, and 

2. Authorize certain Council Members, or any individual voter who is eligible to vote on the measure, 
or bona fide association of citizens, or any combination of voters and associations to file written 
arguments for or against the Measure and filing of rebuttal arguments for the Measure. 

Also included in the requested action is to direct the City Manager whether a Resolution of Intent regarding 
uses of the potential tax revenue is necessary, and to approve the attached revised timeline for submitting 
the impartial analysis, arguments for and against, and rebuttals to the arguments. 

R\Agenda Staff Reports\2012 Agenda Reports\City Council\08-09-12\TOT Measure\9.A. TOT Election Measure SR Rev 080212.doc 



74

AUGUST 9,2012 AGENDA REPORT 2012 VISITOR SERVICE FEE INCREASE PAGE 2 

The City Attorney has prepared an impartial analysis showing the effect of the measure on the existing law 
and operation of the measure pursuant to Elections Code Section 9280. The impartial analysis is printed 
preceding the arguments for and against the measure and is 500 words or less (Attachment 5). 

The Santa Cruz County Conference and Visitor's Council (CVC) has expressed concern regarding the 2% 
point TOT increase, and has proposed a compromise to the various jurisdictions in the County. This 
compromise would constitute placing a 1 % TOT increase on the November 2012 ballot, with an effective 
date as of July 1, 2013, with the understanding that the Santa Cruz County Conference and Visitor's 
Council (CVC) and the lodging industry would 'officially support and endorse the measure. 

As part of the industry proposal, the CVC would, as of the end of this fiscal year, no longer request an 
annual contribution from the cities or the County for general countywide tourism promotion and 
coordination activities. Further, the lodging industry would seek an increase to the Tourism Marketing 
District (TMD) fee to make up for the funding loss, and the CVC would continue to administer the TMD on 
behalf of the lodging industry, and would continue to perform services for local jurisdictions using the new 
funding stream. 

On Tuesday, July 24th
, the Santa Cruz City Council voted to adopt a resolution to send before the voters 

an increase of 1 % points in the City's TOT, bringing it to a total of 11 %, with the attendant conditions 
described above. With some reluctance, the Council gave the City Manager administrative authority to 
substitute a measure that would place before the voters an increase of 2% points for a total TOT rate of 
12% if the County Board of Supervisors determined to increase the TOT rate in the unincorporated area to 
12%. 

On August ih the County Board of Supervisors is expected to take action on a potential TOT ballot 
measure, with a staff recommendation to increase the TOT to 11 %, pursuant to the industry proposal. 
Watsonville and Scotts Valley are not expected to propose adjusts their TOT at this time. 

As identified at previous Council meetings, it is generally thought the inclusion of multiple measures to 
raise taxes on a single ballot tends to decrease the likelihood of any of the measures passing. The overall 
revenue impact from the proposed 0.25% increase in the sales tax rate is projected to generate nearly 
$1,000,000 annually to the City. Staff recommends the City focus on the single sales tax ballot measure to 
maximize the likelihood it will pass. Alternatively, should the Council wish to adjust the TOT, staff 
suggests the City coordinate any TOT change with other local jurisdictions. 

FISCAL IMPACTS: Previously the City Council has considered various potential TOT increases, some 
coupled with decreases in public funding for the Santa Cruz County Visitors Center (CVC) and the 
Capitola/Soquel Chamber of Commerce (Chamber). A 2%) point increase to the TOT would raise 
$180,000 per year. 

The following table presents a few of the relevant budget line items: 

Revenue Expenditure 

2% points increase to TOT $180,000 

Fiscal Year 12/13 CVC funding $17,250 

Fiscal Year 12/13 Chamber funding $22,500 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Resolution No. 3912 requesting consolidation with the November 6, 2012, Presidential General 
Election and the inclusion of a ballot measure imposing a permanent Quarter Cent Sales Tax 
Measure; 

2. Draft Resolution amending the submission to the qualified electors of the City of Capitola by 
adding a question of a certain measure relating to Visitor Services Fee (Transient Occupancy Tax) 
at the Consolidated General Presidential Election on Tuesday, November 6, 2012, as called by 
Resolution No. 3912; 

R:\Agenda Staff Reports\2012 Agenda Reports\City Council\08-09-12\TOT Measure\9 B TOT Election Measure SR Rev 080212.doc 



75

AUGUST 9, 2012 AGENDA REPORT 2012 VISITOR SERVICE FEE INCREASE PAGE 3 

3. Draft Resolution authorizing certain Council Members, or any member or members of the City 
Council, or any individual voter who is eligible to vote on the measure, or bona fide association of 
citizens, or any combination of voters and associations to file written arguments for or against the 
City Measure and filing of rebuttal arguments for the City Measure; 

4. Revised timeline for filing arguments/rebuttals for City Measures; 

5. Impartial Analysis prepared by the City Attorney; 

6. August 2, 2012 Letter from the Santa Cruz County Conference & Visitors Council. 

Report Prepared By: Susan Sneddon, CMC 
City Clerk Reviewed and ~ded 

By City Manag~ 

R:\Agenda Staff Reports\2012 Agenda Reports\City Council\08-09-12\TOT Measure\9 B TOT Election Measure SR Rev 080212.doc 



76

ATTACHMENT 1 
7768 

RESOLUTION NO. 3912 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA ORDERING AN 
ELECTION, REQUESTING COUNTY ELECTIONS TO CONDUCT THE ELECTION, AND 

REQUESTING CONSOLIDATION OF THE GENERAL MUNICIPAL ELECTION IN THE CITY OF 
CAPITOLA ON TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 6, 2012 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Elections Code Section 10002, the governing body of any city may 
by resolution request the Board of Supervisors of the county to permit the county elections official 
to render specified services to the city relating to the conduct of an election; and 

WHEREAS, the resolution of the governing body of the city or district shall specify the 
services requested; and . 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Elections Code Section 10002, the city or district shall reimburse 
the county in full for the services performed upon presentation of a bill to the city or district; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Elections Code Section 10400, whenever two or more elections, 
including bond elections, of any legislative or congressional district, public district, city, county, or 
other political subdivision are called to be held on the same day, in the same territory, or in territory 
that is in part the same, they may be consolidated upon the order of the governing body or bodies 
or officer or officers calling the elections; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Elections Code Section 10400, such election for cities may be 
either completely or partially consolidated; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Elections Code Section 10403, whenever an election called by a 
city for submission of any question, proposition, or office to be filled is to be consolidated with a 
statewide election, and the question, proposition, or office to be filled is to appear upon the same 
ballot as that provided for the statewide election, the city shall, at least 88 days prior to the date of 
the election, file with the board of supervisors, and a copy with the elections office, a resolution of 
its governing board requesting the consolidation, and setting firth the exact form of any question, 
proposHlon, or office to be voted upon at the election, at it is to appear on the ballot. Upon such 
request, the board of supervisors may order the consolidation; and 

WHEREAS, the resolution requesting the consolidation shall be adopted and filed at the 
same time as the adoption of the ordinance, resolution, or order calling the election; and 

WHEREAS, various district, county, state and other political subdivision elections may be or 
have been called to be held on November 6, 2012. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of 
Capitola hereby orders an election be called and consolidated with any and all elections also called 
to be held on November"6, 2012 insofar as said elections are to be held in the same territory or in a 
territory that is in part the same as the territory of the City of Capitola, and hereby request the 
Board of Supervisors of the County of Santa Cruz to order such consolidation under Elections 
Code Sections 10401 and 10403. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED AND ORDERED that the City Council of the City of Capitola 
hereby requests the Board of Supervisors to permit the Santa Cruz County elections Department 
to provide any and all services necessary for conducting the election and agrees to pay for said 
services; and 



77

7769 RESOLUTION NO. 3912 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED AND ORDERED that the Santa Cruz County Elections 
Department conduct the election for the following offices to be voted on at the November 6, 2012, 
election: 

. Selection of two (2) Members of the City Council for the full term of four (4) years, and 
Selection of one (1) City Treasurer for the full term of four (4) years. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED AND ORDERED that the Santa Cruz County Elections 
Department shall conduct the election for the following Measure to be voted on at the November 6, 
2012, election: 

Shall a City of Capitola permanent sales tax 
increase of one quarter of one percent be 
adopted to pay for Yes 
disaster recovery and to maintain general 
services including public safety and street 
improvements? No 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED AND ORDERED that the Santa Cruz County Elections 
Department is requested to print the measure text exactly as filed or indicated on the filed 
document in the Voter's Information Pamphlet section of the Sample Ballot for the November 6, 
2012, election, attached hereto as Exhibit "AU. The cost of printing and distribution of the measure 
text will be paid for by the city. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED AND ORDERED that the City Clerk of the City of Capitola is 
hereby ordered and directed to cause said proposed ordinance and .notice of election to be 
published in accordance with the provisions of the California State Elections Code. 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the above and foregoing resolution was passed and adopted by 
the City Council of the City of Capitola at its regular meeting held on the 22nd day of March, 2012, 
by the following vote: 

AYES: Council Members Harlan, Norton, Nicol, Storey, and Mayor Termin 

NOES: None 

ABSENT: None 

ABSTAIN: None 

ATTe~ r\ . 
7 . ~3·J 

C, tAfo~ )<-dJi fftcCMC 
Susan Sneddon, City Clerk 

MichaeltTermini, Mayor 



78

RESOLUTION NO, 3912 7770 
EXHIBIT A (DRAFT ORDINANCE) 

Measure to be voted on: City of Capitola Permanent Retail Transactions and Use Tax 

DRAFT ORDINANCE NO, __ 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA IMPOSING A PERMANENT RETAIL 
TRANSACTIONS AND USE TAX TO BE ADMINISTERED BY THE STATE BOARD OF 

EQUALIZATION 

THE PEOPLE OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA, CALIFORNIA, DO ORDAIN AS 
FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. TITLE. This ordinance shall be known as the City of Capitola Permanent Retail 
Transaction and Use Tax Ordinance. The City of Capitola hereinafter shall be called "City". This 
ordinance shall be applicable in the incorporated territory of the City. 

Section 2. OPERATIVE DATE. "Operative Date" means the first day of the first calendar 
quarter commencing more than 110 days after the adoption of this ordinance, the date of 'such 
adoption being set forth as below. 

Section 3. PURPOSE. This ordinance is adopted to achieve the following, among other 
purposes, and directs the provisions hereof be interpreted in order to accomplish those 
purposes: 

A. To impose a permanent retail transactions and use tax in accordance with the proviSions 
of Part 1.6 (commencing with Section 7251) of Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation Code 
and Section 7285.9 of Part 1,7 of Division 2 which authorizes the City to adopt this tax 
ordinance which shall be operative if a majority of the electors voting on the measure vote to 
approve the imposition of the tax at an election called for that purpose. 

B. To adopt a retail transactions and use tax ordinance that incorporates provisions 
identical to those of the Sales and Use Tax Law of the State of California insofar as those 
provisions are not inconsIstent with the requirements and limitations contained in Part 1.6 of 
Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation Code. 

C. To adopt a retail transactions and use tax ordinance that imposes a tax and provides a 
measure therefore that can be administered and collected by the State Board of equalization in 
a manner that adapts itself fully as practicable to, and requires the least possible deViation from, 
the existing statutory and administrative procedures followed by the State Boar.d of Equalization 
in administering and collecting the California State Sales and Use Taxes. 

D. To adopt a retail transactions and use tax ordinance that can be administered in a 
manner that will be, to the greatest degree possible, consistent with the provisions of Part 1.6 of 
Division 2 of the Revenue arid Taxation Code, minimize the cost of collecting the transactions 
and use taxes, and at the same time, minimize the burden of record keeping upon persons 
subject to taxation under the provisions of this ·ordinance. . 

Section 4. CONTRACT WITH STATE. Prior to the operative date, the City shall contract 
with the State Board of Equalization to perform all functions incident to the administration and 
operation of this transaction and use tax ordinance; provided, that if the City shall not haye 
contracted with the State Board of Equalization prior to the operative date, it shall nevertheless 



79

7771 RESOLUTION NO. 3912 
EXHIBIT A (DRAFT ORDINANCE) 

so contract and in such a case the operative date shall be the first day of the first calendar 
quarter following the execution of such a contract. 

Section 5. TRANSACTIONS TAX RATE. For the privilege of selling tangible personal 
property at retail, a tax is hereby imposed upon all retailers in the incorporated and 
unincorporated territory of the City at the rate of one quarter of one percent (0.25%) of the gross 
receipts of any retailer from the sale of all tangible personal property sold at retail in said 
territory on and after the operative date of this ordinance. This tax is in addition to, and not in 
lieu of, the one quarter of one percent (0.25%) tempora·ry retail transactions and use tax 
imposed pursuant to Chapter 3.1 Oof the Capitola Municipal Code. 

Section 6. PLACE OF SALE. For the purpose of this ordinance, all retail sales are 
consummated at the place of business of the retailer unless the tangible personal property sold 
is delivered by the retailer or his agent to an out-of-state destination or to a common carrier for 
charges, when such charges are subject to the state sales and use tax,regardless of the place 
to which delivery is made. In the event a retailer has no permanent place of business in the 
State of has more than or)e place of business, the place or places at which the retail sales are 
consummated shall be determined under rules and regulations to be prescribed and adopted by 
the State Board of Equalization. . 

Section 7. USE TAX RATE. An excise tax is hereby imposed on the storage, use or other 
consumption in the City of tangible personal property purchased from any retailer on and after 
the operative date of this ordinance for storage, use or other consumption in said territory at the 
rate of one quarter of one percent (0.25%) of the sales price of the property. The sales price 
shall include delivery charges when such charges are subject to state sales and use tax 
regardless of the place to which delivery is made. This tax is in addition to, and not in lieu of, the 
one quarter of one percent (0.25%) temporary excise tax imposed pursuant to Chapter 3.10 of 
the Capitola Municipal Code. 

Section 8. ADOPTION OF PROVISIONS OF STATE LAW. Except as otherwise provided in 
this ordinance and except insofar as they are inconsistent with the proviSions of Part 1.6 of 
Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation Code, all of the provisions of Part 1 (commencing with 
Section 6001) of Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation Code are hereby adopted and made a 
part of this ordinance as though fully set forth herein. 

Section 9. LIMITATIONS ON ADOPTION OF STATE LAW AND COLLECTION OF USE 
TAXES. In adopting the provision of Part 1 of Divi~ion 2 of the Revenue and Taxation Code: 

A. Wherever the State of California is named or referred to as the taxing agency; the name 
of this City shall be substituted therefore. However, the SUbstitution shall not be made where: 

1. The word "State" is used as a part of the title of the State Controller, State 
Treasurer, State Board of Control, State Board of Equalization, State Treasury, or the 
Constitution of the State of California; 

2. The result of that substitution would require action to be taken by or against this 
City or any agency, officer, or employee thereof rather than by or against the State Board of 
Equalization, in performing the functions incident to the administration or operation of this 
Ordinance. 



80

RESOLUTION NO. 3912 7772 
EXHIBIT A (DRAFT ORDINANCE) 

3. In those sections, including, but not necessarily limited to sections referring to the 
exterior boundaries of the State of California, where the result of the substitution would be to:. 

a. Provide an exemption from this tax with respect to certain sales, storage, 
use or other consumption of tangible personal property which would not otherwise be exempt 
from this tax while such sales, storage, use or other consumption remain subject to tax by the 
State under the provisions of Part 1 'of Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation Code; or, 

b. Impose this tax with respect to certain sales, storage, use or other 
consumption of tangible personal property which would not be subject to tax by the state under 
the said provision of that code. 

4. In Sections 6701, 6702(except in the last sentence thereof), 6711, 6715, 6737, 
6797 or 6828 of the Revenue and Taxation Code. 

B. The word "City" shall be substituted for the word "State"in the phrase "retqiler engaged 
in business in this State" in Section 6203 and in the definition of that phrase in Section 6203. 

Section 10. PERMIT NOT REQUIRED. If a seller's permit has been issued to a retailer 
under Section 6067 of the Revenue and Taxation Code, an additional transactors' permit shall 
not be required by this ordinance. 

Section 11. EXEMPTIONS AND EXCLUSIONS. 

A. There shall be excluded from the measure of the transactions tax and the use tax the 
amount of any sales tax or use tax imposed by the State of California or by any city, city and 
county, or county pursuant to the Bradley-Burns Uniform Local Sales and Use Tax Law or the 
amount of any state-administered transactions or use tax. 

B. There are exempt from the consumption of the amount of transactions tax the gross 
receipts from: 

1. Sales of tangible personal property, other than fuel or petroleum products, to 
operators of aircraft to be used or consumed principally outside the County in which the sale is 
made and directly and exclusively in the use of such aircraft as common carriers of persons or 
property under the authority of the laws of this State, the United States, or any foreign 
government. 

2. Sales of property to be used outside the City which is shipped to a point outside 
the City, pursuant to the contract of sale, by delivery to such point by the retailer or his agent, or 
by delivery by the retailer to a carrier for shipment to a consignee at such point. For the 
purposes of this paragraph, delivery to a point outside the City shall be satisfied: 

a. With respect to vehicles (other than commercial vehicles) subject to 
registration pursuant to Chapter 1 (commencing with Section 4000) of Division 3 of the Vehicle 
Code, aircraft licensed in compliance with Section 21411 of the Public Utilities Code, and 
'undocumented vessels registered under Chapter 2 of Division 3.5 (commencing with Section 
9840) of the Vehicle Code by registration to an out-of-City address and by a declaration under 
penalty of perjury, signed by the buyer, stating that such an address is, in fact, his or her 

. principal place of residence; and 



81

7773 RESOLUTION NO. 3912 
EXHIBIT A (DRAFT ORDINANCE) 

b. With respect to commercial vehicles, by registration to a place of 
businessout-of-City and declaration under penalty of perjury, signed by the buyer, that the 
vehicle will be operated from that address. 

3. The sale price of tangible personal property if the seller is obligated to furnish the 
property for a fixed price pursuant to a contract entered into prior to the operative date of this 
ordinance. 

4. A lease of tangible personal property which is a continuing sale of such property, 
for any period of time for which the lessor is obligated to lease the property for an amount fixed 
by the lease prior to the operative date of this ordinance. 

5. For the purposes of subsections (3) and (4) of this section, the sale or lease of 
tangible personal property shall be deemed not to be obligated pursuant to a contract or lease 
for any period of like for which any party to the contract or lease has the unconditional right to 
terminate the contract or lease upon notice, whether or not such right is exerCised. . 

C. There are exempted from the use tax imposed by this ordinance, the storage, use or 
other consumption in this City of tangible personal property: 

1. The gross receipts from the sale of which have been subject to a transaction tax 
under any state-administered transaction and use tax ordinance. 

2. Other than fuel or petroleum products purchased by operatqrs of aircraft and 
used or consumed by such operators directly and exclusively in the use of aircraft as common 
carriers of persons or property for hire or compensation under a certificate of public 
convenience and necessity issued pursuant to the laws of this State, the United States, or any 
foreign government. This exemption is in addition to the exemptions provided in Sections 6366 
and 6366.1 of the 'Revenue and Taxation Code of the State of California. 

3. Ifthe purchaser is obligated to purchase the property for a fixed price pursuant to 
a contract entered into prior to the operative date of this ordinance. 

4. If the possession of, or the exercise of any right or power over, the tangible 
personal property arises under a lease which is a continuing purchase of such property for any 
period of time for which the lessee is obligated to lease the property for an amount fixed by a 
lease prior to the operative date of this ordinance. 

5. For purposes of subsections (3) and (4) of this section, storage, use, or other 
consumption, or possession of, or exercise of any right or power over, tangible personal 
property shall be deemed not to be obligated pursuant to a contract or lease for any period of 
time' for which the party to the contract or lease has the unconditional right to terminate the 
contract or lease upon notice, whether or not such right is exercised. 

6. Except as provided in subparagraph (7), a retailer engaged in business in the 
City shall not be required to collect use tax from the purchaser of tangible personal property, 
unless the retailer ships or delivers the property into the City or participates within the City in 
making the sale of the property, including, but not limited to, soliciting or receiving the order, 
either directly or indirectly, at a place of business of the retailer in the City or through a 



82

RESOLUT"ION NO. 3912 7774 
EXHIBIT A (DRAFT ORDINANCE) 

representative, agent, canvasser, solicitor, subsidiary, or person the City under the authority of 
the retailer. . 

7. "A retailer engaged in business in the City" shall also include any retailer of any 
of the following" vehicles subject to registration pursuant to Chapter 1 (commencing with 
Section 4000) of Division3 of the Vehicle Code, aircraft licensed in compliance with Section 
21411 of the Public Utilities Code, or undocumented vessels registered under Chapter 2 of 
Division 3.5 (commencing with Section 9840) of the Vehicle Code. That retailer shall be required 
to collect use tax from any purchaser who registers or licenses the vehicle, vessel, or aircraft at 
a-n address in the City. 

D. Any person subject to use tax under this ordinance may credit against that tax any 
transactions tax or reimbursement for transactions tax paid to a district imposing, or retailer 
liable for a transactions tax pursuant to Part 1.6 of Division 23 of the Revenue and Taxation 
Code with respect to the sale to the person of the property the storage, use or other 
consumption of which is subject to the use tax. 

Section 12. AMENDMENTS. All amendments subsequent to the effective date of this 
ordinance to part 1 of Division 2 of the Revel,1ue and Taxation Code relating to sales and use 
taxes and which are not inconsistent with Part 1.6 and Part 1.7 of- Division 2 of the Revenue and 
Taxation Code, and all amendments to Part 1.6 and Part 1.7 of Division 2 of the Revenue and 
Taxation Code, shall automatically become a part of this ordinance, provided however, that no 
such amendment shall operate so as to affect the rate of tax imposed by this ordinance. 

Section 13. ENJOINING COLLECTION FORBIDDEN. No injunction or writ of mandate or 
other legal or equitable process shall issue in any suit, action or proceeding in any court against 
the State or the City, or against any officer of the State or the City, to prevent or enjoin the 
collection under this ordinance, or Part 1.6 of Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation Code, of 
any tax or any amount of tax required to be collected. 

Section 14. SEVERABILITY. If any proviSion of this ordinance or the application thereof to 
any person or circumstances is held invalid, the remainder of the ordinance and the application 
of such provision to other persons or circumstances shall not be affected hereby. 

Section 15. EFFECTIVE DATE. This ordinance relates to the levying and collecting of the 
City transactions and use taxes and shall take effect immediately. 

Section 16. CODIFICATION. Upon adoption of this ordinance pursuant to the voter 
approval, the City Clerk, in consultation with the City Attorney; is hereby authorized and directed 
to codify this ordinance in the Capitola Municipal Code. 



83

ATTACHMENT 2 

RESOLUTION NO. __ _ 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA AMENDING 
THE SUBMISSION TO THE QUALIFIED ELECTORS OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA BY 

ADDING A QUESTION OF A CERTAIN MEASURE RELATING TO VISITOR 
SERVICES FEE (TRANSIENT OCCUPANCY TAX) AT THE GENERAL MUNICIPAL 

ELECTION IN THE CITY OF CAPITOLA ON TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 6,2012, 
AS CALLED BY RESOLUTION NO. 3912 

WHEREAS, a General Municipal Election on Tuesday, November 6, 2012 has 
been called by Resolution No. 3912, adopted on March 22, 2012, and 

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to amend ResolutipQj~o. 3912 by adding 
a Visitor Service Fee (transient occupancy tax) question; ",,/i' c''',, 

Now, therefore, the City Council of the City of CaRil91~,does resolve, declare, 
determine and order as follows: 0"';':;'/ .. ,~'<\{,;. 

SECTION 1. That the City Council, pursuaptibrlts right::§:D9 authority, does 
order an amendment to Resolution No. 3912, by ac;lging;,*lhe followihgiqlJestion on the 
Genera Municipal Election: A":'?' .~, .;::\:\';."..# 

1:.f'7'< '~;:-":;"-;';' '., {\:. -§, 

c:":".',;:"'} ',_ 

~~ j' 

Shall the City of Capitolcayisitor service~';~~,pe Yes 
increased from the currentrate of 10% to 1 i%{:c, 
to pay for general City s~N!c~~JnGtuding PUblic'I-.~-,Y-lJl:-c' --+------1 
safety, economic development ancHourism, and ;;No 
social serviceS?"~;,\<.:;" . ";':,,;', ~= 

<::t. \;",,)" 
"'" 

BE IT FURi~E'~,~RESOL\JED AND O~QeRED that the Santa Cruz County 
Elections Department is reqcie~t~d:tppr,int.the measure text exactly as filed or indicated 
on the filed dJ!c:l.i,hl~nt"J.n the''Z0t~r'scliWorfrl~f!.on Pamphlet section of the Sample Ballot 
for the NovE1mber6,'2M:?,electi~n;attached hereto as Exhibit "A". The cost of printing 
and distriti~tion of the nlei:!sure text,W!II,qe paid for by the City. 

'*B~'lt FURTHER ~~S()LVEO;;AND ORDERED that the City Clerk of the City of 
Capitola is her~by ordered and, directed to cause said proposed ordinance and notice of 
election to bep~!:>lished in:'9ccordance with the provisions of the California State 
Elections Code.:: .,' 

WHEREAS,t~$~itY'Clerk of the City of Capitola published a notice of election, 
measure to be voted 9J', and notice to electors of date after which no arguments for or 
against a city measure may be submitted to the City Clerk in accordance with the 
provisions of the California State Elections Code; 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED AND ORDERED that the measure herein directed 
for inclusion on the November 6, 2012 Ballot is in addition to those measures directed 
for inclusion on said ballot pursuant to Resolution No. 3912 adopted by the City Council 
on March 22, 2012. 



84

RESOLUTION NO. 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the above and foregoing resolution was passed and 
adopted by the City Council of the City of Capitola at its regular meeting held on the 9th 

day of August, 2012, by the following vote: 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

ATTEST: 

__________ ~--~~,CMC 
:susan :Sneddon, City Cierk 

Micha~1 Termink,Mayor J' .. ~ -., ... 
. ~ 



85

RESOLUTION NO. 

EXHIBIT itA" 

ORDINANCE NO. __ 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA AMENDING SECTION 3.32.030 OF THE 
CAPITOLA MUNICIPAL CODE PERTAINING TO THE CAPITOLA VISITORS SERVICES FEE 

THE PEOPLE OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA, CALIFORNIA DO ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Section 3.32.030 of the Capitola Municipal Code is he~epy\~mended to read as 
follows:,;::' ""b 

"3.32.030 Fee/tax imposed. . .. 
A. For the privilege of occupancy in any Hfci,tel, each trClnsient 

is subject to and shall pay a general tax igc.ClIJ"am9unt of tw~IY(3 
percent of the rent charged by the operC!Jor: TAe tax constitUte$Ci 
debt owed by the transient to the city Which is e,xtinguished oniy', 
by payment by the operator to th~~city;)[he transient shall pay the',r 
tax to the operator of the hotel at the tfmElthe reril isapaid. If the . 
rent is paid in installments, a proportionate,~h€!re of tile tax shall 
be paid with each installrpent. The unpaid taxshall be due upon 
the transient's ceasing to'occupy space in the;hoteL If for any 
reason the tax is not paid t()the Rperator of the IiQtel;t~e;-fee 
administrator may require th~t sucl1t~)(shall be paidcdir~ctly to the 
fee administrator. The generai,tax reve:n~es,shall be placed in the 
.city's general fund." ...... /.., . .... ,to 

'<">, ,.,;;.", 
>cC 

Section 2. SEVERABllITy.·jtany provision of> this ordin~nce or the application thereof to 
any person or circumst~nce is held'i;rvalid, the re'inainder of the ordinance and the application of 
such provision to other p~rs()ns or¢ircumstances s,lialfnot be affected hereby. 

'< '~.-'., ,"- '. " ~'- / 

Section ~i ,~FFECTIVE'dArE. -r'tlis'ordIOqQPlrelates to the levying and collecting of a City 
tax and sharrl1:ike\:~ffeQtimmediately. ..,' . 

. .;- : .". ' , 

§.ection4. CODIFICATION. Upohadt56tion of this ordinance pursuant to the voters' 
approval, the,City Clerk, in 'cpnsultati,Qri'with the City Attorney, is hereby authorized and directed 
to codify thisbrdinance in th~'qapitola Municipal Code. 



86

ATTACHMENT 3 

RESOLUTION NO. 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA, CALIFORNIA, 
AUTHORIZING CERTAIN OF ITS MEMBERS OR ANY MEMBER OR MEMBERS OF THE CITY 
COUNCIL, OR ANY INDIVIDUAL VOTER WHO IS ELIGIBLE TO VOTE ON THE MEASURE, 
OR BONA FIDE ASSOCIATION OF CITIZENS, OR ANY COMBINATION OF VOTERS AND 
ASSOCIATIONS TO FILE WRITTEN ARGUMENTS FOR OR AGAINST THE CITY 
MEASURE(S) AND FILING OF REBUTTAL ARGUMENTS FOR CITY MEASURE(S) 
SUBMITTED AT THE NOVEMBER 6, 2012 GENERAL MUNICIPAL ELECTION, AND 
DIRECTING THE CITY ATTORNEY TO PREPARE AN IMPARTIAL ANALYSIS 

WHEREAS, a regular General Municipal Election is tQc.pe held in the City of Capitola 
on Tuesday, November 6, 2012, at which time there wlirhe<'~ubmitted to the qualified 
electors the following measure relating to the ratificatioll:of'c;tn increa~e in the visitor services 
fee from ten percent (10%) to twelve percent (12%) otthe rent,yharged by hotel operators: 

MEASURE "_": Shall a City of Capitola'vJs:itpr servtces fe'e.,be increased from the 
current rate of 10%do 12%> to pay for g~neral City services 
including public ~af~ty, economic development&pnd tourism, and 
social services?" ", " "o.)'OES or NO 

"':,:~,~ 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COONGlt 'QF THE CITY' ,OF CAPITOLA 
CALIFORNIA, DOES RESOLyffi;;D~CLARE, DETERMINE AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 

~ -";."";i, :-:'- "- -;~- ': -"-, [r;., 

~.. '?,; ~ i;- t ,"? 

SECTION 1. That the CiM<;;ouncil,guthorizes the40llq~ing member(s) of its body 
to file written argul1)e,nt, or any fhqividuaJ,.vpter who)i~"~ligible to vote on the 
measure, or boqa~~fidet,a~sociation<Rf,pitfzens>pc ~,nygcombination of voters and 
associations P9t'~exceeding: words reg~rding the );:atY measure as specified above, 
accompanied bytli~, printed n,ame(s) ana,signature(s) of the author(s) submitting it, in 
accordance with ArfiCl~ 4, Cbi;!pter 3, DiviSion .~. of the Elections Code of the State of 
Californjp.;:Ttie:_9rgumentl? [rta{t>i{ch;30ged orwhhdrawn until and including the date fixed 
by the''City Clerl('qfter wllleh no argtim~nts-ofor or against the City measure may be 
sUDiT!itt~d to the CityGl~rk.·" , 

The argumen;~' ~~~II be filed with the City Clerk, signed, with the printed name(s) 
and signature(s) of the author(s) submitting it, or if submitted on behalf of an organization, 
the name of the organization, and the printed name and signature of at least one of its 
principal officers who is the author of the argument. The arguments shall be accompanied 
by the Form of Statement to be Filed by Author(s) of Argument. 

SECTION 2. That pursuant to Section 9285 of the Elections Code of the State of 
California, when the elections official has selected the arguments for and against the 
measure which will be printed and distributed to the voters, the elections official shall send a 
copy of an argument in favor of the pro'position to the authors of any argument against the 
measure and a copy of an argument against the measure to the authors of any argument in 
favor of the measure immediately upon receiving the arguments. 

The author or a majority of the authors of an argument relating to a city measure 



87

RESOLUTION NO. ___ _ 

may prepare and submit a rebuttal argument not exceeding 250 words or may authorize in 
writing any other person or persons to prepare, submit, or sign the rebuttal argument. 

A rebuttal argument may not be signed by more than five authors. 

The rebuttal arguments shall be filed with the City Clerk, signed, with the printed 
name(s) and signature(s) of the author(s) submitting it, or if submitted on behalf of an 
organization, the name of the organization, and the printed name and signature of at least 
one of its principal officers, not more than 10 days after the final date for filing direct 
arguments. The rebuttal arguments shall be accompanied by the Signature Statement, and 
Authorization for Another Person or Persons to Sign Re~lIttal Argument, if applicable 
(Exhibit A). .. 

SECTION 3. That the City Council directs tbe:CitY' Glerk td transmit a copy of the 
measure to the city attorney. The city attorney shall',p~eparea[l impartial arialysis of the 
measure not exceeding 500 words showing t~~~effect bt,the m'eal?ure on the existing law 
and the operation of the measure. The imRartial analysis'shall be"fiI~d by the date set by 
the City Clerk for the filing of primary arguQ1~iiis. C • ,', 

,,--:-.., 
~ co ~ - " 

SECTION 4. That the City Clerk shail·certifY:i9 the passage and~~dbption of this 
resolution and enter it into the book of original resoJuJi<;>ns:, " .... 

I HEREBY CERTIFy:tllat·,tlleforegoing resoluti<DO was passed and adopted by the 
City Council of the City of Capitola or the'9t~ day of August;.?012"by the following vote: 

AYES: 

NOES:',,' 

ASSENT: 

cABSTAIN:. 

ATTEST: 
':CMC -------=--.,---...".,....' ,. 

Susan Sneddon, City~CJe~.k,~·'" 

Michael Termini, Mayor 



88

EXHIBIT A 

SIGNATURE STATEMENT 
(Elections Code Section 9600) 

All arguments concerning measures filed pursuant to Division 9 of the Elections Code shall be 
accompanied by the following statement to be signed by each author of the argument. Names and 
titles listed will be print~d in the Voter's Information Pamphlet in the order provided below and will 
appear as indicated below. 

''The undersigned author(s) of the: 

D 
D 
D 
D 

argument in favor of 

argument against 

rebuttal to the argument in favor of 

rebuttal to the argument against 

ballot measure (insert letter) __ at the Consolidated General Municipal Election for the City of 
Capitola to be held on November 6, 2012 hereby state that such argument is true and correct to 
the best of knowledge and belief." 

(his/her/their) 

ARGUMENT/REBUTTAL FILED BY (check any of the following that apply) This information 
will be provided on the County Clerk/Elections Website: 

D Board of Supervisors or Governing Board 
Contact Person's Printed Name: ___________________ _ 
Contact Person's Signature: _____________________ _ 
Title: ____________________________ _ 
Phone: FAX: 

---~------------E-Mail: ________________________________ __ 

D Bona Fide Association of Citizens or Filers of Special District Initiative 
Name of Association: __ -:---__________________________ _ 
Principal Officer's Printed Name: _____________________ _ 
Principal Officer's Signature: ______________________ __ 
Title: _________________________________ _ 

Phone: FAX: -----------------E-Mail: _______________________________ _ 
Attach list of officers if document relates to a school district measure 

D Individual voter who is eligible to vote on the measure 
Printed Name: ___________________________ _ 
Signature of Voter: ____________________________ _ 
Address Where You Live: ---------------------------
Phone: FAX: ----------------E-Mail: __________________________________ _ 

- 1 -



89

SIGNATURE STATEMENT - PAGE 2 
CHECK ONE OF THE FOLLOWING & RECORD LETTER OF MEASURE: 
o 
o 
o 
o 

Argument in Favor of Measure __ 
Argument Against Measure __ 
Rebuttal to Argument in Favor of Measure __ _ 
Rebuttal to Argument Against Measure __ 

The signatures of the following persons will be printed as submitted below following the argument or rebuttal. 

SIGNATURE PRINT NAME PRINT TITLE AND Are you DATE 
as it will appear in the NAME OF ASSOCIATION signing on 

Voter's Information (IF APPLICABLE) behalf of an 
Pamphlet as it will appear in the association? 

Voter's Information Pamphlet. YES or NO * 

*If the argument or rebuttal is being signed by a principal officer on behalf of an association that is supporting or opposing the measure, the name of 
the association will appear on the first line, followed by the principal officer's name and title on the second line as the example illustrates: 

- 2-



90

AUTHORIZATION FOR ANOTHER PERSON OR 
PERSONS TO SIGN REBUTTAL ARGUMENT 

I, ______________________ authorize the following person(s) to sign 
(print name of FILER of the argument) 

the rebuttal to the argument 

o 
o 

in favor 

against 

Measure for the November 6,2012 Consolidated General Municipal Election. 
(Letter) 

(One or more people who signed .the argument may be replaced with different people to sign the rebuttal) 

1. to sign instead of 
(print name of rebuttal signer) (print name of argument signer) 

2. to sign instead of 
(print name of rebuttal signer) (print name of argument signer) 

3. to sign instead of 
(print name of rebuttal signer) (print name of argument signer) 

4. to sign instead of 
(print name of rebuttal signer) (print name of argument signer) 

5. to sign instead of 
(print name of rebuttal signer) (print name of argument signer) 

Signature of Filer: Date: 

Attach this form to the 2-page "Signature Statement" submitted with the rebuttal argument. 

- 3 -



91

ATTACHMENT 4 

REVISED 
2012 

GENERAL MUNICIPAL ELECTION 

Timeline for Filing 
ArgumentslRebuttals for City Measures 

DEADLINE TO SUBMIT A RESOLUTION 
CALLING FOR CONSOLIDATION OF THE 
ELECTION WITH THE COUNTY AND FOR 
MEASVRE(S) TO BE PLACED ON THE 
BALLOT 

DEADLINE FOR FILING ARGUMENTS: 
1 O-Day Public Inspection: 

DEADLINE FOR REBUTTALS: 
1 O-day Public Inspection: 

10- DAY PUBLIC INSPECTION: 

DEADLINE FOR IMPARTIAL ANALYSIS: 
WHERE: 

WRITTEN ARGUMENTSIREBVTTALS: 

CONFIDENTIALITY OF ARGUMENTS 
AND REButTALS 

WITHDRAWAL/CHANGES: 

MULTIPLE ARGUMENTS: 

CONSOLIDATION WITH COUNTY: 

Friday, August 10, 2012 

Tuesday, August 14,2012 - 5:00 p.m. 
Wednesday, August 15 to Saturday, August 25 

Thursday, August 21,2012 - 5:00 p.m. 
Wednesday, August 22 to Sunday, September 2 

Arguments and rebuttals are available for 10-day 
public inspection. During this period a writ of 
mandate or injunction may be sought to require 
amendments or deletions. 

Tuesday, August 21,2012 - 5:00 p.m. 
Capitola City Hall, Office of the City Clerk 
420 Capitola Avenue 
Capitola, CA 95010 

Arguments may not exceed 300 words in length, 
and rebuttals may not exceed 250 words in length. 

Arguments and rebuttals shall remain . 
confidential until 5:00 p.m. on the respective due 
dates. 

Arguments and rebuttals may be changed or 
withdrawn until and including the date fixed for 
final submission to the City Clerk. 

If more than one argument is submitted, 
the City Clerk will select one of the arguments to be 
printed based on a priority specified in the Elections 
Code. 

At the close of the deadline for filing of said 
arguments/rebuttals, the materials filed with the City 
Clerk will be forwarded to the County Elections 
Department for inclusion in the Sample Ballot. 

R:\Agenda Staff Reports\2012 Agenda Reports\City Council\08-09-12\TOT Measure\9.B. Attachment 4 Revised Argument Timeline.doc 



92

ATTACHMENT 5 

CITY ATTORNEY IMPARTIAL ANALYSIS 

VISITOR SERVICE FEE INCREASE (TRANSIENT OCCUPANCY TAX) 

Pursuant to Capitola Municipal Code Chapter 3.32, since 1982 the City of Capitola has 
levied a 10% visitor service fee, also known as a transient occupancy tax, on each hotel or motel 
guest in the City. This ballot measure, if approved by City voters would increase the tax rate 
from 10% to 12% of the rent charged by the hotel or motel operator. 

The visitor service fee constitutes a general tax meaning that all tax revenue is deposited 
in the City's General Fund and is available to pay for the costs of all City operations and 
programs including public safety, economic development and tourism, and social services. This 
ballot measure therefore proposes a "general purpose tax" rather than a "special purpose tax" and 
requires a simple majority vote for adoption. 

The above statement is an impartial analysis of the proposed visitor service fee increase 
ordinance. If you desire a copy of the ordinance, please call the City Clerk's office at 831 475 -
7300 and a copy will be mailed or electronically transmitted to you at no cost to you. 

Word Count: 191 



93

Date: August 2,2012 

To: Capitola City Council 

~TLL ~'I' III J-:> 
C 0 U ~~ 

CONFERENCE 8. VISITORS COUNCil 
303 WATER ST., m. 100, SANTA CRUZ, (A 95060 
WWW.SANTACRUZ.ORG 

From: Santa Cmz County Conference and Visitors Council (CVC) 

Re: TOT 

ATTACHMENT 6 

Since its establishment in 1988 the CVC has developed a history of economic development 
partnership through tourism promotion with local govemment. Economic challenges have 
limited the community's ability to sustain funding for these effOlts. The lack of secure or 
adequate resources has made it difficult for the Santa Cmz tourism industty to stay competitive. 

In response to tlns challenge, in 2010 the Santa Cruz County Hospitality and Lodging Association 
(SCCHLA) proposed a local funding initiative that has been embraced by over 65 communities 
statewide, a Tourism Marketing Disttict. Through this effort the industty was able to establish a 
self-assessment within the lodging sector to fund tourism promotion. This additional funding, 
combined with long-standing public funding, has enabled the Santa Cmz County CVC to increase 
community based lllarketing efforts, expand market share and show significant measurable results 
in a sh01t period oftime. 

The recent proposal by City officials to increase the current ten percent Transient Occupancy Tax 
(TOT) by two points, or by 20%, has raised significant concem for the tourism industry regarding 
its future competitive position to draw leisure and group corporate business. This issue, 
combined with the continued lack of a guarantee for public fimding for tomism promotion has 
prompted a possible compromise proposal. . 

The SCCHLA has proposed that tlle increase In the TOT be for a one point increase instead of 
two (for an 11 % total rate) and that in retmn, the current City fimding for the CVC ($ 17,250) be 
replaced by an increase in the rate and collections of the TMD by the lodging industry. 

The CVC Board of Directors and the SCCHLA recognize the value in the long-standing 
partnership that has supported a community approach to the tourism marketing effort for the City 
of Capitola. There has been significant investment over the last years from the industiy and the 
City to foster cooperation between various stakeholders and community interests in an effort to 
provide positive economic results through the cOlmnunity's largest industry. 



94

Under the 1 point compromise, the CVC would not anticipate fimding after the current fiscal 
year, provided that: 

1. The City honors the funding commitment for Clment fiscal year 2012/2013. 

2. The one point increase in the TOT would be instituted July 1, 2013. 

Cc: City Manager 



95

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

Item #: 9.B. 

MEETING OF AUGUST 9, 2012 

FROM: PUBLIC WORKS/CITY MANAGER'S DEPARTMENT 

SUBJECT: LOWER PACIFIC COVE PARKING LOT PROJECT DESCRIPTION AND BUDGET 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

1. Approve the preliminary project description for the Lower Pacific Cove Parking Lot Project; 
2. Authorize the release of a request for proposals for engineering and design services; . 
3. Authorize staff to initiate environmental review of the proposed project; 
4. Approve a Resolution authorizing the advance of funds to pay $75,000 in preliminary project 

costs prior to receiving debt funding. 

BACKGROUND: In 1984 the City of Capitola acquired the Pacific Cove Mobile Home Park. During the 
1980's, the City developed a 234-space public parking lot on the upper terrace by relocating existing 
mobile home residents to the lower terrace. Following the March 2011 storm drain failure, the City 
formally closed the mobile home park and directed staff to prepare a report on possible future uses of the 
park property. 

At a hearing on July 26, 2012 regarding near-term options for uses on the lower Pacific Cove property, 
City Council directed staff to develop a project description for an approximate 223-space temporary 
parking lot on the site along with financing plans and various cost reduction options for consideration. 

In addition, City Council identified a parking structure on the upper Pacific Cove site as a high priority for 
the City and directed staff to develop options to finance construction of a multi-level parking structure on 
the upper Pacific Cove site. Attached is a staff report from March 24, 2011 along with a parking structure 
plan report that discusses the parking structure project in detail (Attachment 5). Staff will continue to 
develop financing options and anticipates bringing a report back to Council in September 2012. 

DISCUSSION: A project description for the Lower Pacific Cove Parking Lot Project has been prepared 
and is included as Attachment 1. This project description includes all potential elements of the project, 
including elements that are still being considered and ultimately may not be part of the project. Upon a 
decision by the City Council on the scope of work and funding levels for the project, the final project 
description will be modified to match. 

A summary of the various elements and related costs of the project are listed below. A detailed estimate 
of costs is included in Attachment 2. 

R:\Agenda Staff Reports\2012 Agenda Reports\City Co~ncil\08-09-12\9.B. Pac Cove Project Description_Budget Report FINAL.docx 



96

8-9-12 AGENDA REPORT: PACIFIC COVE SITE OPTIONS 2 

Priority Element Cost Notes 
Mobilization $ 45,200 

Required Grading/site prep/surfacing $257,000 1 1/2" of AC over 4" AB 
elements Water quality/drainage $ 25,000 

Basic lighting $ 30,000 Overhead wires 
Basic landscaping $ 10,000 
Signage & Striping $ 40,000 Stalls, space numberss 

& pedestrian pathways 
Pay Stations $ 90,000 6 stations at 3 locations 

Construction Total $452,000 

Planning and Permitting $ 10,000 Includes CEQA 
Design $ 59,100 
Contingency $ 59,100 

Project Total $615,200 

Relocate coach for City storage $ 25,000 To Beulah propeJ"ti 
Optional Restroom renovation $ 75,000 
elements Shuttle stops $ 9,000 Benches & site 

improvements 
Enhance landscaping/lighting $ 30,000 Underground wires and 

more landscaped area 
Sub total $139,000 

Total with Optional elements $754,100 

City Council also suggested that certain improvements for the upper Pacific Cove lot could be considered 
in conjunction with the financing for the lower lot. Those items are outlined below: 

Element Cost Notes 
Pay Stations $90,0000 6 stations at 2 locations 
Lighting Improvements $15,000 Additional 3 lights 
Pedestrian Imrovements $200,000 Improved access to Monterey 

Avenue and Capitola Avenue 
Total Upper Lot options $305,000 

CEQA AND PROJECT PERMITTING: Based on City Council direction and authorization at tonight's 
hearing, staff will begin preparing an environmental review document for a parking lot on the Pacific 
Cove site. 

NEXT STEPS: With the approval of the Request for Proposals (RFP) for engineering and design 
services included as Attachment 3, staff will issue the RFP and return to the Council with a 
recommended contract in September 2013. 

The CEQA document will be released for public review early this winter, and will return to City Council for 
consideration along with other land use permits in early 2013. 

R\Agenda Staff Reports\2012 Agenda Reports\City Council\08-09-12\9.B. Pac Cove Project Description_Budget Report FINAL.docx . 



97

8-9-12 AGENDA REPORT: PACIFIC COVE SITE OPTIONS 2 

Priority· Element Cost Notes 
Mobilization $ 45,200 

Required Grading/site prep/surfacing $257,000 1 1/2" of AC over 4" AB 
elements Water quality/drainage $ 25,000 

Basic lighting $ 30,000 Overhead wires 
Basic landscaping $ 10,000 
Signage & Striping $ 40,000 Stalls, space numberss 

& pedestrian pathways 
Pay Stations $ 90,000 6 stations at 3 locations 

Construction Total $452,000 

Planning and Permitting $ 10,000 Includes CEQA 
Design $ 59,100 
Contingency $ 59,100 

Project Total $615,200 

Relocate coach for City storage $ 25,000 To Beulah property 
Optional Restroom renovation $ 75,000 
elements Shuttle stops $ 9,000 Benches & site 

improvements 
Enhance landscaping/lighting $ 30,000 Underground wires and 

more landscaped area 
Sub total $139,000 

Total with Optional elements $754,100 

City Council also suggested that certain improvements for the upper Pacific Cove lot could be considered 
in conjunction with the financing for the lower lot. Those items are outlined below: 

Element Cost Notes 
Pay Stations $90,0000 6 stations at 2 locations 
Lighting Improvements $15,000 Additional 3 lights 
Pedestrian Imrovements $200,000 Improved access to Monterey 

Avenue and Capitola Avenue 
Total Upper Lot options $305,000 

CEQA AND PROJECT PERMITTING: Based on City Council direction and authorization at tonight's 
hearing, staff will begin preparing an environmental review document for a parking lot on the Pacific 
Cove site. 

NEXT STEPS: With the approval of the Request for Proposals (RFP) for engineering and design 
services included as Attachment 3, staff will issue the RFP and return to the Council with a 
recommended contract in September 2013. 

The CEQA document will be released for public review early this winter, and will return to City Council for 
consideration along with other land use permits in early 2013. 

FISCAL IMPACT: As previously reported, parking spaces in the Pacific Cove lot currently generate 
approximately $300/year. Estimating that new parking spaces would generate $175/year, a new 220-
R:\Agenda Staff Reports\2012 Agenda Reports\City Council\08-09-12\9.A. Pac Cove Project Description_Budget Report FINAL.docx 



98

8-9-12 AGENDA REPORT: PACIFIC COVE SITE OPTIONS 3 

space lot would add about $40,000/year in revenue to the City. If the beach shuttle is rerouted through 
the new lot, the $5,000 lease with Crossroads shopping center could be terminated. Lastly, if a coach 
can be retrofitted for storage, it is possible the City could reduce its off-site storage expenditures. 

Annual increase revenue/decreased expenditures: 
Element Amount 
New parking spaces $40,000 
End beach shuttle lot lease $ 5,000 
Reduced storage costs $ 4,000 
Total sou fees $49,000 

Depending on the financing rate, it is anticipated a $600,000 project will cost approximately $30,000/year 
and a $750,000 project will cost $38,000 per year. 

A budget allocation of $75,000 within the Capital Improvement Program fund for preliminary engineering, 
planning and CEQA review for this project has been included as part of the Capital Improvement 
Program adoption being considered as another item on this agenda. 

At this time staff is recommending the Council take two actions related to project financing. First, adopt a 
resolution (Attachment 4) which will allow preliminary engineer and planning expenditures to be charged 
back to a future debt issuance. This is the same process the City followed with the park closure debt 
issuance, in which costs were incurred prior to the issuance of debt, 

Second, authorize staff to submit a "preliminary application" with the State IBank and begin the 
application process which can take up to 6 months to process. A preliminary application is the first step 
in the process, but does not commit the City to future action. The City will also concurrently review 
alternative funding opportunities; including refunding the Pacific Cove Mobile Home Park debt as a tax
exempt issuance and incorporating funding for the this project into the same debt. Staff will return later 
with a full report on the terms, rates, and conditions for various options for financing this project. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Project Description; 
2. Detailed project estimate; 
3. Draft Request for Proposals; 
4. Draft Resolution; 
5. March 24, 2011 Capitola Village Parking Structure Project Agenda Report and study by Watry 

Design. 

Report Prepared By: Steve Jesberg 
Public Works Director 

Reviewed and FO~~ 
By City Manager: ~ 

R:\Agenda Staff Reports\2012 Agenda Reports\City Council\08-09-12\9.A. Pac Cove Project Description_Budget Report FINAL.docx 



99

Lower Pacific Cove Parking Lot 
Proj ect Description 

" ATTACHMENT 1 

The project will develop an approximate 220 space surface public parking lot on approximately 4 
acres of land formerly used for the Pacific Cove Mobile Home Park located at 426 Capitola 
Avenue. The new parking lot shall be designed with the following features: 

• Maximum number of parking stalls, estimated at between 220 - 250 spaces 
• Efficient pedestrian and vehicle circulation 
• Two entrances/exits (Capitola Avenue and Bay Avenue) 
• Low impact development standards to address 

o Water quality 
o Stormwater flow control 

• Landscaping 
• Downcast lighting of parking and pedestrian fa~ilities 
• Pay by Space parking fee collection 
• Shuttle stops for Village Beach Shuttle operations during the summer 
• Other optional project components include: 

o Renovation of the existing restroom facilities 
o Placement of a new, or relocation of an existing, coach in the vicinity of Capitola 

Ave. for City storage/office space. 
o New landscaping/fencing on MontereylBay Ave. 
o New pedestrian access to Bay Ave. from upper Pacific Cove parking lot 
o Parking pay stations on upper Pacific Cove parking lot 

It is the goal ofthe project to construct a parking lot that will be in use for a period of up to five 
years at which time it is anticipated that other uses, which are not currently defined, will be 
developed for the site and all or portions of the parking lot removed. 



100

Engineer's Estimate 

Item Description 

1 Mobilization 

Lower Lot 

2 Clearing and site preparation 

3 Grading 

6 Surfacing 

7 Water Quality Improvements 

8 Lighting 

9 Landscaping 

10 Signage & Striping 

11 Pay Stations 

Additonal Work 

Restroom renovation 

Shuttle stops 

Enhanced Lighting & Landscaping 

Relocate coach to Beulah property 

Planning & Engineering 

Planning and Permitting 

Engineering 

Contingency 

Upper Lot Improvements 

Pay Stations 

Lighting 

Pedestrian Improvements 

ATTACHMENT 2 
Project: Pacific Cove Parking Lot Improvements 

Bid Opening Date: N/A 

Option 3 - Full Pakring 

Opinion of 

Probable Cost 

Unit Quantity Unit Price Total 

LS 

LS 1 $ 20,000 $ 
SY 30500 $ 1.00 $ 
SY 30500 $ 6.77 $ 
LS 1 $ 25,000 $ 
LS 10 $ 3,000 $ 
LS 1 $ 10,000 $ 
LS 1 $ 40,000 $ 
ea 6 $ 15,000 $ 

Construction sub-total $ 

LS 1 $ 75,000 $ 
Ea 3 $ 3,000 $ 
LS 1 30000 $ 
LS 1 25000 $ 

Additions sub-total $ 

2% $ 
10% $ 
10% $ 

P & E sub-total $ 

Projet Total $ 

ea 6 $ 15,000 $ 
LS 1 $ 15,000 $ 
LS 1 $ 200,000 $ 

Upper Lot Total $ 

$45,199 

20,000 
30,500 

206,485 

25,000 

30,000 

10,000 

40,000 

90,000 

451,985 1 

75,000 

9,000 

30,000 
25,000 

139,000 I 

10,000 

54,000 

54,000 

118,000 1 

754,1841 

90,000 

15,000 

200,000 

305,000 1 



101

ATTACHMENT 3 

Request for Proposals 
Pacific Cove Parking Lot Design 

The City of Capitola is soliciting for proposals from design firms to complete the design of the 
Pacific Cove Parking Lot Improvements. 

The Pacific Cove property is located at 426 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, CA. The property is 
comprised of two areas, one a plateau that is currently used as a public parking lot and a second 
area is a gulch that was a mobile home park up until recently. The City Council for the City 
recently approved the construction of a temporary parking lot in the lower area. It is the goal of 
the project to construct a parking lot in the lower area that will be in use for a period of up to five 
years at which time it is anticipated that other uses will be developed ror the site and portions ·of 
the parking lot removed. 

Project scope: 
1. Design the most efficient parking lot for the lower area. Design to include: 

a. Maximum number of stalls 
b. Efficient circulation 
c. Safe pedestrian passages 

i. ADA compliance 
d. Lighting 
e. Low impact design 

i. water treatment prior to discharge 
ii. Flow controls to match existing conditions 

f. Landscaping 
g. Analysis of surface treatment options to address possible short term use of lot 
h. Analyze realignment options of Bay Avenue exit to align exit with intersection 

of Bay Avenue and Monterey Avenue 
2. Refurbishment of public restrooms in lower lot 
3. Shuttle stops through lower lot 
4. Pay by Space pay station deployment through both lots for fee collection, including 

space numbering 
5. Upper parking lot improvements 

a. Lighting 
6. Provide plans and construction estimates at 30%,90% and 100% levels 
7. Prepare and provide construction specification at 90% and 100% design levels consistent 

with City of Capitola standards 

Project timeline: 
1. Release Request for Proposals 
2. Proposal submission 
3. Contract Award 
4. Complete survey, preliminary design 

including surfacing analysis (30% design) 
5. CEQA review and permitting 

(by others) 

August 2012 
September~, 2012 
October, 2012 

November 2012 

December - January 2013 



102

6. Revised plan based on mitigation 
measures (90% design) 

7. Complete construction plans, 
specifications and estimate 
(100% design) 

. 8. Construction 

February, 2013 

March 2013 
Summer 2013 

All proposals shall be based on the scope of work and schedule outlined above. Adjustments to 
the scope and schedule may be made following selection ofthe fmal firm. The adjustments must 
be mutually agreed upon by the City and the consultant. 

Proposals should include the following information: 

• Firms expression of its understanding of the project and key components 
• Details of the firm( s), including its history and experience similar proj ects 
• Identify project manager and other key personnel along with their office locations. 
• Provide proof of ability to meet liability insurance requirements of $1 ,000,000 for 

General Liability, and Automobile. 
• References with contact numbers of clients of similar projects. 
• The project proposal shall include a fee proposal for all costs for completion of the 

proj ect including but not limited to proposal preparation, meetings, report preparation, 
presentation materials, travel, and other incidental costs. 

The City reserves the right to make the selection based on its sole discretion. There will be no 
public opening and reading ofthe proposals. Based on the City staffs review a recommendation 
will be made to the City Manager. The City Manager will make a recommendation to the City 
Council, which awards agreements of this nature. 

Proposals will be evaluated on the basis of: 

Quality and completeness of the proposal; 
Demonstrated ability of the firm understanding of the project. 
Demonstrated ability of the firm to complete the project on time and within: budget 
Demonstrated qualifications and experience of the firm(s) and its employees. 
Price of services 
References 

The top selected firm will be expected to enter into the standard Consulting Agreement with the 
City, copy attached. Final approval of the contract will be at the discretion of the Capitola City 
Council. The City further reserves the right to negotiate directly with one firm or discontinue 
this process at any time 

All proposals must be submitted to the City by 5:00 p.m. on September~, 2010. Once 
submitted the proposals shall become the property of the City of Capitola. Proposals should be 
mailed or delivered to Steven E. Jesberg, Public Works Director, 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, 
CA 95010. 



103

Should you have any questions about this RFP or the selection process, please contact me by 
phone at (831) 475-7300 or via email atsjesberg@ci.capitola.ca.us. 

Yours truly, 

Steven E. J esberg 
Public Works Director 



104

ATTACHMENT 4 

RESOLUTION NO. 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA AUTHORIZING 
THE ADVANCE OF UP TO $75,000 IN FUNDS TO PAY FOR PRELIMINARY DESIGNS 

PURSUANT TO THE LOWER PACIFIC COVE PARKING LOT PROJECT 

WHEREAS, the City Council has approved the preliminary project description for the Lower 
Pacific Cove Parking Lot Project; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has directed staff to complete an application with the 
California Infrastructure and Economic Development Bank (IBank) an,Q{eview alternate funding 
sources for the Lower Pacific Cove Parking Lot Project; and<~J'Q~ 

WHEREAS, the Council has approved $75,000 for prelirnh1cif&'design work on the Pacific 
Cove Parking Lot Project as part of the Fiscal Year 2012/20j3 CapIt~llmprovement Program 
adoption;<h ' 

"* 
. i>''';;'..· 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RE$QLVED by the City CourlC.il of the City of 
Capitola that an application with the California h)Wi~tructure ~nd Economic DeY~lpprhent Bank 
(IBank) shall be completed to finance the Low13i- Paplfic Cov,~r~arking Lot Prqj~ct and other 
funding alternatives shall be reviewed; ,.' ....,:,/ . C'c .;> 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED th'aJ4he City Council ~p~roves the advance of up to $75,000 
in funds to pay preliminary Project costs:\Rri9Ctp the date on\vpigh fU"pding is provided by the 
designated lender. Any such advances shallb~;;reir:nbursed to th!?;.€ity from proceeds of the 
financing. <., . <if 

"'.;,,"::: ""~ 

I HEREBY CERTIF,Y'tt)i3t the foregoin~jrEis'olution 'wfi~\passed and adopted by the City 
Council of the City of Capftolaa(its. special meE3iirg held onfthe 9th day of August, 2012, by the 
following vote: / " .... 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABS~{\II: . 

ABSTAIN: 

ATTEST: 

___________________ ,CMC 
Susan Sneddon, City Clerk 

Michael Termini, Mayor 



          Item #: 5.A. 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF MARCH 24, 2011 

FROM:  DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

DATE:  MARCH 16, 2011 

SUBJECT: CAPITOLA VILLAGE PARKING STRUCTURE PLANNING PROJECT AND 
TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Recommended Action:  By motion and roll call vote, take the following actions: 

1. Receive and accept a report from Watry Design, Inc., on the Village Parking Structure at 
the Pacific Cove Parking Lot; and 

2. Receive and accept a report from RBF Consulting on the Traffic Impact, Circulation and 
Congestion Relief for the Pacific Cove Village Parking Structure; and 

3. Consider direction to staff to develop a financing plan for the project and allocate funds as 
available in the 2011-12 fiscal year budget for preliminary engineering, permitting, and 
environmental review for the Capitola Village Parking Structure at Pacific Cove Parking Lot. 

______________________________________________________________________________

BACKGROUND  

On January 14, 2010, the City Council accepted a $40,000 grant from the U.S. Department of 
Commerce Economic Development Administration (EDA) for the preparation of a Village Parking 
Structure Planning Project study that analyzed parking structure layouts and options for a new 
Pacific Cove Parking Lot on the City Hall/Pacific Cove sites.  The purpose of this study was to 
provide conceptual plans and construction cost estimates for a parking structure.  The study also 
looked at the potential long term uses for City Hall/Pacific Cove sites to ensure the parking 
structure is compatible with future uses. 

Following a detailed selection process a contract was awarded on May 13, 2010 to Watry Design 
to complete the study.  On May 27, 2010, based on the recommendation of the Traffic and Parking 
Commission, the City Council awarded a contract to RBF Consulting to complete a traffic impact 
analysis for the proposed parking structure. 

DISCUSSION

Both studies are complete and the consultants will present findings at this meeting.  Much of the 
design work was based on the needs analysis prepared by the Traffic and Parking Commission in 
their report to the City Council dated April 14, 2010. (Attachment 3) 

ATTACHMENT 5 

105



3-24-11 AGENDA REPORT:         Page 2 
CAPITOLA VILLAGE PARKING STRUCTURE PLANNING PROJECT AND TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

This report identifies the following current and future parking needs for the Village area: 

Demand Low High 

Current Shortfall 176 390 
Village Hotel 60 120 
Replace Theater Spaces 39 39 
Esplanade Pedestrian Walk 0 100 
Valet Parking Program 0 50 
Other New Development 50 100 

Total Long Term Parking Needs 325 799

Parking Structure Report Summary  

Based on the above needs and the existing dimensions of the Pacific Cove Parking Lot, Watry 
investigated parking structures with both two and three driving aisles.  The two aisle design was 
narrower than the existing property but required a minimum of four levels to meet the minimum 
parking needs.  The three aisle designs are slightly wider than the existing Pacific Cove Parking 
Lot, but would continue to maintain a landscape buffer between the structure and Pacific Cove 
Mobile Home Park.  Further the three aisle design can meet minimum needs with three levels, or 
provide a higher parking count with four levels.  Options 1 and 2 in the Watry report (Attachment 1)
detail the three aisle designs which are summarized in the table below.   

Option Number of 
levels

Total number 
of stalls 

Net new 
stalls

Estimated
Cost

1 3 554 320 $12.8 million 
2 4 664 430 $18.8 million 

Traffic Impact Report Summary

The traffic impacts of a new parking structure in the Pacific Cove Parking Lot, along with 
anticipated near-term development, are detailed in the RBF report (Attachment 3). Some 
intersection improvements will be necessary in the Village to maintain levels of service consistent 
with the City policies.  Most notably, the intersection of Bay Avenue and Capitola Avenue, and the 
intersection of Monterey Avenue and Park Avenue will need either signalization or roundabouts.  
The intersection of Monterey Avenue and Capitola Avenue may also require a traffic signal.  
Additionally, the intersection of Capitola Avenue and Stockton Avenue will see a slight reduction in 
the level of service, but improvements to this intersection are not recommended at this time.   

Intersection LOS – 
current

LOS – with structure 
and future development 

LOS- with 
structure/development 
and improvements 

Monterey & Park D E B 
Monterey & Capitola Ave D E A 
Stockton & Capitola Ave E E None recommended 
Stockton & Esplanade D A  
Capitola Ave & Riverview Dr C B  
Monterey & Bay  B B  
Capitola Ave & Bay C D A 
Capitola Ave & San Jose A A  

106



3-24-11 AGENDA REPORT:         Page 3 
CAPITOLA VILLAGE PARKING STRUCTURE PLANNING PROJECT AND TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

The previously reviewed one-way traffic proposal with a counter clockwise traffic circulation was 
also analyzed, but was determined infeasible without a new road through the Pacific Cove Parking 
Lot property.

FISCAL IMPACT

A multitude of funding sources will need to be explored and utilized to fund a project of this 
magnitude.  The Traffic and Parking Commission identified the following possible sources in their 
April 2010 report to the City Council: 

� Village Hotel contribution 
� CDBG grants 
� EDA grants 
� Bond proceeds 
� Parking meter revenue from increased rates 
� Adding parking meter to 43 existing spaces on Cherry Avenue 
� TOT revenue from either Village Hotel or increase in TOT rate

Initially, to start conceptual design and environmental review it is estimated that $300,000 -  
$500,000 will be needed.    

ATTACHMENTS

1. Capitola Village Parking Structure Planning Project by Watry Design, Inc., dated February 18, 
2011

2. Traffic Impact, Circulation and Congestion Relief Study for the Pacific Cove Village Parking 
Structure by RBF Consulting dated January 26, 2011 

3. Report on Parking Expansion Alternatives by the Traffic and Parking Commission dated April 
14, 2010 

Report Prepared By:  Steven Jesberg
  Public Works Director 

        Reviewed and Forwarded 
           By City Manager:  

      ________ 

R:\Agenda Staff Reports\2011 Agenda Reports\3-24-11\Pacific Cove Parking Structure Report.docx 

107



Capitola Village Parking Structure Planning Project 
for the City of Capitola 

February 18, 2011

ATTACHMENT 1

108

~ WATH DESIGI, lit. '§:== - .... - .--



  Page 1February 18, 2011

Capitola Village Parking Structure Planning Project
for the

City of Capitola

February 18, 2011
Prepared by

Watry Design, Inc.
Architects, Structural Engineers, Parking Planners

with

FIELD PAOLI
Architects

420 Capitola Ave, 
Capitola, CA 95010

Phone: 831.475-7300 • Fax: 831.464-8659

This report was prepared by Watry Design, Inc. for the City of Capitola 
under award No. 07-69-06484 from the Economic Development Agency, 
U.S. Department of Commerce.  The statements, findings, conclusions, and 
recommendatinos are those of the author(s) and do not necessarily reflect 
the views of the Economic Development Agency or the U.S. Department of 
Commerce.

ATTACHMENT 1

109



  Page 2February 18, 2011

Chapter 1 - Introduc� on 
Background 4
Study Chronology 4
Basis of Analysis 4

Chapter 2 - Parking Capacity Analysis
Parking Structure Design Analysis 5
Parking Structure Descrip� ons for Final Op� ons 1 and 2 6
Conclusions 6
Op� on 1 7
Op� on 2 12

Chapter 3 - Master Plan and Visualiza� on  
Site Master Plans 18
Site Visualiza� on  18
Master Plan Exis� ng City Hall 19
Master Plan New City Hall 20
Rendering 21

Chapter 4 - Cost Analysis  
Es� ma� ng Methodology 22
Es� mates of Probable Construc� on Cost 22

Appendix
Detailed Opinions of Probable Construc� on Cost Op� ons 1 and 2 24
Summary of Ini� al Op� ons 27

Table of Contents

ATTACHMENT 1

110



  Page 3February 18, 2011

December 16, 2010

Mr. Steve Jesberg
Public Works Director
420 Capitola Avenue
Capitola,CA 95010

RE:  Capitola Village Parking Structure Planing Project

Dear Steve,

Watry Design is pleased to submit to you the Capitola Village Parking Structure Planning Study.  This 
feasibility report includes results from data collec� on and site analysis in conjunc� on with the e� orts 
of Field Paoli.  Watry Design and Field Paoli have endeavored to assemble this informa� on into a clear 
and concise format.  We believe that it addresses the concerns and criteria iden� � ed in the original 
Request for Proposal, as well as those raised during the study process.

We thank you for this opportunity to work for you and hope to do so again in the near future.

Sincerely,

WATRY DESIGN, INC.

Michelle Wendler, Architect
Principal

ATTACHMENT 1

111



  Page 4February 18, 2011

Background

This Parking Feasibility Study has been prepared by Watry Design, Inc. and Field Paoli, with direc� on 
from City of Capitola sta�  for short- and long-term planning purposes. It is the intent of this project 
to develop preliminary project details for the future development of a mul� -level parking structure, 
which can then be incorporated with a future City Hall site redevelopment. The project will be devel-
oped in phases; the � rst phase is the parking structure with a possible City Hall/commercial develop-
ment as a second phase. 

Study Chronology

Task 1:  Stakeholder mee� ngs/background research – Watry met with City Sta�  and members of the 
City’s Tra�  c and Parking Commission subcommi� ee for the Parking Structure to discuss background 
informa� on, project vision and related issues. Prior to this mee� ng Watry reviewed documents pro-
vided by the City.

Task 2: Site mee� ngs and Design coordina� on – Watry reviewed the site and developed design pa-
rameters and standards to be used in the preliminary design e� ort. The design parameters included, 
entrance and exit limita� ons, topography, number of parking spaces provided, and pedestrian access 
routes to the Central Village.

Task 3: Development of op� ons for Parking Structure – Watry developed a set of preliminary op� ons 
for the parking structure for review by the City and Commission. These op� ons presented � ve alterna-
� ve plan layout op� ons. Preliminary cost es� mates for each op� on were provided.

Task 4:  Site Master Plan – Watry, in conjunc� on with Field Paoli, developed site plans for the en� re 
site, incorpora� ng parking structure and City Hall, developing spaces for future uses including civic 
func� ons and poten� al commercial space.

Task 5: Floor Plans for two selected parking structures.  - Watry prepared plan sheets for two selected 
parking structure op� ons. These plans included � oor plans, basic structural elements, entrance and 
exit paths of travel for both vehicles and pedestrians and other elements necessary to visually depict 
the structure on site.  Parking structures are placed on site background taken from aerial photography.  

Chapter 1 - Introduction

Task 6: 3-D renderings and visualiza� on for site master plan - Based on direc� on from City sta�  Field 
Paoli prepared plan sheets for two � nal site master plans.  An architectural rendering was prepared to 
represent architectural character of parking structure within the site context.

Task 7:  Develop Parking Structure costs es� mates – Rough cost es� mates were developed for the two 
selected parking structure op� ons. Include are cost es� mates for planning, permi�  ng, engineering, 
construc� on, and construc� on management costs, i.e. so	  costs.

Task 8:  Develop Site Master Plan costs – Watry and Field Paoli developed a budgetary cost es� mate for 
the selected master plan. The es� mate includes preliminary site development cost based on square 
footage of the buildings and site improvements.

Task 9:  Project Report - The � nal project report describes the process of developing the selected op-
� ons, speci� c details, costs es� mates and reduced plan sheets.

Basis of Analysis

The study was established with the parameters that the structure should achieve a minimum of 325 new 
parking spaces to a maximum of 800 new parking spaces for a es� mated cost of $10,000,000.  Below 
is a brief summary of the parking demand requirements derived from previous studies authorized by 
the City of Capitola. As the Paci� c Cove Lot is the only parcel le	  large enough to develop structured 
parking, it would be ideal to maximize the number of parking stalls provided while remaining within 
the budget the City can � nance.  

The following chart was excerpted from the Report on Parking Expansion Alterna� ves for the Tra�  c 
and Parking Commission dated April 14, 2010.

Demand Low High
Current Shortfall 176 390
Village Hotel 60 120
Replace Theater Spaces 39 39
Esplanade Pedestrian Walk 0 100
Valet Parking Program 0 50
Other New Development 50 100
Total Long Term Parking Needs 325 799

ATTACHMENT 1

112



  Page 5February 18, 2011

Parking Structure Design Analysis

Watry Design was commissioned by the City of Capitola to evaluate the feasibility of accommoda� ng 
structured parking within the Paci� c Cove Parking Lot. The analysis was provided in two steps, an ini� al 
analysis of 5 op� ons followed by the development of 2 � nal op� ons derived from the ini� al analysis. 

Parking structures are made up of parking bays that include a drive aisle with parking stalls on either 
side.  E�  cient parking layouts have parking on both sides of a drive aisle. This parking can either be 
angled parking or 90 degree parking. 90 degree parking is more e�  cient than angled parking, but 
requires a wider width than angled parking. Two bay solu� ons � t the parking structure within the 
exis� ng parking lot area. Ini� al analysis  determined that the width of the site in the north south di-
rec� on was a cri� cal factor in the layout of the structure. Both 2 bay and 3 bay parking solu� ons were 
compared to the width of the site. 2 Bay structures only yield the minimum parking stalls and require 4 
levels of parking to achieve that goal. Three bay parking solu� ons exceed the footprint of the exis� ng 
parking lot and extend past the fence line to the north. Using 60 degree parking with 3 bays, you can 
meet the minimum parking demand in three parking levels. Since the height above grade is a factor 
rela� ve to the impact on the surrounding community and the distance below grade is a factor rela� ve 
to increasing cost, it was determined that the parking structure should not be higher than the adja-
cent railroad tracks and ideally would not be below grade far enough to require mechanical ven� la� on 
or sprinklers. These condi� ons guided the development of the � nal two op� ons.

In addi� on to the analysis above, the following factors played into the decision for the � nal op� ons.

Angled versus. 90 degree parking
Both 90 degree parking and angled parking were reviewed in the ini� al op� ons.  For the 2 bay solu-
� ons, 90 degree parking was used throughout. For the three bay solu� ons, angled parking was used, 
except on the ramp. 90 degree stalls were u� lized where two-way circula� on is required. 90 degree 
parking is more e�  cient than angled parking, which means that it will cost less per parking stall to 
build. However, due to the narrow site, it was determined that three bays of 90 degree parking was 
not feasible. In the � nal 2 op� ons, 3 bay solu� ons of both 45 degree and 60 degree angles were evalu-
ated. These op� ons were evaluated to determine the impact on the northern area beyond the park-
ing lot and took into considera� on the removal of exis� ng trees. Op� on 2 is 45 degree parking and 
provides a narrower building, but less parking stalls on each � oor.  Op� on 1 uses a 60 degree solu� on, 
is more e�  cient, but extends 9’-6” further to the north. (14’-6” past fence versus 5’-0” past fence).

Parking Stall Size
The ini� al op� ons were reviewed with both 9’-0” wide and 8’-6” parking spaces.  The standard stall 
sizes required by the City of Capitola zoning regula� ons are 9’-0” wide by 20’-0” long, however the 
exis� ng parking stalls in the Paci� c Cove Lot are much smaller than that.  The size of a parking space 
is usually rela� ve to the type of user.  High turnover spaces with less familiar users generally require 
wider parking spaces.  Lower turnover spaces can have narrower parking spaces.  Because the parking 
in this structure is longer term and lower turnover, we are recommending that 8’-6” wide by 18’-0” 

long stalls be used.  In addi� on, the width of the stall has an a� ect on the e�  ciency which has a direct 
rela� onship to cost.  Narrower stalls allow more stalls in the same square footage.  It should also be 
noted that this is the most common stall size used in the Bay Area.  This stall size is assumed for all the 
� nal op� ons.

Ramp Type
Both express ramps and parked on ramps were inves� gated in the ini� al op� ons.  Express ramps are 
ramps that average up to 15% slope and connect the � oors without parking.  Parked on ramps are 
parking bays that are sloped to connect the � oors. Express ramps provide a higher level of service 
because cars can circulate from � oor-to-� oor without interac� ng with cars pulling in and out of park-
ing spaces. Although they allow the parking to be on � at � oors, they are less e�  cient and therefore 
contribute to a higher cost per parking stall. Parked on ramps are generally more advantageous in 
low turnover parking, are more e�  cient and therefore contribute to a lower cost per stall. However, 
parked on ramps require one third of the stalls to be parked on sloping � oors and since the circula� on 
between � oors must also interact with cars pulling in and out of parking spaces, it provides a lower 
level of service. Due to the site con� gura� on, it was possible to use an express ramp with the two bay 
solu� ons and it was inves� gated as a possible op� on. The 3 bay solu� ons were studied with parked 
on ramps. The conclusion was to use parked on ramps, based on the type of user, a low turnover rate 
and the importance of maximizing new parking stalls within the site parameters and budget.  The � nal 
op� ons u� lize a parked on ramp solu� on.

Number of Levels and Rela� onship to Exis� ng Grade
Ini� al op� ons were reviewed having three and four parking levels at a grade eleva� on of 33.5 and at 
22. At eleva� on 33.5, the lowest level of parking did not require mechanical ven� la� on or sprinklers. 
At eleva� on 22, the lowest level requires both. A	 er review of 3-D massing models to understand the 
propor� ons of the proposed op� ons and their impact on the surrounding area, it was determined 
that the top deck of the parking structure should not be higher than the railroad tracks on the south 
side. The � nal op� ons include a 3 and 4 level solu� on. Both op� ons set the top deck at the tracks and 
therefore the lowest level of the 4 level op� on is completely below grade and would require mechani-
cal ven� la� on and sprinklers.

The following programma� c items were included in all op� ons.  

Stairs and elevator cores were included at the southwest and southeast corners of the site providing 
connec� ons to Monterey and Capitola Ave as well as to City Hall.  The southwest core u� lizes a new 
pedestrian linkage proposed to connect to Capitola Ave that will provide a more direct access to the 
Village.  The vehicular access from Capitola Ave was widened to provide 2-way circula� on at this en-
trance.

All op� ons evaluated provide an area for valet parking on the top deck to provide addi� onal new park-
ing stalls into the Village area. The valet area would be u� lized by hotels in the village and would be 
separated from the general use parking. 

Chapter 2 - Parking Capacity Analysis

ATTACHMENT 1

113



  Page 6February 18, 2011

Option 1 Option 2

SQUARE FOOTAGE 168,300 213,400

STALL ANGLE  60 degrees  45 degrees

NUMBER OF LEVELS 3 levels 4 levels
 
ENCROACHMENT PAST FENCE 14’-6” 5'-0"

EFFICIENCY 317 sf/stall 331 sf/stall

NUMBER OF TOTAL STALLS 554 stalls 664 stalls

NUMBER OF NET NEW STALLS 320 stalls 430 stalls

TOTAL COST $12,777,863 $18,813,270

COST PER STALL $23,065 $28,333

COST PER NET NEW STALL $39,931 $43,752

ADDED STALLS WITH VALET 26 24

Parking Structure Descrip� ons for Final Op� ons 1 and 2

The � nal op� ons summary is provided below: Note both op� ons retain 23 on grade stalls which are 
included in the stall count

Conclusions

A	 er the evalua� on of the � nal op� ons it was determined that Op� on 1 was the preferred alterna� ve 
for the following reasons.

1. It is within the limits of the possible funding scenarios of the City.
2. It meets the minimum parking demand.
3. It � ts within the site parameters; below the railroad tracks while not requiring a below grade level.

While Op� on 2 provides more parking spaces, it’s cost per new parking space is higher due to the 
higher sf/stall and the level below grade.  While it is possible to add a level of parking to Op� on 1 and 
add approximately 190 parking spaces. The addi� onal level would be below grade and would make 
the cost per new stall higher.  This might be outside the funding limita� ons of the City.

The analysis provided the following insights.

1. It is not possible to meet the maximum parking demand within the funding limita� ons.
2. 4 levels of parking, if provided above grade to minimize costs, would be too tall.
3. Providing the 4th level of parking below grade may be cost prohibi� ve.
4. It is necessary to go beyond the limits of the exis� ng surface parking lot to provide a more e�  cient 

solu� on.
5. The distance beyond the parking lot to the north can s� ll be mi� gated by landscaping.
6. It is possible to incorporate valet parking to increase the parking supply in the structure.
7. The pedestrian connec� on to Capitola Avenue is cri� cal to the success of the project.
8. Widening the vehicular access to Capitola Avenue is cri� cal to the success of the project.
9. The structure can be designed for both the current and future City Hall con� gura� ons.
10. Keeping the structure below the level of the railroad tracks is an important site considera� on.
11. The architectural facade treatment and landscaping will be important to integrate the structure 

into the exis� ng context and address community compa� bility.

Chapter 2 - Parking Capacity Analysis

ATTACHMENT 1

114



  Page 7February 18, 2011

Chapter 2 - Parking Capacity Analysis

Not to Scale

PACIFIC COVE PARKING LOT OPTION 1 (PREFERRED)

ATTACHMENT 1

115

- -
~ 
~ 

~ 

r \ 

~~ ~\ 

'- '- ,. 

3 - LEVEL 

LEVEl. ""IST"'- M:CUOIOI.< VALET ""AI. AAEAQIOFrl aa. PT. I STAI.L 
GROUND LEVEL PARKING PLAN tI" ... x 18"-o? f¥-tr .... -O'1 CII.fr x 11'-0'1 _. 

". 0 0 "" euoo an 

..-. .. 0 0 .. ......, ... 
JlE~Q ..-. ... 10 0 112 ......, ... 
• ICIItIoTU IOWOOO TfIU toTAl. ... 10 0 AI - ." 
X ...... TUCou:I'fIIlI: 

• MItIITtI,.uu 

I.::~:: I 
.., 10 0 

I 
.., 

I 
......,. ... 

"""KI 
"""' .. 0 "" .. euoo oro 

® ... 10 "" - - ..,. 
.23 ADDmoNAL STALLS ON~E, ClRAND TOTAL ON SITE: §II! 

~ta ~~ n&.!..§; ~ -~ ,~ = ;J22 



  Page 8February 18, 2011

Chapter 2 - Parking Capacity Analysis

Not to Scale

PACIFIC COVE PARKING LOT OPTION 1 (PREFERRED)

Second Level Parking Plan

ATTACHMENT 1

116

- -

"".. I \:1; 
® - -~---------;,~~~~~~ _---~. r... --- - - -:::::::::::::::::::: 



  Page 9February 18, 2011

Chapter 2 - Parking Capacity AnalysisPACIFIC COVE PARKING LOT OPTION 1 (PREFERRED)

Not to Scale

ATTACHMENT 1

117

- -

~-- --~ 

THIRD !£VEL PARKING PLAN 



  Page 10February 18, 2011

Chapter 2 - Parking Capacity AnalysisPACIFIC COVE PARKING LOT OPTION 1 (PREFERRED)

Not to Scale

ATTACHMENT 1

118

- -

lHlRD LEVEL PARKING PLAN 



  Page 11February 18, 2011

Chapter 2 - Parking Capacity Analysis

LONGITUDINAL SECTION - Option 1

TRANSVERSE SECTION - Option 1

PACIFIC COVE PARKING LOT OPTION 1 (PREFERRED)

(City Hall) (Exit to Monterey Ave)

(Pacific Cove Mobile Home Park) (Train Tracks)

ATTACHMENT 1

119



  Page 12February 18, 2011

Chapter 2 - Parking Capacity Analysis

Not to Scale

PACIFIC COVE PARKING LOT OPTION 2

ATTACHMENT 1

120

- -

45· 'OPTION 

"' l.EYU "",",ALL ...,.... .... VALET 
TOTAL ..... (8QFTJ 8Q. n. I STALl 

...... 11'-0") fJI~ II.4I f11-v ... 41 

BASEMENT LEVEL PARKING PLAN 

_. ... ... ...... ... 
-, - ,.,. ...... "" _. 

"" " 100 ...... ... 
TREE LEOEHD - •• 10 • ...... ... 
• .ac_ra!ll[DWOOl) TlU lOT ... ... .. ... ....... ... 
)( _UTU GMtIIII 

. _UTU_r.x 
a..w.Q,.21l3 ... .. .,. ......., 34 • 

,")1m 
NOO .. t...- a . ' v. .. .. ., 

""'" 2M 

® lOT ... ... IS .. - ......,. ... 
.23 ADDITIONAL STAllS ON-GRADE, GRAND TOTAL ON SITE: §M 
!j!IT H!;W III&.~, ~ • m 1£1 = ~ 



  Page 13February 18, 2011

Not to Scale

PACIFIC COVE PARKING LOT OPTION 2 Chapter 2 - Parking Capacity Analysis

ATTACHMENT 1

121

\ l I \' \ \ 
f'-- ~~l 

OROUHD I.£VEL PARKING PLAN 



  Page 14February 18, 2011

Chapter 2 - Parking Capacity Analysis

Not to Scale

PACIFIC COVE PARKING LOT OPTION 2

ATTACHMENT 1

122

- -

SECOND !.£VEL PARKINQ PLAN 



  Page 15February 18, 2011

Chapter 2 - Parking Capacity Analysis

Not to Scale

PACIFIC COVE PARKING LOT OPTION 2

ATTACHMENT 1

123

- -

~-- --~ 

THIRD LEVEL PARKING PLAN 



  Page 16February 18, 2011

Chapter 2 - Parking Capacity Analysis

Not to Scale

PACIFIC COVE PARKING LOT OPTION 2

ATTACHMENT 1

124

- -

THIRD LEVEL PARKING PlAN 



  Page 17February 18, 2011

Chapter 2 - Parking Capacity Analysis

LONGITUDINAL SECTION - Option 2

TRANSVERSE SECTION - Option 2

PACIFIC COVE PARKING LOT OPTION 2

(Train Tracks)

(Exit to Monterey Ave)(City Hall)

(Pacific Cove Mobile Home Park)

ATTACHMENT 1

125



  Page 18February 18, 2011

Site Master Plans

The Site Master Plans illustrate how the parking structure can � t into the larger context of Capitola.  
The site is well suited as a loca� on for parking to serve the downtown and beach areas and integrates 
well with the exis� ng City o�  ces. This development can be an opportunity to create a “gateway” ele-
ment that announces the arrival at downtown Capitola.  In addi� on to providing needed parking, it 
can improve the experience of visi� ng the downtown for both residents and out-of-town guests.

Adjacent Residen� al Areas

The parking structure is well bu� ered from adjacent residen� al proper� es. The raised railroad bed to 
the south forms a physical barrier separa� ng the garage structure and the residen� al buildings to the 
south; the parking structure will be lower than the railroad bed.  Its width allows for dense plan� ng 
that will remain in place. The � oor eleva� on of the structure is signi� cantly higher than the mobile 
home community to the north and the hillside between them allows for plan� ng of vegeta� on to 
screen views of the garage.

City O�  ce Site

The parking structure’s rela� onship to the City O�  ce site was evaluated for access and for poten� al 
reuse. The viability of future commercial development was taken into considera� on. Connec� ons to 
the exis� ng structure were planned to ensure convenient access and to provide ADA compliant routes 
for the disabled.  Future moderniza� on or reconstruc� on of the City O�  ces was considered, allowing 
for be� er vehicular circula� on to the garage and orienta� on to make the City O�  ces a civic “gateway” 
element.

Vehicular Access

Exis� ng street entrances will be maintained and enhanced for safety and ability to carry the necessary 
tra�  c.  The west entrance road will be regraded to a � a� er slope and its intersec� on with the drive-
way serving the mobile home community will be improved. Visibility and iden� � ca� on of the parking 
structure entries will be designed to improve way� nding.

Pedestrian Access

Pedestrian routes connec� ng the parking with the downtown areas will be separated from the ve-
hicular roadways to increase safety.  The design will create a welcoming experience that creates a 
much stronger visual connec� on to downtown. A “boardwalk” path will lead from the elevator core 
to Capitola Avenue, passing under the railroad trellis to connect with the exis� ng downtown sidewalk.  
This path will be constructed to provide ADA compliant access to the disabled and will created a well-
landscaped amenity to the community.

Chapter 3 - Master Plans and Visualization

Visualiza� on

The ar� st’s sketch (page 23) illustrates the design characteris� cs of the new parking structure as it 
relates to the surrounding community. Viewed from above, the structure is well-bu� ered by foliage 
on all sides.  As many exis� ng trees as possible will be preserved. At street level, the parking structure 
is visible only at the three entrance points where design features will iden� fy it and relate it to the 
architectural character of Capitola.

The exis� ng City O�  ces are shown in the foreground. A pedestrian connec� on to the upper level will 
be maintained.  

The driveway to the north of the City O�  ces will be widened to provide safer access and increase the 
view to the garage entrance, which will make it easy to iden� fy.

The proposed boardwalk connec� on will traverse a landscaped hillside above the Museum and will 
pass beneath the railroad trestle to improve the experience of walking from one’s car to downtown.

ATTACHMENT 1

126



  Page 19February 18, 2011

Chapter 3 - Master Plans and Visualization

ATTACHMENT 1

127

--



  Page 20February 18, 2011

Chapter 3 - Master Plans and Visualization

ATTACHMENT 1

128

- -

PACIFIC COVE PARKING LOT - MASTER PLAN REPLACED CITY HALL 



  Page 21February 18, 2011

Chapter 3 - Master Plans and Visualization

ATTACHMENT 1

129

- -

WATIY DESIGIII, 11ilC. 
NdoIfMlJ · ""ro.- . ~ .... _ 



  Page 22February 18, 2011

Chapter 4 - Cost Analysis

Es� ma� ng Methodology

Please note that Watry Design developed it’s database of unit costs from it’s extensive experience 
working on similar parking structures. Recognizing that Watry Design has no control over the cost 
of materials, equipment, labor, or an individual contractor’s method of determining prices, we can-
not o� er guarantees that the actual construc� on costs will not vary from this statement of opinion. 
These es� mates are in 2010 dollars and include a 10% design con� ngency and 8% escala� on costs.  
This would allow for approximately three years to start of construc� on. If construc� on on a structure 
is started later, costs would rise at approximately 4-6% per year. Depending on the � ming of the con-
struc� on bid, these unit costs may � uctuate.  Construc� on costs assume a shallow founda� on.  

So	  costs may vary depending on the methodology of delivering the project.  So	  costs generally 
would include full architectural and engineering services, soils report, site survey, ALTA report, � tle 
reports, permits and inspec� ons, tes� ng, tra�  c studies, construc� on management, and project man-
agement.  We have included a 20% factor to cover so	  costs(*). No land or � nancing costs have been 
included.

The costs assume mechanical ven� la� on and sprinklers only for levels completely below grade. The 
costs assume an architectural � nish level above a standard parking structure in order to integrate the 
structure into the community.

As part of cost analysis, two program items that a� ect the cost were evaluated separately.  We indi-
cated the added cost for these program items on each op� on.

The � rst is the premium for upgrading the top deck of the parking structure to accommodate in-
creased loading so that the possibility of using the top deck for something other than parking may be 
achieved.  The typical parking structure is designed for 40 lbs/sf. Premium loading would increase this 
to 100 lbs/sf and allow for alterna� ve uses, such as public gatherings.

The second is the premium for increasing the seismic importance factor.  Currently, City police vehicles 
are parked on the surface lot next to City Hall. In some future scenarios, this parking may go away and 
it would be assumed that these vehicles may park in the parking structure. If these vehicles are � rst 
responding vehicles it may be considered important that the structure be designed above the base 
building code. The base building code only requires buildings to be designed to allow people to get 
out of the building prior to a possible collapse during a seismic event. While there is no such thing 
as an earthquake proof building, increasing the structural capacity of the seismic system provides 
a higher level of building protec� on. This is the same level of protec� on that Emergency Response 
Centers would be designed to. While the code does not mandate increasing the importance factor for 
� rst responding vehicles, we have provided this premium cost so that the City can make an informed 
decision on how to proceed.

We are also providing general order of magnitude costs for implemen� ng the master plan scenario for 
a new City Hall.

For more detailed break down of these es� mates please see the appendix.

Capitola Village Parking Structure Cost Es� mates

Op� on 1

Construc� on Costs   $10,648,219
So	  Costs*    $2,129,644

Project Costs   $12,777,863 
 

Op� onal Program Items:

Premium Loading    
Construc� on $823,843
So�  Costs*    $988,611

Emergency Response Seismic Ra� ng
Construc� on     $833,443
So�  Costs*    $1,000,131

Rebuild City Hall at Exis� ng Site

Demo Exis� ng City Hall  $106,000 
New City Hall at same site  $4,712,500
Site Development around City Hall $75,000
Temporary City Hall for 2 years $420,000
Escala� on    $410,680
So	  Costs*    $1,108,836

Project Cost  $6,653,016

Op� on 2

Construc� on Costs   $15,677,725
So	  Costs*    $3,135,545

Project Costs   $18,813,270

Op� onal Program Items:

Premium Loading    
Construc� on $1,213,883
So�  Costs*    $1,456,660

Emergency Response Seismic Ra� ng
Construc� on    $1,229,457
So�  Costs*    $1,475,349

ATTACHMENT 1

130



  Page 23February 18, 2011

APPENDIX 

ATTACHMENT 1

131



  Page 24February 18, 2011

Appendix i

Detailed Opinions of Probable 
Construction Cost
Options 1 and 2 

ATTACHMENT 1

132



  Page 25
February 18, 2011

A
ppendix i

A
T

T
A

C
H

M
E

N
T

 1

133

City of Capitola Parking Structu re 

Opinion of Cost 

Watry Design, Inc. job 09018 

Parking Structure Option 1 

Total Area 168,300 sf Total 5tall Count 554 

Elevated Area 109.400 sf Stroctured Stalls 531 
On Grade Area 58,900 sf SIte Stalls 23 

SIte Area 29,100 sf ExlstfngStalls 234 

add for add for 

Unjt Cost Quantity Cost SubTotal 100 pst Ll roof 1::1,5 

Site 606,610 

Prep, grad1n& dewaterlne 150,000 S 150,000 

Site Utilities 100,000 S 100.000 

Retaining wall at NW 75,000 S 75,000 

SIte asphalt and parking S 5,00 20,370sf S 101.850 
Pedestrian Walkway 150,00 5001f S 75,000 

landscapIng 12.00 8,730sf S 104.760 

Foundation 1,178,100 S 117,810 S 294,525 

ShaUow Foundation 7.00 168,300sf S 1,178,100 

Substructure 634.900 

Mass Elccavation 15.00 lOOcy S 1.500 
Shoring 15.00 7,OOOsf S 105,000 

Slab on Grade 6.00 58,900sf S 353,400 

Retainins Walls 25.00 7,OOOsf S 175.000 

Superstructure S 2,436,000 

S" PT Concrete Decks 12.00 109,400sf S 1,312.800 S 328.200 262.560 
14)(36 PT Beams 4,00 109,400sf S 437,600 S 109,400 

Curbs S 1,00 109.400sf S 109.400 

Shear Walls S 35.00 3,96Osf S 138,600 69,300 

Columns S 4,00 109,400sf S 437.600 S 43.7&0 

ExterIor Envelope S 1,086,800 

Precast Ralls 200.00 2,068lf S 413,600 

Exterior Paint. finish 1.50 168,300sf S 252.450 

~mtttf Misc. Architecture 2,50 168,300sf S 420,750 

Interior Const 420.750 

Ralls. doors. paint 2.50 168,300sf S 420.750 

Convevlng 380,000 

Stairs 20,000 S 80.000 S 20,000 

Elevator 150,000 S 300.000 
Mechanical 

Mechanical Ventilation 2,00 Osf S 

Plumbing 199,850 

Plumbing 0,75 168.300sf S 126.225 

Fire Protection 1.25 58,900sf S 73.625 

Electrical 673,200 

Electrk:al and lighting 4,00 168.300sf S 673,200 

Equipment 50,000 

Pay by Space 50.000 S 50.000 

Mise. Costs 336.600 

MIse. Project Costs 2,00 168,300sf S 336.600 

Total S 8,002,810 S 8,002,810 S 619.170 S 626,385 

Design Contingency 10% BOO.281 S 8.803.091 d,," 
Escalation 8% 704.247 S 9.507.338 "" Overhead, Profit, Insurance and GCs 12% S 1,140,881 S 10.648.219 

S 823.843 833,443 

Construction Cost Total $ 10.648,219 I 20,053 per struc:tstall 

63 per total sf 

OeslgnFees 10% S 1,064,822 19,221 per total stall 

Constroction Manasement 1% S 106,482 33,276 per net new 

Inspection 2% 212,964 

Project Management 2% 212,964 

Permfts, Fees, Insurance: '" S 319,447 

Miscellaneous 2% 212.964 

Flnanclngand Land Costs Not Included S 988.611 1,000,131 

Project Cost Total $ 12.777.863 1 24.064 per struc:t stall 

76 per total sf 

Option 1 23,065 per total stall 

Construction Prqect 39.931 per net new 

Costadd toatlow 100psfUatroof S 823.843 988,611 

Cost add to allow 1;1.5 seismic S 833,443 1,000,131 



  Page 26
February 18, 2011

A
ppendix i

A
T

T
A

C
H

M
E

N
T

 1

134

City of Capitola Parking Structure 

Opi nion of Cost 

Watry Design, Inc. job 09018 

Parking Structure Option 2 

Total Area 212,300 sf Total Stall Count 664 

Elevated Area 157.100 sf Structured Stalls 641 

On Grade Area 55,200 sf 51te Stalls 23 

Site Area 32,800 sf Existing Stalls 23. 

add for add for 

Unit Cost Quantity eost SUbTotal 100 pSf U at roof 1=1.5 

Site 943,520 

Prep. grading. dewatering S 500,000 500,000 

Site Utilities S 100,000 100,000 

Retaining w.all.at NW S 75.000 S 75.000 

Site asphalt and parkl"8 S 5.00 22.960sf S 114.800 

Pedestrian Walkway S lSO.OO 5001f S 75.000 

landscaping S 8.00 9,840sf S 78,720 

Foundation 1.910.700 191.070 5 4n,675 

Shallow Foundation S 9.00 212,300sf S 1,910,700 

Substructure 1,795,907 

Mass Excavation S 15.00 26.S78cy 398,667 

Shoring S 20.00 2O,ooosf S 400,000 

Slab on Grade S 6.00 55,200 sf 331.200 

Waterproofing 5.00 13,208 sf 66.040 

Retaining Walls S 30.00 20,000 sf 600.000 

Superstructure 3,437,700 

5" PT Concrete Decks 5 12.00 157.100sf S 1.885.200 471,300 3n.04O 
14x36 PT Beams S '.00 157.100sf S 628,400 157,100 

C",bs S 1.00 157,100 sf 157.100 

Shear Walls S 35.00 3.960sf S 138.600 69.300 

Columns S '.00 157. 100 sf S 62.8.400 62,840 

E)Cterior Envelope 952,800 

Precast Rails S 200.00 2,032 If 406,400 

~mtttf Exterior Paint. finish S 1.50 157.100sf S 235.650 

Misc. Architecture S 2.50 124.300sf S 310,750 

Interior Const 530.750 

Ratls, doors. paint S 2.50 212.300 sf 530.750 

Corweylng 470.000 

Stairs S 20.000 6 S 120.000 30.000 

Elevator S 175,000 $ 350,000 

Mechanical 110,400 

Mechanical Ventilation S 2.00 55.200sf S 110,400 

Plumbing 297.225 

Plumbing S 0.75 212.300sf S 159,225 

Fire ProtectJon 1.25 110,400 sf 138,000 

Electrical 849,200 

Electrical and Ughtfng S '.00 212,300 sf S 849,200 

Equipment 60.000 

Pay by Spaee S 60,000 S 60,000 

Mise. Costs 424,600 

Misc. Project Costs S 2.00 212,300 sf 424.600 

Total 11.782.802 S 11,782.802 912,310 S 924.015 

DesignContlnsencv 10% 1,178,280 12.961.082 "K' 
Escalation 8% 1,036.887 13,997,968 0' 

Overhead, Profit. Insurance and GCs 12% 1,679.756 S 15.677,725 1,213.883 1.229.457 

Construction Cost Total $ 15,677,725 1 24,458 per struct stall 

74 per total sf 

Oesian Fees 10% 1.567,772 23.611 per total stall 

Construction Management 1% S 156,777 36.460 per net new 

Inspection 2% $ 313.554 

Project Management 2% 313.554 

Permits, Fees, Insurance 3% 470.332 

Mfs.c.ell,neOl.ls 2% 313,554 

Financingand land Costs Not Included 1.456,660 1.475,349 

Project Cost Total $ 18,813,270 I 29.3$0 per struct stall 

89 per total sf 

Option 2 28.333 per total stall 

Construction ProjeGt 43,752 per net new 

Cost add toallow 100psf II at roof S 1.213.883 1,456.660 

Cost add to allow 1=1.5 seismic S 1.229.457 1.475,349 



  Page 27February 18, 2011

Appendix ii

Initial Options A-E

ATTACHMENT 1

135



  Page 28February 18, 2011

Appendix ii

ATTACHMENT 1

136

TOTAL STALLS TOTAL SQ. FT. SQ. FT.lSTALL 

OPTION A 477 171 .200 359 

OPTION B 469 171.200 365 

OPTION C 501 166.600 333 

OPTION D 501 166.600 333 

TOTAL STALLS TOTAL SQ. FT. SQ. FT.lSTALL 

OPTION A 508 171 .200 337 

OPTION B 508 171 ,200 337 

OPTION C 550 166.600 303 

OPTION D 550 166.600 303 

OPTION E 530 173.100 327 

232 IExisting stalts in the lot 
t:::~2~3~::jRemaining on grade stalls 

- -
= 

Parking Structure for City of Capitola 
Capitola, CA 

STALL/ COST SUMMARY 9'-0" x 18'-0" STALLS 

NET NEW STALLS 
TOTAL STALLS NET NEW STALLS 

W/VALET W/ VALET 

268 501 292 

260 501 292 

292 518 309 

292 517 308 

STALL/ COST SUMMARY 8'-6" x 18'-0" STALLS 

NET NEW STALLS 
TOTAL STALLS NET NEW STALLS 

W/VALET W/ VALET 

299 551 342 

299 551 342 

341 565 356 

341 565 356 

321 547 338 

NOTE: COSTS DO NOT INCLUDE PREMIUM FOR ESSENTIAL SERVICES PARKING 

Construction COSTISTALL COST/NET NEW STALL 
COST/SQ. FT 

COST no valet no valet 

510.500.000 522.013 539.179 $61 

512,800.000 527 .292 549.231 $75 

510,000.000 519 ,960 534.247 560 

512,300.000 524 .551 542.123 574 

Construction COSTISTALL COST/NET NEW STALL 
COST/SQ. FT 

COST no valet no valet 

510,500.000 520.669 535,117 $61 

512,800,000 525,197 542,809 $75 

51 0.000.000 518.182 529.326 $60 

512.300.000 522.364 536.070 $74 

510,200.000 $19.245 $31.776 $59 



  Page 29February 18, 2011

Appendix ii

ATTACHMENT 1

137

- -

GROUND LEVEL PARKING PlAN 

SUMMATION CHART 

...... .......... ,....... 
TOTH. jr..Q" ... ..o? (JI..Q".W-o'1 _. .. • .. _. .. • .. _. 

'" • .. -. .. • .. 
TOTH. - • ." 

_tooJ'T, eo. " . 1 11M.&. 

".., ... 
...... '" ...... ... 
".., '" ..- ... 

----- ... -,--

OPT A 

... , -- : .... _ , CICII - , -_.: -
111_ , l.MIIMI 

-I .... ,...., I ... I • I '" I ""'" I ... I A2,1 



  Page 30February 18, 2011

Appendix ii

ATTACHMENT 1

138

I 
I
' L<YB. .......... _ .... llON CHART . _ ..... ~ = - -, -. - -"'_. 
, - _.. - - -_,~.~ PARKING PUN '-". ... OPT B ; . --
! -------------~:~:~:~ ~.,~ ~: ~::~~-~ ~-'!!!!!!. .,. """ ... 



  Page 31February 18, 2011

Appendix ii

ATTACHMENT 1

139

J. 

l. 
J. 

J. 

I 
t 

- -

OROUHD lEVEL PARKING PLAN 

SUMMATION CHART 

...... """ ..... --.. "" .. -*"" eo. n . I 4nAU. 1r4'. W.c1 tINr •• oO') .... .. • .. -- ... _. 
Me • ... ...,.. .. _. .. • '" 

...,.. ... 
-, .. • .. ..... ... 
lOT .. ... · .u ..... ... 

I ..... v .... I .. I • I '" I ..... I ow 

----
-

OPT C 

._ . --:--_ : QCIf 

_ : CIa 

--. -11.1_ : c..-

.., 
A2.1 



  Page 32February 18, 2011

Appendix ii

ATTACHMENT 1

140

]. 

t 
J. 

J. 

- -

LOWER LEVEL PARKING PLAN 

SUMMATION CHART 

UYIl. 
....., .... ........ TOT .. _IOGJ'T' IQ.". I 8TAU. r.-V ... -o'J tII-OO •• ..(I') _. 

'" • '" .... ... 
.-. ... • '" ..... ... _. ... • ., ..... ... -, '" , 

'" 
....., ... 

"" .. ... • OR ..... ... 
I INClVAlD I sa It I 6111 I -..00 I .. 

----
._-=-

OPT 0 

.. , -- , --_ l CIa 
_ : CIICII __ , -
"'_ : ---

A2.0 



  Page 33February 18, 2011

Appendix ii

ATTACHMENT 1

141

- -

SUMMATlON CHART 

....... .......... ..,.",-.. TOr ... -'*"'" eo. ...,.. I STAU. 
"' ...... -0') (8'.cr ... oO'l .-. .. • .. ...... -_. .. • .. -- .. 

GROUND LEVEL PARKING PLAN 

_. .. , - ..... ... 
TOr ... ... • ... ..... .., 

I .... VME1 I ... I • I '" I ..... I .. 

----- .... ----

OPT E 

.. , -- =--_ , 0CIt - , ---, -IV. = l..-

I -
A2.1 



  Page 34February 18, 2011

Appendix ii

ATTACHMENT 1

142

]. 

t 
J. 

J. 

! 

- -

....., .... 

----
._-=-

SUMMATION CHART ........ 
UYIl. TOT .. _IOGJ'T' IQ.". I 8TAU. (1"4'."-0'1 tII-OO •• ..(I') _. .. • '" "OX> ... t ~~ 

I

i :- : .= 
_. .. · '" ...... ... _. .. • .. ...... ... _. .. • ... .- ... I - l CIa GROUND lEVEL PARKING PLAN _ : CIICIi __ , -
TOT .. "" • ... ....... ... . "'- : ---I _ 

! I ""'y .... I ... I • I '" I ...... I Oft I A2.1 

! ---------------------------



  Page 35February 18, 2011

Appendix ii

ATTACHMENT 1

143

]. 

t 
J. 

J. 

- -

GROUND lEVEL PARKING PLAN 

SUMMATION CHART 

UYIl. 
....., .... ........ TOT .. _IOGJ'T' IQ.". I 8TAU. (1"4' . "-0'1 tII-OO •• ..(I') _. .. • ... .... ... 

.-. ... · .., ..... ... _. ... • .. ..... ... -, '" • .. ....., ... 
TOT .. .. • ... ...., ... 

I INCL. VAlD I 664 It I NIl I -..00 I 2M 

----
._-=-

OPT C2 

.. , -- , --_ l CIa 
_ : CIICII __ , -
"'_ : Co.-

A2.1 



144

Item #: 9.C. 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 

MEETING OF AUGUST 9,2012 

FROM: DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

SUBJECT: CONSIDERATION OF A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE FISCAL YEAR 
2012/2013 - 2016/2017 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt a Resolution approving the City of Capitola Five-Year Capital 
Improvement Program 2012/2013 - 2016/2017; directing the Finance Department to amend the 
Fiscal Year 2012/2013 budget; and allocating an additional $208,000 from the Capital 
Improvement Program fund balance to new projects. 

BACKGROUND: As part of the Fiscal Year 2012/2013 budget adoption the City Council 
appropriated $22,500 for the Capital Improvement Program (CIP). Based on this appropriation the 
5-year Capital Improvement Program has been updated to reflect all funding allocations for the 
next five years and update the list of completed projects. 

DISCUSSION: The 2012/2013 CIP project list has been updated to include funding allocations for 
improvements to the Brommer Streetl41 st Avenue intersection and preliminary engineering and 
permitting work on the lower Pacific Cove parking lot. All other uncompleted projects carry their 
funding forward. This CIP recognizes a grant award in Fiscal Year 201312014 for the Park Avenue 
Sidewalk Project. All future Slurry Seal and Pavement Management Projects have been 
unprogrammed pending the outcome of identifying funding. 

Public Works will continue to update the Pavement Management Program and develop a new five
year project list that will be incorporated into the CIP for Fiscal Year 2013/2014. 

The Rispin Park Project has been added as an unprogrammed project. 

The City Council is considering beginning preliminary design and permitting work on the lower 
Pacific Cove parking area under a separate item on tonight's agenda. To fund this work staff has 
identified $208,000 of undesignated CIP fund balance from the utility undergrounding project, of 
which $75,000 is recommended to be allocated to the Lower Pacific Cove Parking Project and 
$133,000 to the Utility Underground Project. The $75,000 will need to be repaid to the Utility 
Underground Project when final financing of the parking lot project is secured. 

FISCAL IMPACT: This CIP identifies a total of $1,016.50 in funding for Fiscal Year 2012/2013. 
This funding includes new funding of $22,500, allocation of $208,000 of undesignated fund balance 
from the utility undergrounding project, and $861,000 in funding carried forward from Fiscal Year 
2011/2012. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Draft Resolution 
2. 2012/2013 - 2016/2017 Capital Improvement Program 
3. Budget Adjustment 

Report Prepared By: Steven Jesberg 
Public Works Director 

Reviewed and F~r ed 
By City Manage : 

R:\Agenda Staff Reports\2012 Agenda Reports\City Council\08-09-12\9.C. CIP approvaLreport.docx 



145

ATTACHMENT 1 

RESOLUTION NO. __ 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
ADOPTING THE FISCAL YEAR 2012/2013 - 2016/2017 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

WHEREAS, it is necessary for the City to annually update and adopt a five-year Capital 
Improvement Program; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council conducted public hearings on the allocations to this program 
as part of the Fiscal Year 2012/2013 budget sessions, and has modified the proposed allocations, 
and wishes to adopt these fund allocations, transfers, fund carry forwards pursuant to Exhibit A for 
the Fiscal Year July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2013; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOL.VED by the City Council of the City of 
Capitola that the Fiscal Year 2012/2013 - 2016/2017 Capital ImprovemenLProgram is hereby 
adopted with the fund allocations, transfers, and carry forwards summarized on Exhibit A (Fiscal 
Year 2012/2013). 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Finance Director is directed to enter the allocations 
and carry forwards into the Fiscal Year 2012/2013 City badget in accordance with appropriate 
accounting practices, and the City Manager. with the Finance Director's assistance, shall assure 
compliance therewith. 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoihg Resolution was passed and adopted by the City 
Council of the City of Capitola at its Regular Meeting held on the 9th day of August, 2012, by the 
following vote: 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

ATTEST: 

___________________ ,CMC 

. Susan Sneddon, City Clerk 

Michael Termini, Mayor 

R:\Agenda Staff Reports\2012 Agenda Reports\City Council\08-09-12\9.C. CIP approvaUesolution.docx 



146

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS 

EXHIBIT A 

2012-13 FISCAL YEAR 2012"13 Proposed Funding 

(I) (I) 
c c 

0/1 )( "C M .9 0 

~"C .e :n ca 
0:( 0:( 't: S~:§ -~ 

CJ.) c c.c l- e e ca 0. N ... .s -i: 
c ::s ca .... (I) 

l- e::: :c 0 ..... 0. o 0. 
~u. ... 0 ca ~ "Coo I-~ 

CI CI 0:( N li 0. 
0. 0. 

All figures xi ,000 0:( 0:( 

(I) 
c 
.9 
iV 

, ... .;: 
.w CJ.) .wo. g.a s... ~ e 
.~ E 0'0 0. 

Project 
~ ::s 

Location 
.;: ::s 0. 

a.z a.mo:( 
Combleted Proiects Final cost 
Pavement Management Program csOO11 Cherry Street Overlav $ 100.0 $ 98.7 
Pollee Department HVAC cfOOO1 Polce Department $ 62.2 $ 62.2 
,Electric Vehicle Charging Stations ctOO03 Pacific Cove $ 4.5 $ 3.9 
Rispih Hazard Abatement , crOOO1 Risoin $ 650 $ 648 
Pacific Cove Parking Structure Watry oreliminarv design $ 42.5 $ 42.5 

Estimated 

On-Going Projects Cost to 
date 

Clares & Wharf Traffic Calming ctOOOi 41st Ave to Wharf Rd $ 120.0 $ 39.0 $ 120.0 
38th Avenue Overlay csOO08 Brommer St to Capitola Ave $ 590.0 $ 51.2 $ 590.0 

csOO12 
Siurry Seal Program cs009 City Wide $ 101.0 $ 101.0 
Pavement Management Program csOO14 Monterey Ave, Bay Ave, Fanmar $ 50.0 $ 19 $ 50.0 
Utility Undergrounding csOO03 Bay Avenue Utilitv Underarounding 133 $ 133.0 $ 133.0 

New Proiects 
Brommer Stl41st Ave Intersection Improvements csOO15 Removing median and re-strioe 22.5 $ 22.5 $ 22.5 

Lower Pacific Cove Parking Lot ctOO04 Construct new 220 soace lot 75 $ 75.0 $ 75.0 

Totals $ 861.0 $ 23 $ 208 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 231 $ 1,016.5 



147

ATTACHMENT 2 

CITY OF CAPITOLA 

FIVE YEAR CAPITAL 

I MPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

20 1 2/1 3 - 20 1 6/1 7 

PROPOSED 

CITY COUNCIL 
MICHAEL TERMINI, MAYOR 

STEPHANIE HARLAN, VICE MAYOR 

KIRBY NICOL 

SAM STOREY 

DENNIS NORTON 

STAFF 
LlAMIE GOLDSTEIN, CITY MANAGER 

STEVEN LlESBERG, PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR 



148

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

MASTER PROJECT LIST .................................................................................................. 1 

2012- 2013 FUNDING .. ; .................................................................................................... 3 

2013 - 2014 FUNDING .................................................................................................... 11 

2014- 2015 FUNDING ..................................................................................................... 13 

2015 - 2016 FUNDING .................................................................................................... 14 

2016 - 2017 FUNDING .................................................................................................... 15 

COMPLETED PROJECTS ........................................................................................................ 16 

UNPROGRAMED PROJECTS 
CREEK PROJECTS .......................................................................................................... 18 
FACILITY PROJECTS ..................................................................................................... 22 
NEIGHBORHOOD TRAFFIC ADVISORY COMMITTEE PROJECTS ........................ 31 
PARK PROJECTS ............................................................................................................ 54 
STREET PROJECTS ....................................................................................................... 66 
WHARF PROJECTS ........................................................................................................ 80 



149

City of Capitola 
Capital Improvement Program 

Fiscal Year 2012-13 

Project List - Master 

lotal 
Project Project Year Engineer's Available 
Number Category Location Project Scheduled Estimate Funds Unfunded 

C3 Creek Soquel Stockon Bridge Enhancement unprogrammed 42,900 $ 42,900 
C5 Creek Soquel Flume Repair/Replacement Unprogrammed 500,000 10,000 $ 490,000 
C6 Creek Beach - West Jetty Refirblshment Unprogrammed 440,000 $ 440,000 

Total $ 982,900 $ 10,000 $ 972,900 

F4 Facility Beulah Sile Development for City use Unprogrammed 101,800 $ 101,800 
F6 Facility Pacific Cove MHP New Water Line and Slurry Seal Unprogrammed 228,000 - $ 228,000 
F9 Facility Corp Yard Second Story AddiHon - Remodel Unprogrammed 480,000 - $ 480,000 

F10 Facility City Hall Remodel Council Chambers unprogrammed 83,200 $ 83,200 
F11 Facility City Hall Install Emergency Generator Unprogrammed 92,800 - $ 92,800 
F13 Facility City Hall Remodel City Hallinctuding Offices Unprogrammed 2,720,000 $ 2,720,000 
F15 Facility Community Center Remodel Community Center Unprogrammed 1,728,000 - $ 1,728,000 

Total $ 5,433,800 $ $ 5,433,800 

P15 Parks Esptanade Bluff Erosion Control Unprogrammed 90,900 $ 90,900 
P6 Parks Jade Soccer and Baseball Field Improvements Unprogrammed 24,100 $ 24,100 
P7 Parks Cortez Landscaping and Pathways Unprogrammed 45,400 $ 45,400 
P9 Parks Monterey Field Irrigation and Drainage Improvements Unprogrammed 48,000 $ 48,000 
P10 Parks Cortez New Play Equipment In Swing Areas Unprogrammed 96,500 $ 96,500 
P11 Parks Soquel Creek Repair Retaining Wall Unprogrammed 49,500 $ 49,500 
P12 Parks Jade & Cortez Develop Picnic and BBQ area @ Jade Unprogrammed 37,600 $ 37,600 
P13 Parks TBD Skale Park Developmenl Unprogrammed 485,000 $ 485,000 
P14 Parks TBD Dog Park Development Unprogrammed 29,700 $ 29,700 
P16 Parks Jade Reconstruct Tennls Courts Unprogrammed 100,600 $ 100,600 
P17 Parks Rispin Complete converstion to park Unprogrammed $ 549,000 $ 549,000 

Total $ 1,556,300 $ $ 1,556,300 

S48 Streels 38lhAvenue OVerlay from Brommer St to Capitola Rd 2012-13 590,000 590,000 $ 
S35 Streets Bay Avenue Corridor Utility Undergroundlng 2012-13 300,000 133,000 $ 167,000 
SA) Streets Brommer&41st Truck & Bike Access Imrprovements 2012-13 22,500 22,500 $ 
S61 Streets Lo~er Paciflc Cove Surface Parking Lot Construction 2012-13 651,000 75,000 $ 576,000 
S55 Streets 41st Rehab Phase 2 Gross Road 10 Clares Street Unprogrammed 427,000 $ 427,000 
S46 Streels Park, Reposa, Cliff, EI Sail' PMP - 2011 Unprogrammed 700,000 $ 700,000 
S49 Streels Vanous Slurry Seals - 2012 Unprogrammed 70,000 $ 70,000 
S50 Streels TBD PMP-2012 Unprogrammed 700,000 $ 700,000 
S51 Streets Various Slurry Seal 2013 Unprogrammed 70,000 $ 70,000 
S52 Streets TBD PMP-2013 Unprogrammed 700,000 $ 700,000 
856 - Streels PMP -2014 TBD unprogrammed 700,000 $ 700,000 
S57 Streels Slurry-2014 TBD Unprogrammed 70,000 $ 70,000 
S68 Streets PMP -2015 TBD Unprogrammed 700,000 $ 700,000 
S59 Streets Slurry-2015 TBD Unprogrammed 70,000 $ 70,000 
S1 Streets Pacific Cove Parktng Lighting & Sidewalk Improvements Unprogrammed 95,700 $ 95,700 
82 Streets Village Phase II -·Multi-modallmprovements Unprogrammed 1,226,800 $ 1,226,800 
S8 Streets Cliff Dr. Seawall (Corps) Unprogrammed 1,150,000 $ 1,150,000 
S9 Streets Hooper's Beach Sl£jlrwayRepalrs Unprogrammed 32,400 $ 32,400 

S10 Streets 41st/Cap Rd New Signals Unprogrammed 270,000 $ 270,000 
S20 Streets Pacific Cove Parking MulU level parking lot addlUon Unprogrammed 13,856,500 $ 13,856,500 
S21 Streels Village Phase 111- Multl-modallmprovements Unprogrammed 1,151,600 $ 1,151,600 
S22 Streets Slockton Ave Bridge Hazard Assessment Unprogrammed 50,000 $ 50,000 
S27 Streets Village Phase IV - MulU-modal improvements Unprogrammed 858,000 $ 858,000 
S28 Streets 41st Widen Highway 1 OVerpass to 6 lanes Unprogrammed 5,775,000 $ 5,775,000 
S40 Streels Grand Ave Drainage Improvemenls unprogrammed 859,000 $ 859,000 
S42 Streels Wharf Road Retaining wall extension Unprogrammed 412,500 $ 412,500 
S53 Streets Hili Street Ped. Impls from Cap Ave to Rosedale Unprogrammed 120,000 $ 120,000 
S54 Streels Reposa Avenue Traffic Calming Unprogrammed 40,000 $ 40,000 

Total $31,668,000 $ 820,500 $ 30,847,500 

Page 1 of2 1 



150

City of Capitola 
Capital Improvement Program 

Fiscal Year 2012-13 

Project List - Master 

lotal 
Project Project Year Engineer's Available 
Number Category Location Project Scheduled Estimate Funds Unfunded 

W2 Wharf Utility Improvamanis (Water, Sewer, Eleclrical) Unprogrammed 88,100 $ 88,100 
W3 Wharf Restaurant & Restroom Remodeling Unprogrammed 300,000 $ 300,000 

Total $ 388,100 $ $ 388,100 

N5 NTAC Clares & Wharf Clares & Wharf Traffic Calming 2011-12 400,000 100,000 $ 300,000 
N6 NTAC Park Ave Park Ave sidewalks to Cabrillo 2013-14 492,500 430,000 $ 62,500 
N3 NTAC Bay&CapAve Bay Ave/Cap Ave Intersection Improvements Unprogrammed 500,950 $ 500,950 
N4 NTAC Bay & Monterey Bay Ave/Monterey Ave IntersecHon Improvements Unprogrammed 297,000 $ 297,000 
N7 NTAC Monterey Ave Relocate Stop Signs on Monterey Ave unprogrammed 8,700 $ 8,700 
N8 NTAC . Depot Hili Ingress/Egress improvements to Depot Hill unprogrammed 148,500 $ 148,500 
N9 NTAC Stockton Ave Raised crosswalks at Stockton & Esplanade Unprogrammed 150,000 $ 150,000 
N10 NTAC Park Ave Slow Street Design on park Ave unprogrammed 123,900 $ 123,900 
N12 NTAC Monterey Ave Slow·street-design on lower Monterey Ave unprogrammed 115,500 $ 115,500 
N13 NTAC Various Slow street design on Escalona, Fanmar, Cliff Ave, & EI Saito unprogrammed 90,900 $ 90,900 
Ni4 NTAC Escalona Small traffic circle aI-Escalona and Oakland unprogrammed 12,400 $ 12,400 
N15 NTAC Bay Traffic Calming on Bay Ave unprogrammed 206,400 $ 206,400 
N16 NTAC Beulah One way traffic on Beulah (westlo east) unprogrammed 20,600 $ 20,600 
N17 NTAC Monterey and HIIJ Sidewalks on Monterey and HIIJ unprogrammed 50,300 $ 50,300 
NiB NTAC 47th Ave Traffic Calmnlng on 47th Ave Unprogrammed 80,000 $ 80,000 
N19 NTAC 42ndAve Bulb-outs on 42nd at DMV unprogrammed 33,000 $ 33,000 
N20 NTAC Cliff Dr. BUlb-outs on Cliff Drive below Prospect unprogrammed 49,500 $ 49,500 
N21 NTAC 49th Ave Bikeway striping on 49th Ave unprogrammed 4,100 $ 4,100 
N22 NTAC Various Establish Truck Routes through City unprogrammed 20,600 $ 20,600 
N24 NTAC Wharf Replace rolled curb on Wharf Road Unprogrammed 74,300 $ 74,300 
N26 NTAC ·49th Ave Chicanes on 49th Ave unprogrammed 45,400 $ 45,400 
N27 NTAC Various Signage depicUng.Neighbomoods unprogrammed 20,600 $ 20,600 
N28 NTAC 42ndAve Slow Traffic Design on 42nd unprogrammed 53,600 $ 53,600 
N11 NTAC .Fanmar One way Traffic on Fanmar (east 10 west) unprogrammed 33,000 $ 33,000 

Total $3,031,750 $530,000 $2,501,750 

Grand Totals $43,060,850 $1,360,500 $41,700,350 

Page 2 of2 2 



151

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS 

2012-13 FISCAL YEAR 2012·13 Proposed Funding 

'" '" c C 

~"C 
0/:1 >C "CM£! 0 

J!.I :; CII 
~. < 'I: .!"";":! -~ 

(I) C I- CII CII_ 
cor; c C o.ON .. - .. c ~ '" ~ 0 .... 0. o 0. 

~u.. Eo CII I- a: "Coo I- 0 
(!l (!l < ON Q. .. 

0. 
0. 0. 

All figures x1,OOO c( < 

'" c 
0 

~ .. .;:: 

- Q) 
....0. 

0,c .. ~ e .!!!, E o "C 0. 

Project e ~ Location 
i:~c.. a.z a.m< -

Completed Proiects Final cost 
Pavement Management Proaram csOO11 Cherry Street Overlay $ 100.0 $ 98.7 
Police Department HVAC cfOOO1 Polce .Department . $ 62.2 $ 62.2 
Electric Vehicle Charging Stations ctOO03 Pacific Cove $ 4.5. $ 3.9 ::-,:. , 

Rispin Hazard Abatement crOOO1 Rispin $ 650 $ . 648 .. 
Pacific Cove Parking Structure Watry preliminary design $ 42.5 $ 42.5 -

Estimated 
On.Going Projects Cost to 

date 

Clares & Wharf Traffic Calmina ctOOO1 41 st Ave to Wharf Rd $ 120.0 $ . 39.0 $ 120.0 
38th Avenue Overlay csOO08 Brommer SI to Capitola Ave $ 590.0 $ 51.2 .$ 590.0 

cs0012 
Slurry Seal Program cs009 CityWide $ 101.0 $ 101.0 
Pavement Management Program cs0014 Monterev Ave, Bay Ave, Fanmar $ 50.0 $ 19 $ 50.0 
Utility Undergrounding csOO03 Bav Avenue Utilitv Underaroundina 133 $ 133.0 $ 133.0 

. 
New Projects . -
Brommer Stl41st Ave Intersection Improvements cs0015 Remvoe median and re·stripe 22.5 $ 22.5 $ 22.5 
Lower Pacific Cove Parkina Lot clO004 Construct neiN 220 space lot 75 $ 75.0 $ 75.0 

Totals $ 23 $ 208 $ . $ . $ . $ . $ 231 $ .1,016.5 

Co) 



152

Project No. N5 

Capital Improvement Program 

Pro,tect Category Location 
Clares Street Pedestrian NTAC Clares Street from 41 st to and 

hnprovements and Traffic including WharfRd intersection 
Calming 

Description: 
Construct traffic calming along Clares Street in conjunction with conditions placed on the 
Rispin Mansion project. Project to include the use of a raised intersection, a dedicated 
right hand turn lane on Wharf onto Clares, and the use of chicanes, narrowed lanes, and 
center island medians. A preliminary plan was prepared by Harris & Associates and 
approved by the RDA Board of Directors on December 9, 2004. 

General Plan Consistency: 
Chapter 9, Circulaiton: Policy 11, 
Protect the ability of minor arterials to 
provide through traffic while 
maintaining the livability ofthe street. 

Maintenance Impact: 

fucrease in landscape maintenance cost 
of $200 per month. 

Fiscal Estimate: 

Fiscal Year· 
Project Construction 
Planning & Permitting 
Design 
Right of Way 
Construction Management 
Contingency 

Project Totals 

Funding Sources 
RTC 
TDAFunds 
Developer 
RDA 

2012-13 

18% 

20% 

2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 Uni2rogrammed 
290,000 

52,000 

58,000 

400,000 

100,000 

Total 
290,000 

52,000 

58,000 

400,000 

100,000 

Funding Totals. $ - $ 100,000 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 100;000 

Funding Shortfall: 
$ 300,000 

4 



153

Project No: S48 
Capital Improvement Program 

Project Category Location 
38111 Avenue Overlay Street 38 tll Avenue fi-om southern City 

limit to Capitola Road 

Description: 
Reconstruct 38th Avenue from just south of Brommer Street, north to Capitola Road. 
This street is primary collector in the middle of the Cities commercial conidor, which 
centers along adjacent 41 st Avenue. 38th Avenue provides secondary ingress and egress 
to a shopping center with Orchard Supply Hardware, Save Mart Grocery, Rite Aid, 
Palace Arts, 41st Avenue movie theater, and other stores. The average daily traffic is 
6,400 trips. 

The project will also include the construction of 470 feet of curb, gutter and sidewalk 
along immediately south of Capitola Road completing on the largest gaps in the sidewalk 
system. Cunently there is only a complete sidewalk connection on the eastern side ofthe 
street. Right of way acquisition will be required for the sidewalk, though no private 
improvements will need to be relocated. 

Maintenance Impact: 
Reduction in maintenance 
costs used on filling 
potholes. 

Fiscal Estimate: 

Fiscal Year 
Project Construction 
Planning & Permitting 10% 
Design 25% 
Right of Way 7% 
Construction Management 0% 
Contingency 20% 

Project Totals 

Funding Sources 
RSTPX 
General Fund 

Funding Tolals 

Funding Shortfall: 
$ 

2009-10 

53,000 

53,000 

152,000 

$ 152,000 $ 

2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 UnQrogrammed 
362,500 
36,300 
10,000 
25,400 
30,000 
72,500 

536,700 

438,000 

438,000 $ - $ - $ - $ -

- - - -

Total 
362,500 

36,300 
63,000 
25,400 
30,000 
72,500 

590,000 

438,000 
152,000 

$ 590,000 

5 



154

Project No. S48 

Capital Improvement Program 

Project Category Location 
Slurry seal program -2012 Streets Deanes Lane, Jewel Box, Reposa, & 

Depot Hill 

Description: 
Depot Hill Area: Escalona Dr, Sacramento Ave, southern portion of Hollister Ave, 
Oakland Ave, Saxon Ave, southern portion of Central Ave, and western end of Grand 
Ave 

Jewel Box east of 49th Avee: Prospect Ave, Opal St, Jewel St, Garnet St, and Emerald 
St 

Deanes Lane neighborhood: Deanes Ln, Edmund Ln, Sellars Ln, Albert Ln, and Virgil 
Ln 

Reposa Avenue, which will also be restriped to narrow the streets as agreed upon with 
the residents. 

General Plan Consistency: 
Maintenance of existing local streets is consistent with Circulation Element general 
objectives for all roadways. 

Maintenance Impact: 
None 

Fiscal Estimate: 
Fiscal Year 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16. 2016-17 Ungrogrammed 
Project Construction 93,000 
Planning & Permitting 
Design 0% 
Right of Way 
Construction Management 
Contingency 9% 8,000 
Project Totals 101,000 

Funding Sources 
General Fund 101000 

Funding Totals $101,000 $ - $ - .$ - $ - $ -
Funding Shortfall: 
$ 

Total 
93,000 

8,000 

101,000 

101,000 

$101,000 

6 



155

Project No. S46 

Capital Improvement Program 

Project Category Location 
Pavement Management - Streets Monterey Avenue east of Washburn 

2011 Bay Avenue north of Capitola Ave 
Fanmar west of Monterey 

Description: Based on the available funding of $250,000 full street length repaving is 
not being recommended. Instead small isolated sections with failing paving or drainage 
problems are being identified for repair work. 

Maintenance Impact: 
Reduction of street 
maintenance costs such as 
pothole filling estimated at 
$1000 per year. 

Fiscal Estimate: 

Fiscal Year 
Project Construction 
Planning & Permitting 
Design 15% 
Right of Way 
Construction Management 5% 
Contingency 5% 

Project Totals 

Funding Sources 
General Fund 

Funding Totals 

Funding Shortfall: 
$ 250,000 

2011-12 
200,000 

30,000 

10,000 . 
10,000 

250,000 

$ -

2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 Unl2rogrammed 

$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 

Total 
200,000 

30,000 

10,000 
10,000 

250,000 

7 



156

Project No. 835 

Capital Improvement Program 

Pro'ect Location 
Utility Undergrounding To Be Determined 

Description: . 
Utilizing PG&E Rule 20A funding, convert existing electric and other utility lines from 
traditional overhead service to underground facilities. As of April, 2003 the City has 
allocation credits of$1,038,272. The uses of these funds have various rules and 
restrictions. :(n 1999 the City adopted a resolution establishing an undergrounding district 
along the Bay Avenue corridor. Since fonning the district, no significant work has taken 
place on completing the project. 

General Plan Consistency: 
Chapter 6, Conservation, Policy 3 establishes the undergrounding of utilities within the 
City as a long range goal. 

Maintenance Impact: 
Reduction of Graffiti removal 
efforts on behalf ofthe City 
related to utility poles. 

Public Art Funding Eligibility: 

Fiscal Estimate: 

Fiscal Year 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 UflIl'roarrmed Tdal 
Roject O:mstruclico 200,000 200;(0) 
Aamng & Pemitting 10"10 2),000 20,(0) 
Design 
Ri!/lt of lJIkly 20% 40,000 40,(0) 
Construction M!:r'agerrent· 
Ca1tirgerx;y 20% 40,000 4O,OOJ 

A"oject lbtals 300,000 . 3OO,OOJ 

Furdirg Sruces 

PG&E 133,000 133,(0) 

Furdirg TctEis $ 133,000 $ - $ $ $ $ $ 133,(0) 

FUlding Shortfall: 
$ 167,000 

8 



157

Project No: 861 

Capital Improvement Program 

Project Category Location 
Lower Pacific Cove Streets Lower Pacific Cove Property 

Parking Lot Construction 

Description: The project will develop an approximate 220 sp~ce surface public parking 
lot on approximately 4 acres of land formerly used for the Pacific Cove Mobile Home 
Park located at 426 Capitola Avenue. 

Maintenance Impact: 
Maintenance of 220 parking lot 
estimated at $50,000 per year 

Fiscal Estimate: 

9 



158

Project No: 860 

Capital Improvement Program 

Project Category Location 
Truck and Bicycle Access Streets Brommer Street & 41 st Avenue 

Improvements at Brommer St 
and 41st Ave 

Description: Improve both the truck tum access from southbound 41 st Avenue onto 
westbound Brommer Street and the bicycle access along the westbound side of Brommer 
Street. The project will reduce the number of eastbound lanes on Brommer Street from 
two to one and widen the single westbound lane to accommodate truck without 
impinging on the westbound bike lane. 

Maintenance Impact: 
None 

Fiscal Estimate: 

10 



159

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS 

2013-14 FISCAL YEAR New Proposed Funding 

Opinion of 
Carry 

General Grants & Adopted 
Forward Gas Tax TDA RDA Wharf 2008-09 Project Cost 
Funding 

Fund Other 
Totals 

all 
Project Project Fund funding 

Project Number Category No. Location sources 

O'n-Goino Pro"ects 

$ · 
$ -

New Pro"ects $ · 
$ · 

Park Avenue Sitewalk Streets McCormick to Weslev 430,000 130.000 200000 100,000 $ 430,000 
$ · 
$ · 
$ · 
$ · 
$ · 

$ · 
$ · 
$ · 
$ · 
$ · 

Totals $ 130.000 $ 200,000 $ . $ 100,000 $ . $ . $ 430,000 



160

Project No. N6 

Capital Improvement Program 

Pro'ect Location 
Sidewalk construction Park Avenue 

Description: 
Construct curb, gutter, and sidewalk along the north side of Park Avenue from 
McCormick Avenue to Cabrillo A vemle, including crosswalks at Washburn Avenue and 
Cabrillo Avenue. 

Maintenance Impact: 

None 

Fiscal Estimate: 

Fiscal Year 
Project Construction 
PlannIng & Permitting 
Design 
Right of Way 
Construction Management 
Contingency 

Project Totals 

Funding Sources 
RTC Grant 
TDAFunds 
General Fund 

Funding Totals 

Funding Shortfall: 
$ 

2012-13 

5% 
22% 

4% 
10% 
10% 

$ -

2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 Ungrogrammed 
283,900 

14,200 
62,500 
11,400 
28,400 
29,600 

430,000 

200,000 
100,000 
130,000 

$ - $ 430,000 $ - $ - $ -

Total 
283,900 

14,200 
62,500 
11,400 
28,400 
29,600 

430,000 

. 200,000 
100,000 
130,000 

$ 430,000 

12 



161

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS 

2014-15 FISCAL YEAR New Proposed Funding 

Opinion of 
Carry 

General ·Grants & 
Adopted 

Project Cost 
Forward 

Fund Other 
Gas Tax TDA RDA Wharf 2008-09 

Funding Totals 

all 
Project Project Fund funding 

Proiect Number Category No. Location sources 

On-Goina Pro·ects 

$ -
$ -
$ -

New Pro·ects $ -
$ -
$ -

$ -
$ -
$ -
$ -
$ -
$ -
$ -
$ -

Totals $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -



162

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS 

2015-16 FISCAL YEAR New Proposed Funding 

Opjnjonof Carry 
General Grants & Adopted 

Project Cost 
Forward 

Fund Other 
Gas Tax TDA RnA Wharf 2008~9 

Funding Totals 

all 
Project Project Fund funding 

Project Number CateClorv No. .Location sources 

On.Goina Pro·ects 

$ -
$ -
$ -

New PrOfects $ -
$ -
$ -
$ -
$ -
$ -
$ · 

$ · 
$ · 
$ -
$ -
$ · 

Totals $ - $ - $ - .$ - $ . $ . $ · 



163

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS 

2016-17 FISCAL YEAR New Proposed Funding 

Opinion of 
Carry 

General Grants & 
Adopted 

Forward Gas Tax TDA RDA Wharf 2008.09 
Project Cost 

Funding 
Fund Other 

Totals 

all 
Project Project Fund funding 

Project Number Cate!lorv No. Location sources 

, 
On-Goinq Pro·ects 

$ -
$ -
$ -

New Proiects $ -
$ -
$ · 
$ · 

$ · 
$ -
$ -

$ -
$ -
$ -
$ -
$ -

Totals $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -



164

Com(!leted Proiects 

Project Project Year Measure P&D 
Number Category Location Project Completed Final Cost Expenses 

F1 Facility City Hall Improve drainage around building 2002/03 $ 91,000 
F2 Facility City Hall Remodel Community Room 2002/03 20,000 
F3 Facility City Hall Partial New Roof and Roof Access 2002/03 7,500 
S15 Streets Various Slurry Seals - 2002 2002/03 72,600 
W3 Wharf Wharf Permanent Installation of Dock Ramp 2002/03 12,000 

Wharf Wharf Emergency Piling Replacement 2002/03 50,000 
C1 Creek Soquel Soquel Creek Improvements 2003/04 106,000 
S14 Streets Village Lawn Way Storm Pump Station 2003/04 285,000 
S31 Streets Various Pedestrian Safety Project 2003/04 35,139 
S33 Streets Various Pedestrian and Bikeway Improvements 2003/04 36,005 
S4 Streets Park Ave Sidewalksfrom Washbum to Monterey 2003/04 109,900 
W1. Wharf Wharf Entrance Gate .. 2003/04 37,000 
S6 Streets Gross Road Left Hand tum lane addition 2004/05 618,509 
N1 NTAC 41st 41 st Ave/Clares Street ADA Improvements 2004/05 48,000 
N2 NTAC 41st 41 st Avenue North/South Corridor Improvements 2004/05 163,200 
C2 Creek Soquel Clean Beach Initiative 2004/05 85,000 
S19 Streets Various Slurry Seals - 2004 2004/05 47,500 
P1 Parks Jade Resurface Tennis Courts 2005-06 15,000 $ 15,000 
S11 Streets 46th Ave Resurface - Phase 1 2005-06 181,123 181,123 
S34 Streets 46th Ave Resurface - Phase 2 2005-06 Incl with above 
S26 Streets Various Slurry Seals - 2005 2005-06 76,500 76,500 

F12 Facility Corp Yard & City Hall New Roof & Roof Repairs 2005-06 30,000 30,000 

F16 Facility City Hall Museum Cabin Restoration 2006-07 47,000 57,000 

S36 Streets Various Slurry Seals - 2006 2006-07 58,000 58,000 

Streets Burlingame Road & Sewer Reconstruction 2006-07 367,000 173,000 

Streets Riverview Ave Pavement Overlay 2006-07 66,000 66,000 
Streets . 38th Ave Sidewalks at Garden Street. 2006-07 25,300 25,300 

P15 Parks Jade New Play Equipment for 2-5 Year Olds 2006-07 33,500 43,500 

S17 Streets Ppvement Management PMP Phase 2 2006-07 510,000 610,000 

S25 Streets 41st Northbound Resurface 2006-07 260,000 50,000 

Streets Park Ave Overlay Resurface 2006-07 230,000 265,000 

Streets 42nd Ave Overlay Resurface 2006-07 100,000 110,000 

P5 Parks Library Property Tot Lot Construction 2007-08 188,300 52,100 

S24 Streets Pavement Management PMP Phase 3 2007-08 137,600 117,600 

~ 

en 



165

I Com~lete!d Projects 

Project Project Year Measure P&D 
Number Category Location Project Completed Final Cost Expenses 

F1 Facility City Hall Improve drainage around building 2002/03 $ 91,000 
Streets 41st Ave Overcossihg Imp. Additonal SIB Lane 2007-08 212,000 

P3 Parks Esp~anade Expand/Renovate Bathrooms 2008-09 240,200 123,000 
S37 Streets Various Slurry Seals - 2007 2008-09 70,000 70,000 
S38 Streets Various Slurry Seals - 2008 2008-09 63,000 63,000 
C4 Soquel Crk Soquel Creek Bioswale Treatment Wetland 2009-10 625,000 
S32 Streets Bay Avenue Sidewalk Capitola Ave to Monterey Ave 2009-10 190,000 125,000 

Wharf Wharf Pile Replacement Piling Replacement and Repairs 2009-10 153,000 
S47 Streets 41 st Ave Rehabilitation ARRA project 2009-10 405,000 50,000 
S29 Streets Pavement Management PMP Phase 4 2009-10 465,000 130,000 
12 Streets Capitola Rd/42nd Pedestrian Improvements 2010-11 484,769 

Facilities PD HVAC Improvements 2010-11 65,000 65,000 
Streets 41 st Avenue Paving UPRR : Payment to County 2010-11 $ 10,000.0 10,000 
Facilities Beu~ah House Demolition 504 Beulah Ave 2010-11 $ 16,700.0 16,700 
Streets Cherry Avenue Overlay 2011-12 85,640 105,640 
Palrks Rispin Repairs Rispin Park 2011-12 650,000 
Facilities Electric Vehicle Charging St Pacific Cove $ 4,500 4,500 

$ 7,798,485 $ 2,692,963 



166

Project List • Soquel Creek 

Project Project 
Number Category Location Project 

C5 Creek Soquel Flume RepairlReplacement 
C3 Creek Soquel Stockon Bridge Enhancement 
CS Creek Beach West Jetty Refirbishment 

Soquel Creek Projects 
Unprogrammed Projects 

Year Engineer's 
Scheduled Estimate 

Unprogrammed 500,000 
unprogrammed 42,900 
Unprogrammed 440,000 

Total $ 982,900 

Funding Sources 
Clean 
Beaches Total 
Grant Available 

IRWP (SWRCB) City Funds Unfunded Funds 

10,000 490,000 10,000 
42,900 

440,000 

$ . $ . $ . $ 10,000 $ 972,900 $ 10,000 



167

Project No. C3 

Capital Improvement Program 

Project Category Location 
Stockton Avenue Bridge Creek Eastern shore, upstream of the 
Riparian Enhancement Stockton Ave. Bridge 

Description: 
Improve planting and public access to City owned parcel adj acent to Stockton Avenue 
Bridge on the eastern shore. Project may include removal of abandoned fue flow pump 
station and development of new viewing area above creek. Riparian enhancements to 
focus on shade producing vegetation. 

General Plan Consistency: 

Maintenance Impact:· 

Minimal impacts, City already 
maintains area. 

Public Art Funding Eligibility: 

Fiscal Estimate: 

Fiscal Year 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 .2011-12 2012-13 Ungrogrammed 
Project Construction 26,000 
Planning & Pennitting 5% 1,300 
Design 20% 5,200 
Right of Way. 5% 1,300 
Construction Management 15% 3,900 

Contingency 20% __ -, -- -- 5,200 
Project Totals 42,900 

Funding Sources 

F~nding Totals $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 

Funding Shortfall: 

$ 42,900 

19 



168

Project No: C5 

Capital Improvement Program 

Project Category Location 
Soquel Creek Lagoon flume Soquel Flume across beach 

replacement/repairs Creek 

Description: 
The existing flume was built in the 1930's and while still functional has developed 
several significant crack and has operational problems resulting in water flow underneath 
the flume, resulting in sink holes on the beach. This project has been developed to look 
into options for rebuilding or repairing the flume to resolve these issues. 

General Plan Consistency: 
Chapter 5, Open Space, Parks', and Recreation goal number 5: to conserve and enhance 
the waterfront are for public use and views 
Chaper 6, Conservation Goal: Protect and preserve the natural resources within the 
Capitola Area 

Maintenance Impact: 
Reoccurring sink holes require 
maintenance on a daily basis. 

Fiscal Estimate: 
Fiscal Year 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 Un~rograml]]~g 
Project Construction 400,000 
Planning & Permitting 0% 
Design 15% 60,000 
Right of Way 0% 
Construction Management 0% 
Contingency 10% 40,000 

Project Totals 500,000 

Funding Sources 

General Fun!:! 10,000 

Funding Tolals $ 10,000 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
Funding Shortfall: 
$ 490,000 

Total 
400,000 

60,000 

40,000 

500,000 

10,000 

$ 10,000 

20 



169

Project No: C6 

Capital Improvement Program _ 

Project Category Location 
Capitola Beach Jetty Creek West Jetty on Capitola Beach 

Refirbishment 

Description: 
The existing rock j eity at the eastern end of Capitola Beach, which is actually the western 
of two jetty's, is the primary structure retaining sand for the beach. This jetty was first 
built in the 1970's, since that time the boulders have subsided and the outer end ofthe 
jetty sank. This project would place new boulders to restore the jetty to its original 
elevations. 

General Plan Consistency: 
Chapter 5, Open Space, ParIes, and Recreation goal number 5: to conserve and enhance 
the waterfront are for public use and views 

Maintenance Impact: 
. Retaining more sand for the 
beach will help the annual 
gracling done by the City. 

21 



170

N 
N 

Project List· Facilities 

Project Project 
Number Category 

F4 Facility 

F6 Facility 
F9 Facility 

F10 Facility 

F11 Facility 

F13 Facility 
F15 Facility 

Location Project 

Beulah Site Development for City use 
Pacific Cove MHP New Water Line and Siurry Seal 
Corp Yard Second Story Addition - Remodel 
CiiyHall Remodel Council Chambers 

CiiyHall Install Emergency Generator 
City Hall Remodel City Hall including Offices 
Community Center Remodel Community Center 

Facility Projects 
Unprogrammed Projects 

Year Engineer's 
Scheduled Estimate 

Unprogrammed 101,800 
Unprogrammed 228,000 
Unprogrammed 480,000 
unprogrammed 83,200 
Unprogrammed 92,800 
Unprogrammed 2,720,000 
Unprogrammed 1,728,000 

Totals $ 5,433,800 $ -

City 
Grant General Total 
Funds Funds Unfunded Funds 

101,800 

228,000 
480,000 

83,200 
92,800 

2,720,000 
1,728,000 

$ - $ - $ 5,433,800 $ 



171

3Project No. F4 

Capital Improvement Program 

Pro,fect Category Location 
Beulah Condition Assessment Facility Beulah House 
& Remodel to Office Space 

Description: 
The city has investigated several options for the Beulah House located at 504 Beulah 
Drive. This property is 'part of the Pacific Cove Mobile Home Park. The current plan is 
to demolish the existing structure and construct temporary City office space on the site 
for use by Parking Enforcement and IT. 

General Plan Consistency: 
Land Use Goal #3: Utilize existing 
City-owned parcels to provide 
additional comn'tunity facilities and 
amenities. 

Maintenance Impact: 
Current structure is unused. 
Additional maintenance will be 
required if converted' to useable space. 
Estimate $2,300 per year. 

Fiscal Estimate. 

Cia ram-F4 

Eig!!1 Year. 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 201,2-13 2013-14 UmHogmmmed 
Project Construction 88,000 
Planning & Penn Kting 
Design 5,000 
Right of Way 
Construction Management 
Contingency 10% 8,800 

Project Totals 101,800 

Funding Sources 
General Fund 
Transfe~ to Cortez Park 4.038 
Transfer to PMP 4.030 

Funding Totals $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
Funding Shortfall: 
$ 101,800 

Total 
88,000 

5,000 

8.800 

101,800 

$ 

23 



172

Project No. F6 

Capital Improvement Program 

Project Category Location 
Pacific Cove MHP Water Line Facility Pacific Cove MHP 
Replacement and Slurry Seal 

Description: 
Replace water main servicing mobile home park, including individual service lines and 
slurry seal roadway. 

General Plan Consistency: 

Maintenance Impact: 

Reduce maintenance costs by 
approximately $5000 per year 
currently spent on water line repairs. 

Public Art Funding Eligibility: 

Fiscal Estimate: 

Fiscal Year Wlli::1Q 
Project Conslll.lction 
Planning & Permitting 5% 
Design 20% 
Right of Way 
Constll.lction Management 15% 
Contingency 20% 

Project Totals 

Funding Sources 
Grants 
General Fund 

Funding Totals $ 

Funding Shortfall: 
$ 228,000 

2010·11 2011·12 2012-13 ~ Ungrogrammed 
142,500 

7,100 
28,500 

21;400 
28,500 

228,000 

$ . $ - $ . $ - . $ -

Total 
142,500 

7,100 
28,500 

21,400 
28,500 

228,000 

$ 

24 



173

Project No. F9 

Capital Improvement Program 

Pro'ect Location 
Second Story Addition Corporation Yard 

Description: 
Increase office space and crew facilities at corporation yard by adding a second levelto 
the existing building, adding approximately 1000 square feet. 

General Plan Consistency: 

Maintenance Impact: 

Minimal increase in maintenance 
cost for extra floor space estimated at 
$500 per year. 

Fiscal Estimate: 

Fiscal Year 
Project ConstructIon 
Planning & Permitting 
Design 
Right of Way 
Construction Management 
ContIngency 

Project Totals 

Funding Sources 

2008-09 

5% 
20% 

20% 

Dia ram-F9 

FRONTAGERD 

2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 Un(;1rogrammed 
331,000 

16,600 
66,200 

66,200 

480,000 

Total 
331,000 

16,600 
66,200 

66,200 

480,000 

Funding Totals $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 

Funding Shortfall: 
$ 480,000 

25 



174

Project No. FlO 

Capital Improvement Program 

Project Location 
City Council Chambers Remodel City Hall 

Description: . 
Remodel the Cowcil Chambers to make it ADA compliant, provide larger staff areas, 
and hide existing visible wiring. Project should also consider removing some ofthe fixed 
seating in the rear and replacing it with moveable seating to provide more rowdtable 
meeting spaoe at City Hall. All carpets and window blinds to be replaced as part of this 
project. 

General Plan Consistency: 

Maintenance Impact: 

None 

Fiscal Estimate: 

Fiscal Year 
Project Construction 
Planning & Permitting 
Design 
Right of Way 
Construction Management 
Contingency 

Project Totals 

Funding Sources 

Funding Totals 

Funding Shortfall: 
$ 83,200 

5% 

5% 
20% 

2008·09 2009·10 

$ $ $ 

2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 Unl2rogrammed Total 
64,000 64,000 

3,200 3,200 

3,200 3,200 
. 12,800 12,800 

83,200 83,200 

$ - $ $ $ 

26 



175

Project No. FII 

Capital Improvement Program 

Project Location 
City Hall Emergency Generator City Hall 

Description: 

Install a new generator below the pedestrian ramp to Pacific Cove parking lot that is large. 
enough to serve the entire City Hall complex, mcluding the Police Department. This 
project will replace the existing generator outside the Police Department's back door. 

General Plan Consistency: 

Maintenance Impact: 

Maintenance on new generator 
will be similar to existing. 

Fiscal Estimate: 

Fiscal Year 
Project Construction 
Planning ~ Permitting 
Design 
Right of Way 
Construction Management 
Contingency 

Project Totals 

Funding Sources 
General Fund 

Funding Totals 

Funding Shortfall: 
$ 92,800 

2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 Unprogrammed 
58,000 

5% 2,900 
20% 11,600 

15% 8,700 
20% 11,600 

92,800 

$ $ $ $ $ - $ $ 

Total 
58,000 
2,900 

11,600 

8,700 
11,600 

92,800 

27 



176

-

Project No. F13 

Capital Improvement Program 

Project Category_ Location 
Remodel or Expand Office Facility City Hall 

Space 

Description: . 
Remodel and expand office space at City Hall as recommended as a long-term project in 
the approved facility masterplan .. 

General Plan Consistency: 

Maintenance Impact: 

Increase in janitorial costs due to 
added space can be anticipated. 
Cost unlmown. 

Fiscal Estimate: 

Fiscal Year 
Project Construction 
Planning & Perm ttllng 5% 
Design 20% 
Right of Way 
Construction Management 15% 
Contingency 20% 

Project Totals 

Funding Sources 
General Fund 

Funding To~als $ 

Fu nd i1l9 Shortfall: 
$ 2,720,000 

~ 

-

2009-:10 ~ 2011-12 2012-13 U nl2rogram med 
1,700,000 

85,000 
340,000 

255,000 
340,000 

2,720,000 

$ - $ - $ - $ - $ -

Total 
1,700,000 

85,000 
340,000 

255,000 
340.000 

2,720,000 

$ 

28 



177

Project No, F14 

Capital Improvement Program 

Pro'ect Location 
Remodel existing space· Police De . artment 

Description: 

Remodel Police Department office spaces as recommended in the approved Facility 
Master Plan, 

General Plan Consistency: 

Maintenance Impact: 

To be detennined. Expansion could 
create additional janitorial expenses. 

Fiscal Estimate: 

Fiscal Year 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 UnQrogrammed 
Project Construction 1,020,000 
Planning & Permitting 5% 51,000 
Design 20% 204,000 
Right of Way 
Construction Management 15% 153,000 
Contingency 20% 204,000 

Project Totals 1,632,000 

Funding Sources 
General Fund 

Funding Totals $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
Funding Shortfall: 
$ 1,632,000 

Tota 
1,020,000 

51,000 
204,000 

<-
153,000 
204,000 

1.632,000 

$ . 

29 



178

~ 

Project No, FlS 

Capital Improvement Program 

Pro'ect Location 
Remodel to accommodate Community Center at Jade Street 

Description: 

Remodel existing Community Center building at Jade Street park to better accommodate 
Recreation Department's needs as recommended in the approved Facility Master Plan, 

General Plan Consistency: 
Dia ram-F15 

'--.--

Maintenance Impact: 

To be determined, 

Fiscal Estimate: 

Fiscal Year 200B-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 Unl2rogrammed 
Project Construction 1,OBO,OOO 
Planning & Permitting 5% 54,000 
Design 20% 216,000 
Right of Way 
Construction Management 15% 162,000 
Contingency 20% 216,000 

Project Totals 1,72B,OOO 

Funding Sources 
General Fund 

Funding Totals $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -

Funding Shortfall: 
$ 1,728,000 

- - --

Total 
1,OBO,OOO 

54,000 
216,000 

162,000 
216,000 

1,72B,OOO 

$ 

30 



179

Neighborhood Traffic Advisory Committee 
Unprogrammed Projects 

Project List - Neighborhood Traffic Advis0'Y Committee Recommended Projects 

Project Project Year Engineer's 
Number Catogo'Y Location Project Scheduled Estimate 

N3 NTAC Bay & cap Avo Bay Avo/Cap Ave Intersection Improvements Unprogrammed 500,950 

N4 NTAC Bay & Monterey Bay Ave/Monterey Ave Intersection Improvements Unprogrammed 297,000 

N7 NTAC Monterey Ave Relocate Stop Signs on Monterey Ave unprogrammed 8,700 

N8 NTAC DepolHiII Ingress/Egress Improvements to Depot Hill unprogrammed 148,500 
N10 NTAC Park Ave Slow Street Design on Park Ave unprogrammed 123,900 

N11 NTAC Fanmar One way Traffic on Fanmar (east to west) unprogrammed 33,000 

N9 NTAC Siockion Ave Raised crosswalks at Stockton & Esplanade Unprogrammed 150,000 

N12 NTAC Monterey Ave Slow street design on lower Monterey Ave unprogrammed 115,500 

N13 NTAC Various Slow street design on Escalona, Fanmar, Cliff Ave, & EISaito unprogrammed 90,900 

N14 NTAC Escalona Small traffic circle at Escalona and Oakland unprogrammed 12,400 

N15 NTAC Bay Traffic Calming on Bay Ave unprogrammed 206,400 

N16 NTAC Beulah One way traffic on Beulah (west to east) unprogrammed 20,600 

N17 NTAC Monterey and Hlil Sidewalks on Monterey and Hill unprogrammed 50,300 

N18 NTAC 47th Ave Traffic Calmning on 47th Ave Unprogrammed 80,000 

N19 NTAC 42ndAve Bulb-outs on 42nd at DMV unprogrammed 33,000 

N20 NTAC Cliff Dr. Blilb-ouls on Cliff Drive below Prospect unprogrammed 49.500· 

N21 NTAC 49lhAvs Bikeway striping on 49th Ave unprogrammed 4,100 

N22 NTAC Various Establish Truck Routes through City unprogrammed 20,600 

N24 NTAC Wharf Replace rolled curb on Wharf Road Unprogrammed 74,300 

N26 NTAC 49th Ave Chicanes on 49th Ave unprogrammed 45,400 

N27 NTAC Various Signage depicting Neighborhoods unprogrammed 20,600 

N2B NTAC 42ndAve Slow Traffic Design on 42nd unprogrammed 53.60,0 

Totals $ 2,969,250 $ 

TDA RDA General Total Funds 
Gas Tax Other Grants Funds Funds Fund Unfunded Available 

$ 500,950 $ 
$ 297,000 $ 
$ 8,700 $ 
$ 148,500 $ 
$ 123,900 $ 

$ 33,000 $ 

$ 150,000 $ 
$ 115,500 $ 

$ 90,900 $ 
$ 12,400 $ 

$ 206,400 $ 

$ 20,600 $ 

$ 50,300 $ 
$ 80,000 $ 
$ 33,000 $ 
$ 49.500 $ 
$ 4,100 $ 
$ 20,600 $ 

$ 74,300 $ 

is 45,400 ' is 
,$ 20,600 $ 
$ 53.600 $ 

$ 300.000 $ $ 130,000 $ 2,439,250 $ 530,000 



180

Project No. N3 

Capital Improvement Program 

ProJect Category Location 
Construct Roundabout or NTAC mtersection of Bay Ave. and 

Signals Capitola Ave 

Description: 
_Perform engineerip.g analysis ofintersectian to determine whether a roundabout or traffic 
signal would be be~i method for reducing both congestion and traffic right-of-way 
problems. 

General Plan Consistency: 
Maintaining LOS of C ar better for all 
city roadways. 

Maintenance Impact: 

Roundabout construction would result 
in-increased landscaping maintenance 
estimated at $2,400 per year. 

Fiscal Estimate: 

Fiscal Year 2009-10 
Project Construction 
Planning & Permitting 5% 
Design 20% 
Right of Way 25% 
Construction Management 15% 
Contingency 20% 

Project Totals 

Funding Sources 
General Fund 

Funding Totals $ -
Funding Shortfall: 
$ 564,400 

$ 

2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 Un[!rogrammed Total 
305,000 305,000 

15,300 15,300 
61,000 61,000 
76,300 76,300 
45,800 45,800 
61,000 61,000 

564,400 564,400 

- $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 

32 



181

Project No. N4 

-Capital Im,provement Program 

Project Categ_ofX Location 
Intersection Improvements NTAC Intersection of Monterey Avenue 

and Bay Avenue 

Description: 
Investigate and construct intersection improvements to increase traffic movement from 
one street to the other (left hand turns), pedestrian safety, and reduce speeds. Possible 
solutions include a roundabout, traffic signals, or all-way stops. 

General Plan Consistency: 

Maintenance Impact: 

Roundabouts or signals will have 
-increased maintenance requirements 
estimated at $2000 per year. 

"Public Art Funding -Eligibility: 

Fiscal Estimate: 

Fiscal Year 
Project Construction 
Plannihg & Permitting 
Design 
Right of Way 

5% 
20% 
5% 

15% Construction Management 
Contingency ~O% ________ _ 

Project Totals 

Funding Sources 

Funding Totals $ $ $ 

Funding Shortfall: 
$ 297,000 

$ - $ - $ 

Unprogrammed 
180,000 

9,000 
36,000 

9,000 
27,000 
36,000 

297,000 

$ 

Total 
180,000 

9,000 
36,000 
9,000 

27,000 
36,000 

297,000 

33 



182

Project No. N7. 

Capital Improvement Program 

Project Category Location 
Relocate Existing Stop Signs NTAC Kennedy Driye and Monterey 

Avenue 

. Description: . 
Remove the existing stop signs located oli Kemledy Drive at Sir Francis Drive and 
Kemledy Drive and Montery Ave. Install new stop sign on Monterey Ave at Elinor. 

General Plan Consistency: 

Maintenance Impact: 

None 

Public Art Funding Eligibility: 

Fiscal Estimate: 

Fiscal Year 
Project Construction 
Planning & Permllting 
Design 
Right of Way 
Construction Management 
Contingency 

Project Totals 

Funding Sources 

Funding Totals 

Funding Shortfall; 
$ 8,700 

2008·09 

5% 

5% 
15o/~ 
20% 

$ - $ 

Dia ram-N7 

2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-19 Unl2rogrammed 
'6,000 

300 

300 
,900 

1,200 

8,700 

- $ - $ - $ . $ - $ 

Total 
6,000 

300 

300 
900 

1,200 

8,700 

34 



183

- - - -

Project No, N8 

Capital Improvement Program 

Pro'ect Location 
Ingress/Egress IInprovemellts MOl1tere Ave at Depot Hill 

D~cr~ti@: " _ 
Provide yet to be detennilled improvements to improve the vehicle ingress and egress to 

"Depot Hill along Escalona Ave and also provide safer pedestrian crossing at this 
intel'section, 

General Plan Consistency: 

"Maintenance Impact: 

Unlrnowll 

Public Art Funding Eligibility': 

Fiscal Estimate: 

Fiscal Year 
Project Construction 
Planning & Permitting 
Design 

5% 
20% 
5% 

15% 
Right of Way 
Construction Management 
Contingency . 20% _____ _ 

Project Totals 

Funding Sources 

Funding Toials .. $ -.jI 

Funding Shortfall: 
$ 148,500 

-- .- - -

.. - .. - .. .p '" '" 

- -

- $ 

- - -

Unprogrammed 
90,000 
4,500 

18,000 
4,500· 

13,500 
18,000 

148,500 

- - . 

$ 

Tolal 
90,000 

4,500 
18,000 
4,500 

13,500 
18,000 

148,500 

35 



184

Project No. N9 
Capital Improvement Program 

Project CategOl-;)'_ Location 
Stockton Avenue and NTAC Intersection of Stockton Ave and 
Esplanade Pedestrian Esplanade 

Improvements 

Description: 
Construction of raised crosswalks or some other form of pedestrian safety devices at the 
Stockton Avenue/Esplanade intersection. Design began in 2006-07 and will be reviewed 
as part of anticipated circulation studies before finalizing. 

General Plan Consistency: 

Chapter 9, Circulation, Policies 35 
& 37 directs the development of 
safe pedestrian pathways. 

Maintenance Impact: 

None 

Fiscal Estimate: 

Fiscal Y~ar 2006·07 
Project Construction 
Planning & Permitting 5% 
Design 10% 
Right of Way 0% 
Construction Management 15% 
Contingency 20% 

Project Totals 

Funding Sources 
General Fund 

Funding Totals 

Funding Shortfall: 
$ 150,000 

2007·08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 Unl2rogrammed 
100,000 

5,000 
10,000 

15,000 
20,000 

150,000 

$ - $ - $ - $ - $ .- $ 

Total 
100,000 

5,000 
10.000 

15,000 
20,000 

150,000 

36 



185

Project No .. NIO. 

,Cap,ital Improvement Prngr.am 

Project Cateeory Location J 
Slow str'eet design NTAC Park Ave 1 

Description: 
Design and construct street improvements along Park Avenue that will slow the traffic . 
down and provide better pedestrian safety. 

General Plan Consistency: 
Chapter 9, Circulation, Policies 13 
& 14 both encourage the development 

. of traffic control meas'Q.res to maintain 
the livability of streets whilepreserving 
the safety oftravel on them. 

Maintenance Impact: 
Urliconwn 

Public Art Funding Eligibility: 

Fiscal Estimate: 

Fiscal Year 
Project Construction 
Planning' & PerrnltHng 
Design .' 
Right of Way . 

5% 
20% 
5% 

15% Construction Management 
Contlngency 20% _--.:.-_ _ __ "._ 

Project Totals 

Funding Sources 

Funding Totals - $ - $ 

Funding Shortfall: 
$ 123,900 

" $ - $ - $ 

Unprogrammed 
75,000 

3;800 
15,000 

3,800 
11,300 
15,000 

123,900 

" $ 

Total 
75,000 
.3,BOO 

15,000 
3,BOO 

11,300 . 
15,000 

123,900 

37 



186

Project No. NIl 

Capital Improvement Program 

Project Location 
One way traffic designation Fanmar Avenue 

Description: 
Designate Famml1: Avelluefor one way traffic fi:0111 east to west. 

General Plan Consistency: 

Maintenance Impact: 

None 

Public Art Funding Eligibility: 

Fiscal Estimate: 

Fiscal Year 
Project Construction 
Planning & Permitting 
Design 
Right of Way 
Construction Management 
Contlrigency 
Project Totals 

Funding Sources 

Funding Totals 

Funding Shortfall: 
$ 33,000 

2008-09 

5% 
20% 

5% 
15% 
20% 

$ - $ 

2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 

. -

- $ - $ $ - $ 

UnQrogrammed 
20,000 

1,000 
4,000 
1,000 
3,000 

. 4,000 

33,000 

$ 

Total 
20,000 

1,000 
4,000 
1,000 
3,000 
4,000 

33,000 

38 



187

Project No. N12 

,Capital Imp.:r.ovement ,Rnogr,am 

Pro'ect Location 
Slow street design Monterey Avenue 

Description: 
Design and construct street improvements along Monterey Avenue from'Park Avenue to 
the Village that will slow the traffic down and provide better pedestrian safety. 

General Plan Consistency: 

Maintenance Impact: 

Unlmown 

Public Art Funding Eligibility: 
, ' 

Fiscal Estimate: 

Fiscal Year 
. Proj~ct Construc~on 

Planning & Permitting 
Design 
Right of Way 

I 
i. 

5% 
20% 

5% 
15% 

. '-

.' ,Construction Management 
Contingency 20% ________ _ 

Project Totals 

Funding Sources 

Funding Totals $ - $ $ 

Funtling Shortfall: 
$ 115,500 

$ 

2011-12 2012-13 Unprogrammed 
-' 70,000 

$ $ 

3,500 
14,000 

3,500 
10,500 
14,000 

115,500 

$ 

Total 
7a,OOO 

3,500 
14,000 

3,500 
10,500 
14,000 

115,500 

39 



188

Project No. N13 

Capital Improvement Program 

Project Category Location· 
Slow street design NTAC Escalona, Famnar. Cliff Ave, & El 

Salto 

Description: 
Design and ~onstrllct street improvements along Escalona, Famnar, Cliff Ave., and EI 
SaIto that will slow the traffic down and provide better pedeslTian safety. 

Gene~al Plan Consistency: 

Maiutenance Impact: 

Unlmown 

Public Art Funding Eligibility: 

Fiscal Estimate: 

Fiscal Year 
Project Construction 
Planning & Permitting 
Design 
Right of Way 
Construction Management 
Contingency 

Project Totals 

Funding Sources 

Funding Totals 

Funding Shortfall: 
$ 90~00 

2008·09 2009·10 2010·11 2011·12 2012·13 Unprogrammed 
55,000 

5% 2,800 
20% 11,000 
~ ~B 

15% 8,300 
20% 11,000 

90,900 

$ • $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 

Total 
55,000 
2,800 

11,000 
2,800 
8,300 

11,000 

90,900 

40 



189

Project No. N14 

.C.al1itaLlmp:I:ovementJ~rQg.r.am 

Project ° Location 
° Small Traffic Circle Escalona Ave at Oaldand Ave 

Description: 
Install a small traffic circle on Escalona Avenue at Oalcland Avenue. 

General Consiste~cy: 

Maintenance Impact: 

None 

Public Art Funding Eligibility: 

Fiscal Estimate: 

Fiscal Year 
Project Construction 
Planning & Peromllting 
Design 00 

° Right of Way 
Construction Management 
Contlnog~ncy 

Project Totals 

Funding Sources 

Funding Totals 

Funding Shortfall: 
$ 12,400 

5% 
20% ° 

5% 
15% 
20% __ _ 

$ $ $ $ $ $ 

Unprogrammed 
7.500 

400 
1.500 

400 
1.100 
1,500 

12,400 

$ 

Total 
7,500 

400 ° 

1,500 
400 

1,100 
1,500 

12,400 

41 



190

Project No. N15 

Capital Improvement Program 

Project Location 
Traffic calming Bay Avenue 

Description: 
Similar to slow traffic design, deve~op a strategy and improvement to Bay Avenue to 
provide smoother traffic flows and pedestrian safety. 

General Plan Consistency: 

Maintenance Impact: 

None 

-Public Art Funding Eligibility: 

Fiscal Estimate: 

Fiscal Year 
Project Construction 
Planning & Permitting 
Design 
Right of Way 

5% 
20% 
5% 

15% Construction Management 
Contingency 20% _____ _ 

Project Totals 

Funding Sources 

Funding Totals $ $ . $ 

Funding Shortfall: 
$ 206,400 

• $ • $ 

Dla ram-Ni5 

2012-13 Unprogrammed 
125,000 

6,300 
25,000 

6,300 
18,800 
25,000 

206,400 

- $ - $ 

Total 
125,000 

6,300 
25,000 

6,300 
18,800 
25,000 

206,400 

42 



191

Project No. N16 

.CapitaLlmprovement ErQg.t:a,m 

Pro'ect Location· 
One way traffic designation Beulah Avenue 

Description: 
Designate Beulah Avenue for one way. traffic" from west to east. 

Genel'al Plan Consistency: 

'Maintenance Impact: 

None 

Public Art FundJng Eligibility: 

Fiscal Estimate: 

Fiscal Year. 
ProJsct Construction 
Planning & Permitting 
Design 
Right of Way 
Construction Management 
Contingency 

Project totals 

Funding Sources 

Funding Totals 

Funding Shortfall: 
$ 20,600 

2008·09 2009·10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 Unprogrammed 
12,500 

9% 600 
20% 2,500 

. 5% 600 
15% 1,900 
20% 2,500 

·20,600 

. $ - $ - $ . $ - $ . $ - $ 

Total 
12,500 

600 
2,500 

600 
1,900 
2,500 

20,600 

43 



192

Project No. N17 

Capital Improvement Program 

Project Location 
Sidewalk construction Monterey Avenue and Hill Street 

Description: 
Construct curb, gutter and sidewalks along Monterey Avenue from Bay Avenue to 
W ashbum Avenue _and along Hill Street from Capitola Avenue to the Crossroads Road. 

General Plan Consistency: 

MaintellanGe Impact: 

None 

Public Art Funding-Eligibility: 

Fiscal Estimate: 

Fiscal Year 
Project Construction 
Planning & Permitting 
Design 
Right of Way 
Construction Management 
Contingency 
Project Totals -

Funding Sources 

Funding Totals 

Funding Shortfall: 
$ 50,300 

5% 
20% 

5% 
15% 
20% __ _ 

$ $ $ $ $ $ 

Unprogrammed 
30,500 

1,500 
6,100 
1,500 
4,600 
6,100 

50,300 

$ 

Total 
30,500 

1,500 
6,100 
1,500 
4,600 
6,100 

50,300 

44 



193

Project No. N18 

Capital Improvement Program 

Pro'ect Location 
Jewel Box Traffic calming 4i l Avenue 

Description: . 
Install traffic calming measures to address traffic volume and speed issues in the Jewel 
Box neighborhood. Initial studies began in 2006-07. 

General Plan Consistency: 
Chapter 9, Circulation, Maintain the 
livabilityoflocal and collector streets 
while preserving the safety of travel on 
them. 

Maintenance Impact: 

Unkown 

Fiscal Estimate: 

Fiscal Year 2009-10 
Project Construction· 
Planning & Permitting 5% 
Design 20% 
Right of Way 
Construction Management 15% 
Contingency 20% 

Project Totals 

Funding Sources 
Contract Services 
Transfer from NTAC Project Bank 
Transfer from Tot Lot 4.002 
General Fund 

Funding Totals $ -
Funding Shortfall: 
$ BO,OOO 

-- ... 

2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 Un12rogrammed 
50,000 

2,500 
10,000 

7,500 
10,000 

80,000 

$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 

Total 
50,~00 

2,500 
10,.000 

7,500 
10,000 

80,000 

45 



194

Project No. N19 

,Capitai Improvement .Pr.ngr.am 

Pro'ect Location 
Bulb-out construction 4211 Avenue 

Description: 
Construct traffic bulb-outs on 4211d Avenue at the DMV driveway to provide better 
pedestrian safety measmes. 

Dia ram-N19 
General Plan Consistency: 

Maintenance Impact: 

$500 per year increased landscaping 
costs· 

Public Art Funding Eligibility: 

Fiscal Estimate: 

Fiscal Year 
Project Construction 
planning & Permitting 
Design 
Right of Way 
Construction Management 
Contingency 

Project Totals 

Funding Sources 

Funding Totals 

Funding Shortfall: 
$ 33,000 

2008-09 2009-10 2010.11' 2011-12 ~. Unprogrammed 
2Q,OOO 

5% 1,000 
20% 4,000 
5% 1,000 

15% 3,000 
20% 4,000 

33,000 

$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 

Total 
20.000 

1,000 
4,000 
1,000 
3,000 
4,000 

33,000 

46 



195

Project No. N20 

Capital I.IDprovement Program 

Project Location 
Bulb~out cOllstruction Cliff Dl'ive 

D escrip ti 0 11 : 

Construct bulb outs along Cliff Drive near the larger Cliffside parking lot to provide 
better pedesh'iall safety. 

General.Plau,Consistency: 
Chapter 9, Crrculation, Policies 35 
& 37 directs the development of 
safe pedestri~pathways. 

Maintenance Ill).pact: 

$500 per yeal' increased landscaping 
costs 

.Public Art Funding Eligibi~ity: 

Fiscal Estimate: 

Fiscal Year ~ 2009,10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 Unprogrammed 
Project Construction 
Planning .& Permitting 
Design 
Right"ofWay 
Construction Management . 
Contingency 

Project Totals 

Funding ~ources 

Funding Tolals 

Funding Shortfall: 
$ 49~DD 

30,000 
5% 1,500 

W% ~~ 
5% 1,500 

15% 4,500 
20% 6,000 

49,500 

$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 

Total 
30,000 

1,500 
.6,000 

1,500 
4,500 
6,000 

49,500 

47 



196

Project No, N21 

Ca,pital Improvement .PrQ.gr.am 

Pro'ect Location 
Bikeway stripping 49 t1 Avenue 

Description: 
Install bikeway designation along 49th Avenue below Capitola~oad to narrow the traffic 
lanes and slow vehicles. 

General Plan Consistency: 

Maintenance Impact: 

None 

Public A-rt Funding Eligibility: 

Fiscal Estimate: 

Fiscal Year 
Project Construction 
Planning & Permitting 
Design 
Right of Way 
Construction Management 
Contingency 

Project Totals 

Funding .Sources 

Funding Totals 

Funding Shortfall: 
$ 4.100 

2008·09 2009·10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 Unprogrammed 
2,500 

~ 100 
~% 500 

5% 100 
15% 400 
~% 000 

4,100 

$ - $ - $ . $ - $ - $ - $ 

Total 
2,500 

100 
500 
100 
400 
500 

4,100 

48 



197

Proj ect No, N22 

Capital Improvement Program 

Project Location 
TmckRoutes Establish Tmck Routes 

Description: 
Establish truck routes tln'Ollghout the City to keep commercial traffic on arterial streets as 
111uch as possib~e, 

General Plan Consistency: 
Chapter 9, Circulation, Policy 6 seek to enhance,. maintain and provide the maximum 
capacity on arterial streets·and locating high traffic-generating uses 011: arterial ~treets, 

Maintenance Impact: 
None 

Public Art Funding Eligibility: 

Fiscal Estimate: 

Fiscal Year 
Project Construction 
Planning & Permitting 
Design 
Right of Way 
Construction Management 
Contingency 

Proje~t Totals 

FUnding Sources 

Funding Totals 

Funding Shortfall: 
$ 20,600 

2008·09 2009·10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 Unprogrammed 
12,500 

5% 600 
20% 2,500 

5% 600 
15% 1,900 
20% 2,500 

20,600 

$ • $ • $ . $ - $ - $ - $ 

Total 
12,500 

600 
2,500 

600 
1,900 
2,500 

20,600 

49 



198

Proj ect No. N24 

Capital Improvement Program 

Project Location 
Standard Curb construction Wharf Road 

Description: 
Replace the section of existing rolled curb along Wharf Road from the Rispin Mansion to 
Highway 1 with standard curbing. 

Dia ram-N24 

General Plan Consistency: 

Maintenance Impact: 

"None 

Public Art Funding Eligibility: 

Fiscal Estimate: 

Fiscal Year 
Project Construction 
Planning & Permitting 
Design 
Right of Way " 
Construction Management 
Contingency 

Project Totals 

FCJndlng Sources 

Funding Tl?tals 

Funding Shortfall: 
$ 74,300 

2008-09 2009·10 2010·11 2011-12 2012-13 Unprogrammed 
46,400 

5% 2,300 
20% 9,300 

. 15% 7,000 
20% 9,300 

74,300 

$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 

Tolal 
46,400 
2,300 
9,300 

7,000 
9,300 

74,300 

50 



199

Project No. N26 

Capital Improvement Program 

Project Location 
Chicane construction 49t 

1 Avenue 

Description: . 
Construct chicanes or some other traffic calming measures a10ng 49th Avenu.e above 
Capitola Road. -

General Plan Consistency: 

. . 

Maintenance Impact: 

$500 per year increased lan~scaping 
costs 

Public Art Funding Eligibility: 

Fiscal Estimate: 

Fiscal Year 
Project Construction 
Planning & Permitting 
DeSign 
Right of Way 
Construction Management 
Contingency 

Project Totals 

Funding Sources 

F.unding Totals 

Funding Shortfall: 
$ 45,400 

5% 
20% 

5% 
15% 
20% __ _ 

$ $ 

201.0·11 2011-12 2012-13 Unprogrammed 

$ - $ - $ 

.27,500 
1,400 
5,500 
1,400 
4,100 
5,500 

45,400 

- $ 

Total 
27,500 

1,400 
5,500 
1,400 
4,100 
5,500 

45,400 

51 



200

~ 

Project No. N27 

Capital.ImpTovement_Pr.o.g.r.am 

Project Location 
Neighborhood SigIlage Multiple 

Description: 
Design, construct, and install signage for the ~ntrance to residential neighborhoods that 
tells drivers that they need to slow down and drive carefully. 

General Plan Consistency: 

Main tenance Impact: 
$50 per year per sign 

Public Art Funding Eligibility: 

Fiscal Estimate: 

Fiscal Year . 
Project Conslruction 
Planning & Permitting 
Design 
Right of Way 
Construction Management . . 
Contingency 

Project Totals 

Funding Sources 

Funding Totals 

Funding Shortfall: 
$ 20,600 

2008-09 

5% 
20% 

5% 
15% 
20% 

$ - $ 

2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 Ungrogrammed 
12,500 

600 
2,500 

600 
- 1,900 

2,500 

20,600 

- $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 

Total 
12,500 

600 
2,500 

600 
1,900 
2,500 

20,600 

52 



201

Project No. N28 

Capital I~provement Program 

Pro,ject Location 
Slow traffic design 4tl Avenue 

Description:·· . 
Design ~d construct street improvements along 42nd Avenue above Capitola road that 
will slow the traffic down and provide better pedestrian safety. 

General Plan Con~istency: 

Maintenance Impact: 

Unknown 

Public Art Funding Eligibility: 

Fiscal Estimate: 

Fiscal Year 
Project Construction 
Planning & Permitting 
Design 
Right of Way 
Construction. Management 
Contingency 

Project Totals 

Funding Sources 

Funding Totals 

Funding Shortfall: 
$ 53,600 

2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 Unprogrammed 
32,500 

~ 1,000 
20% 6,500 

5% 1,600 
15% 4,900 
20% 6,500 

53,600 

$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 

Total 
32,500 
1,60b 
6,500 
1,600 
4,900 
6,500· 

53,600 

r--

_I 

53 



202

Project List· Parks 

Project Project 
Number Category Location 

15 P15' Parks Esplanade 

6 P6 Parks Jade 
7 P7 Parks Cortez 
9 P9 Parks Monterey 

10 P10 Parks Cortez 
11 P11 Parks Soquel Creek 

12 P12 Parks Jade & Cortez 

13 P13 Parks TBD 

14 P14 Parks TBD 

16 P16 Parks Jade 

17 P17 Parks Rispin 

Project 

Bluff Erosion Control 
Soccer and Baseball Field Improvements 
Landscaping and Pathways 

Park Projects 
Unprogrammed Projects 

Year Engineer's 
Scheduled Estimate 

Unprdgrammed $ 90,900 
Unprogrammed $ 24,100 
Unprogrammed $ 45,400 

Field Irligation and Drainage Improvements Unprogrammed $ 48,000 
New Play Equipment in Swing Areas Unprogrammed $ 96,500 

Repair Retaining Wall Unprogrammed $ 49,500 

Develop Picnic and BBQ area @ Jade Unprogrammed $ 37,600 

Skate Park Development Unprogrammed $ 485,000 

Dog Park Development Unprogrammed $ 29,700 

Reconstruct Tennis Courts Unprogrammed $ 100,600 

Complete converstion to park Unprogrammed $ 549,000 
totals $ 1.007,300 

Roberti State City Total 
Z.Berg Parks General Available 
Grant Grant Funds Unfunded Funds 

$ 90,900 $ 
$ 24,100 $ 
$ 45,400 $ 
$ 48,000 $ 
$ 96,500 $ 
$ 49,500 $ 
$ 37,600 $ 
$ 485,000 $ 
$ 29,700 $ 
$ 100,600 $ 
$ 549,000 $ 

## $ $ $ $ 1,556,300 $ 



203

Project No, ~ 

Ca,pitallmpr.ovementErug:r:am 

Project Category ~. . Location 1 
Field Improvements Parks I Jade Street 1 

Description: 
Irrigation and drainage illipl'ovements to the existing soccer and baseball fields at Jade 
Street Park. 

General Plan Consistency: 
JADE ST· 

Maintenance Impact: 

Reduction of maintenance costs of 
$2000 per year, 

. Fiscal Estimate: 

Fiscal Year 
Project Construction 
Planning & Permitting 
Design 
Right of Way 
Construction Management 
Contingency 

Project Totals 

Funding Sources 

Funding Totals 

Funding Shortfall: 
$ 24,100 

2008-09 ·2009·10 2010·11 2011-12 2012·13 Unj;irogrammed 
15,000 

~ MO 
20% 3,000 

15% 2,300 
20% 3,000 

24,1.00 

$ - $ $ - $ $ $ $ 

Total 
15,000 

800 
3,000 

2,300 
3,000 . 

24,100 

55 



204

Project No. P7 

Capital Improvement Program 

Project Category Location 
Landscape and pathway Parks Cortez Park 

improvements 

Description: 
Re-landscape the existing perimeter areas and construct new ADA compliant pathways 
thr01.1ghout parle to comlect different areas together. 

General Plan Consistency: 

Maintenance Impact: 

None. 

Fiscal Estimate: 

Fiscal Year 
Project Construction 
Planning & Permitting 
Design 
Right of Way 
Construcllon Management 
Contingency 

Project Totals 

Funding Sources 

Funding Totals 

Funding Shortfall: 
$ 45,400 

5% . 
. 20% 

5% 
15% 
20% __ _ 

$ $ 

Dla ram-P7 

2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 Unprogrammed 

$ $ - $ 

27,500 
1,400 
5,500 
1.400 
4,100 
5.500 

45,400 

$ 

Total 
27,500 
1,400 
5,500 
1,400 
4,100 
5,500 

45,400 

56 



205

.ProjectNo. ~ 

CapitalImprovel1).Jmt }lIQgram 

Project I Category I 
Field Improvements I Parks I 

Description: 
Improve drainage and irrigation of the existing field. 

GeneralPlan Consistency: 
Mamtenance of park facilities is 
consistent with the General Plan. 

Maintenance Impact: 

. . . 

Decrease in field maintenance costs of 
$500 per year . 

. Fiscal Estlmate: 

Fiscal Year 2008-09 
Projecf Construction 
Planning & Permitting 5% 

. Design 20% 
Right of Way 
Constructlon Management 15% . 
Contingency 20% 

Project Totals 

funding Sources 
General Fund 

F.unding Totals $ 

Funding Shortfall: 
$ 48,000 

2009-10 2010-11 

0 

Location I 
Monterey Park I 

2011-12 2012"13 UnQrogrammed Total' 
30,000 30,000 

1,500 1,500 
.' 6,000 6,000 

4,500 4,500 
6,000 6,000 

48,000 48,000 

0 0 o $ 

57 



206

Project No. PIO. 

Capital Improvement Program 

Project Category Location 
Cortez Park Play Equipment Parks Cortez Park 

Replacement 

Description: 
Remove and replace existing swings and other play equipment in sand boxes with new 
equipment. 

General Plan Consistency: 

The play equipment at Cortez Park 
meets the Park and Recreational 
Activities of the General Plan. 
This project is the maintenance 
of these facilities. 

Maintenance Impact: 

Reduction of park maintenance costs for 
existing sand boxes of $500 per year. 

Fiscal Estimate: 

Dia ram·P10 

Fiscal Year 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013·14 Unprogrammed 
Project Construction 
Planning & Permitting 5% 
Design . 0% 
Right of Way 0% 
Construction Management 0% 
Contingency 10% 

Project Totals 

Funding Souroes 
General Fund 

Funding Totals 

Funding Shortfall: 
$ 96,500 

$ $ $ $ $ $ 

83,900 
4,200 

8,400 

96,500 

$ 

Tolal 
83,900 
4,200 

8,400 

96,500 

58 



207

Project No. Pll 

Capital Improvement Program 

Project Location 
Repair Retaining Wall Soquel Creek Park 

Description: . 
Repair existing .retaining wall along Soquel Creek in Soquel Creek Park. This proj ect 
l:nay be completed aspart of the Soquel Creek Wetland Reconstruction Project, Project 
·No.C4. . 

General Plan Consistenc;y: 

Maintenance Impact: 

Failure of the wall would result in a 
illaintenance cost of $1 000 per year. 

Public Art Funding Eligibility: 

Fiscal Estimate: 

Fiscal Year 2008-09 
Project Construction 
Planning & Permltt!ng 5% 
Design 20% 
Right of Way 5% 
Construction Management 15% 
Contlngen.cy 20% 

Project Totals 

.Funding Sources 

Funding Totals $ - $ 

Funding Shortfall: 
$ 49,500 

2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 Ungrogrammed 
30,000 

1,500 
6,000 
1,500 
4,500 
6,000 

49,500 

- $ - $ - $. - $ -

Total 
30,900 

1.,500 
6,000 
1,500 
4,500 
6,000 

49,500 

$ 

59 



208

Project No. P12 

Capital Improvement Program 

Location 
Jade Street and Cortez Parks 

Description: 
COllstmct-picnic areas that may include barbeque areas at each parle. 

General Plan Consistency: 

Main tenance Impact: 

hlcrease park maintenance costs of 
$lOOO-per year .. 

Fiscal Estimate: 

Fiscal Year 2008-09 2009-10 .2010-11 2011-12 
Project Construction 
Planning & Permitting 5% 
Design 20% 
Right of Way 
Construction Management 15% 
Contingency - 20% __ _ 

2012-13 Unprogrammed 
23,500 

1,200 
4,700 

3,500 
4,700 

Total 
23,500 
1,200 
4,700 

3,500 
4,700 

Project Totals 37,600 37,600 

Funding Sources 

Funding Totals o o o o o o o 

Funding Shortfall: 
$ 37.600 

60 



209

Project No. P13 

Capital Improvement Program 

Pro'ect Location 
Skate Park Development. To be detennined 

Description: 
Development of a skate rark within the City, Potential sites already considered inClude 
the drainage basin at 3811 Avenue and BrOlmner Street, Noble Gulch Parle and.McGregor 
Drive property. None of these sites were detemlined to be adequate, 

General Plan Consistency: 
Meets the Parle and Recreation 
Activities goals of the General 
Plan. 

Maintenance Impact: 
Increased maintenance costs of 
park will vary dependent of the 
size of the park. it location, and 
other factors. Estimate a 
mini111uni of $20,000 per year. 

Fiscal Estimate: 

Fiscal Year 
Project Construction 
Planning & Permnting 
Design . 
Right of Way 
Construction Management 
Contingency 

Project Totals' 

Funding Sources 
General fund 

Funding Totals 

Funding Shortfall: 
$ 485,000 

5% 
20% 
5% 
5% 

20% 

$ $ $ $ $ $ 

Unprogrammed 
300,000 

15,000 
a8,OOO 
15,000 
15,000 
60,000 

485,000 

Total 
300,000 

15,000 
80,000 
15,000 
15,000 
60,000 

485,000 

$ 

61 



210

Project No. P14 

Capital Improvement Program 

Project Location 
Dog Park Development To be detennined 

. Description: 
Evaluate sites within the City for development of a Dog Parle Possible sites include a 
portion of Noble Gulch Park and McGregor Drive property. 

General Plan ~onsistency: 

Main tenance Impact: 
Increase in maintenance costs 
for parle estimated at $3000 per 
year. 

Fiscal Estimate: 

Fiscal Year 2008·09 
Project Construction 
Planning & Permitting 
Design 
RlghfofWay 
Construction Management 
Contingency 

Project Totals 

Funding Sources 

Funding Totals 

Funding Shortfall: . 
$ 29,700 

5% 
20% 

5% 
15% 
20% 

$ • $ 

2009·10 2010·11 2011·12 2012·13 Un[!rogrammeg 
18,000 

900 
3,600 

900 
2,700 
3,600 

.; 29,700 

. $. - $ - $ - $ - $ 

Total 
18,000 

900 
3,600 

900 
2,700 
3,600 

29,700 

62 



211

Project No, P16 
Capital Improvement Program 

Pro'eet Location 
Tem'lis Court Reconstruction Jade Street 

Description: 
Recollstrllct four existing tennis courts at Jade Street"Park. Reconstmction is necessary 
due to the ongoing failure and cracking of the" existing asphalt. 

Maintenance Impact: 
Reduction of Maintenance costs of 
$4,000 per year. 

Fiscal Estimate; 

§f§@~1 ffiJl 
JADE ST 

Fiscal Year " 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 " Unl1rogrammed To 

Project Construcllon 

Planning & Permitting 

Design 

Right of Way 
Construction Management 

Contingency 

Project Totals 

Funding Sources 

General Fund 

Funding Totals 

Funding Shortfall: 
"$ 100,600 

5% 
20% 

0% 

5% 

20% .--

$ - $ - $ - $ 

67,000 6~,00 

3,400 3,40 
13,400 13,40 

3,400 3,40 

--- :13,400 --1MQ 
100,600 100,60 

- $ - $ - $ 

63 



212

Project No. PI5 

Capital Improvement Program 

Project Category -Location 
Esplanade Park Erosion Park Eastern end of Esplanade Park 

Control 

Description: 

Provide additional erosion control measures of the bluff face immediately above the 
upper portion of Esplanade Park. Measures could include retaining wall construction 
along with cliff face stabilization. 

Maintenance Impact: 

Reduction in park maintenance costs caused by 
continual clean up efforts of debris that currently 
takes place. Estimated savings: $500 per year. 

Fiscal Estimate: 

Fiscal Year 

Project Construction 

Planning & Permitting 5% 

Design 20% 
Right of Way 0% 
Construction 
Management 15% 

Contingency 20% 

Project Totals 

Funding Sources 
General Fund 

Funding Totals 

Funding Shortfall: 
$ 
88,100 -

2012-13 2013-14 

$ $ 

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 Unl2rogrammed 

55,000 

2,800 

11,000 

8,300 

- 11,000 ---- --
88,100 

$ -$-- -$-- $ 

Total 

55,000 

2,800 

11,000 

8,300 

11,000 

88,100 

--$--

64 



213

ProJect No: P17 

Capital Improvement Program 

Project Location 
Rispin Park Develo Rispin Mansion 

Description: Complete the development of the Rispin property into a city park. 
Complete ADA ramps to mansion level, restore fountain and stairway, regrade pathways, 
and restore landscaping. 

Maintenance Impact: 
Increase in park mamtenance costs 
of approximately $30,000 per year. 

Fiscal Estimate: 
Fiscal Year 
Project Construction 
Planning & Permitting 
Design 
Right of Way 
Construction Management 
Contingency 

Project Totals 

Funding Sources 

Funding Totals 

Funding Shortfall: 
$ 549,000 

2% 
10% 

0% 
0% 

10% __ _ 

$ - $ - $ 

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 Unprogrammed 

- $ - $ - $ 

450,000 
9,000 

45,000 

45,000 

549,000 

- $ 

Total 
450,000 

9,000 
45,000 

45,000 

549,000 

65 



214

Project List· Streets 

Project Project 
Number Category Location Project 

$48 5treels 38th Avenue Ovenay from Brommer St to Capitola Rd 
535 Streets Bay Avenue Corridor Utility Undergrounding 
560 Streets Brommer & 41 st Truck & Bike Access Imrprovements 

561 Streets Lower Pacifill Cove Surface Parking Lot Construction 
51 Streets Pacific Cove Parking Lighting & Sidewalk Improvemenls 
52 Streets Village Phase II· Multi-modal improvemenls 

58 Streets Cliff Dr. 5eawall (Corps) 
59 Streets Hoope~s Beach 5tairway Repairs 

510 Streets 41st1CapRd New Signals 
520 5treets Pacific Cove Parking Multi level parking lot addition 
521 Streets Village Phase III - Multi-modal Improvements 

522 Streets Stockton Ave Bridge Hazard Assessment 
527 Streels Village Phase IV - Mulfi-modal improvements 

528 Streels 41st Widen Highway 1 Overpass to 6 lanes 

546 Streets Park, Reposa, Cliff, EI Saito PMp·2011 
540 Streets Grand Ave Drainage Improvements 

542 Streets Wharf Road Retaining wall extension 

S55 Streets 41st Rehab Phase 2 Gross Road to Clares Street 

S49 Streels Various Slurry Seals - 2012 
S50 Streets TBD PMP-2012 

S51 Streets Various Slurry Seal 2013 

S52 Streets TBD PMP·2013 

553 Streets Hill Street Ped.lmpts frOm Cap Ave to Rosedale 

554 Streets Reposa Avenue Traffic Calming 

556 5treets PMp·2014 TBD 

557 Streels Slurry - 2014 TBD 
568 Streels PMP·2015 TBD 

S59 Streets Slurry - 2015 TBD 

Street Projects 
Unprogrammed Projects 

Year Engineer's 
Scheduled estimate 

2012·13 590,000 
2012-13 300,000 
2012-13 22,500 
2012·13 651,000 

Unprogrammed 95,700 
Unprogrammed 1,226,800 
Unprogrammed 1,150,000 
Unprogrammed 32,400 
Unprogrammed 270,000 
Unprogrammed 13,856,500 
Unprogrammed 1,151,600 
Unprograml11ed 50,000 
Unprogrammed B5B,000 
unprogrammed 5,775,000 
Unprogrammed 700,000 
Unprogrammed 859,000 
Unprogrammed 412,500 
Unprogrammed 427,000' 
Unprogrammed 101,000 
Unprogrammed 700,000 
Unprogrammed 70,000 
Unprogrammed 700,000. 
Unprogrammed 120,000 
Unprogrammed 40,000 
Unprogrammed 700,000 

Unprogrammed 70,000 
Unprogrammed 700,000 
Unprogrammed 70,000 

Totals $ 31,699,000 ##$ 

R5TP Grants and 
Funds Gas Tax other 

438,000 
133,000 

75,000 

$ $ 208,000 

City 
RDA General Total Funds 

Funds Funds Unfunded Available 

152,000 590,000 
167,000 .133,000 

22,500 22,500 
576,000 75,000 

95,700 
1,226,800 
1,150,000 

32,400 
270,000 

13,856,500 
1,151,600 

50,000 
858,000 

5,775,000 
700,000 
859,000 
412,500 
427,000 
101,000 
700,000 

70,000 
700,000 
120,000 
40,000 

700,000 
70,000 

700,000 
70,000 

$ $ 22,500 $ 30,878,500 $ 820,500 



215

Project No . .s.l 

Capital Improvement Program 

Project Category Location 
Lighting -and Sidewalk Streets Pacific Cove Parking Lot 

Improvements 

Description:: 
Construct a sidewalk along the exitroad from Pacific Cove Parking Lot all the way to 
Monterey Avenue. Provide mcreased lighting in main parking area and new ~lighting _ 
along the new sidewalk. 

General Plan Consistency: 

Chapter 9, Circulation, Policies 35 & 
37 cfu.-ects the-development of safe 
pedestrian pathways. 

Maintenance Impact: 

Increase maintenance costs for 
additional lighting will be minimal, less 
than $1000 per year. 

Public Art Funding Eligibility: 

Fiscal Estimate: 

Fiscal Year 
Project Construction 
Planning & Permitting 
Design 
Righi of Way 
Construction Management 
Conllngency 

5% 
20% 

5% 
15% 
20% __ _ 

Unprogrammed 
58,000 

2,900 
11,600 
2,900 
8,700 

11,600 

Total 
58,000 

2,900 
11,600 
- 2,900 

8,700 
11.600 

Project Totals 95,700 95,700 

Funding Sources 

Funding Totals $ $ $ $ - $ $ - $ 

Funding Shortfall: 
$ 95,700 

67 



216

Project No. S2 
Capital Improvement Program 

Project Category Location 
Capitola Village Enhancement Street Village 

Proj eet, Phase 2 

Description: 
Constmct new sidgwallc and streetscape along Esplanade D.-om Stockton Avenue to Lawn 
Way and· along S"an Jose Avenue from Esplanade to Capitola Avenue. Design to be 
consistent with improvements completed along Capitola Avenue in Phase 1, and also 
with the Village Master Plan. Funding is available for design worle to'be initiated in 
2002-03. 

General Plan Consistency: 

Maintenance Impact: 

Increased landscaping maintenance 
costs are estimated at $1200 per 
year. 

Public Art Funding Eligibility: 

Fiscal Estimate: 

FIscal Year 
Project Construcllon 
Planning & Permitting 
Design 
Right of Way 
Construction Management 
Contingency 

200B·09 2009·10 2010·11 2011·12' 2012-13 Unprogrammed 
743,500 

5% 37',200 
20% 148,700 
~ ~~ 

15% 111,500 
20% 148,700 

Total 
743,500 

37,200 
14B,700 
37,200 

111,500 
14B.700 

Project Totals 1,226,800 1,226,800 

Funding Sources 

Local 
Funding Totals $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 

FundIng Shortfall: 
$ 1,226,800 

68 



217

Project No. 88 

Capital Improvement Progra~ 

Pro'ect Location 
Construct Seawall Cliff Drive 

Description: 
In conjlllction with U.S. Anny Corps of Engineers construct a seawall atthe cliffbase 
along Cliff Drive. This project has been identified by the Corps ofEl1gin~ers as a T 

_ potel).tial cliff stabilization proj ect and the Corps is proceeding lIDder S ectionl 03 of the 
Rivers and HarborsAct. These guidelines require the City to pay 50% of the Project 
Detail_Report estimated to cost $900,000 and 35% ofall construction related costs that 
are ~stimate~ 8:t $2 miWon. The budget below comprises the City's portion only. 

General Plan Consistency: 

Mainten~nce Impact: 

If completed tbis proj-ect will stabilize 
Cliff Dlive, which will eliminate road 
faillU"e maintenance in the future-, 

Public Art Funding Eligibility: 

Fiscal Estimate: 

Fiscal Year 2012-13 Unprogrammed Total 
-Project Construction 
Planning & Permitting 
Design 
Right of Way 
Construction Management 
Contingency 
Project Totals 

Funding Sources 

Funding Totals 

-Funding Shortfall: 
$ 1,150,000 

$ 

1,150,000 1,150,000 

1.150,000 1,150,000 

- $ - $ -$ - $ - $ - $ 

69 



218

Project No, 89 

Capital Improveme~t 'Program 

Project Category Location 
Hooper's BeachStairwayRe air Streets Hooper's Beach 

Description: 
Repair concrete stairway stmctural members that are showing signs of corrosion and 
cracking. Repair plans have been developed' by Messiti-Miller Engineers, 

. General Plan Consistency: 

Chapter 9, Circulation, Policies 35 
& 37 directs the development of 
safe pedestrian pathways, 

Maintenance Impact: 

No reduction in existing maintenance 
work is anticipated,' 

Fiscal Estimate: 

Fiscal Year 
Project Construction 
Planning & Permitting 
Design 
Right of Way 
Construction Management 
Contingency 

Project Totals 

Funding Sources 

Funding Totals. 

Funding Shortfall: 
$ 32,400 

10% 
10% __ _ 

$ - $ - $ - ~ - $ 

2012-13 Unprogrammed 
27.000 

- $ 

2,700 
2.700 

32,400 

- $ 

Total 
27.000 

2.700 
2,700 

32,400 

70 



219

Project !:'To. 810 
Capital Improvement Program 

Project Category . Location 
New Traffic Si~als Street Intersc::ction of 41 st Avenue and 

. -
Capitola Ro ad 

D~cr~tioo: - _ . 
Replace exiting traffic signals at intersection of 41Bt Avenue and Capitola Road with new 
signal masts and heads. :New signals should remove center island masts, provide 
centrally located pedesuian buttons at the comers and have LED lights. Project may be 
expanded to in~lude meill-an improvements between 41 st Ave: and 4211d Ave. -

General Plan Con.sistency: 

Maintenance of existing local streets 
is consistent with Circulation Element 
general objectives for all roadways: 

Maintenance Impact: 

Routine maintenance costs will remain 
the same. Replacement costs of center 
island signals will be eliminated. 
Energy cost savings for new lights will 
also be realized. -

Fiscal Estimate: 

Elsc§1 Year 2008-09 
- Project Construction 
Planning & Permitting 5% 
Design 20% 
Right of Way 5% 
Construction Management 15% 
Contingency 10% 

Project Iotals 

Euoglng Sources 
RDA 

Funding Totals $ -
Funding Shortfall: 
$ 270,000 

$ 

Diac ram-S10 

>--
i:C 
l-
CJ) 

~~~ 
~) I 

I 

2009"10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 UOtlrogrammed 
174,000 

8,70P 
34,800 

8,700 
26,100 
17,400 

270,000 

- $ - ~ - $ - $ -

Iotal 
174,000 

8,700 
34,800 

8,700 
26,100 
17,400 

270,000 

$ 

71 



220

Project No. S21 

Capital Improvement Progr'am 

Project Category Location 
Capitola Village StTeets Village 

Enhancement Noj ect, Phase 3 

Description: 
Phase 3 ofthe Capitola Village Enhancements inclucles sidewalk,and streetscape 
improvements along Esplanade from Lawn Way to Monterey Avenue and along 
Monterey Avenue to Capitola Avenue. This project also includes the expansion of 
Esplanade Park to encompass the palm tree islahd. 

General Plan ~onsistency: 

Maintenance Impact: 

Park maintenance costs will increase by 
an estimated $1,500 per year for the 
expanded park. Road maintenance will 
,be reduced slightly due to the reduction 
in maintained roads. 

Public Art Funding Eligibility: 

Fiscal Estimate: 

Fiscal Year 
Project Construction 
Planning & Permitting 
Design 

5% 
29% 
5% 

15% 
, Right of Way 
Construction Management 
Contingency 20% _____ _ 

Project T atals 

Funding Sources 

Funding Totals $ - $ - $ 

Funding Shortfall: 
$ 1,151,600 

• $ 

Dla l'am·S21 

- $ 

2012-13 Unprogrammed 
697.900 
34,900 

139,600 
34,900 

104,700 
139,600 

1,151,600 

- $ - $ 

Total 
697,900 
34,900 

139,600 
34,900 

104,700 
139,600 

1.151,600 

72 



221

·, , 

Project No, S22 
Capital Improvement Program 

Pro'ect Catecror Location 
. Bridge RehabilitationlReplacement streets Stockton Avenue Bridge 

Description: , 
Utilizing the Feqeral Higho/ay Bridge Rehabilitation and Replacement program 
rehabilitate or replace the Stockton Avenue bridge. Initial work will entail a preliminary 
engineering study to detennine existing conditions, risks, recommend actions and repairs. 
The budget at this time is only for completion ofthe feasibility study. 

Gen,eral Plan Consistency: 
Maintenance of existing local 
streets is consistent with Circulation 
'Element general objectives for all 
roadways. 

Maintenance Impact: 

,A flood of the Village area would create 
a significant alnOlmt of emergency work' 
for Public Works, Police, DepartmeD:t, . 
other City staff and private property 
owners. Flood prevention could save 
thousands of dollars in maintenance 
costs. 

Fiscal Estimate: 

Eiscal Year 2008~09 

Project Construction 
Planning & Permitting 
Design 
Right of Way 
Construction Management 
Contingency 

Project Totals 

Funding Sources 
General Fund 
Gas Tax 

Funding Totals $ - $ 

Funding Shortfall: 
$ 50,000 

2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 U!]Qrogrammed 
50,000 

,-

50,000 

- ,$ - $ - $ - $ -

Total 
50,000 

50,000 

$ 

73 



222

Project No. S27 

Capit~l Improvement Program 

,Project Category Location 
Capitola Village Streets Village 

Enhancement Pl'oj ect Phase 4 

Description: 
Phase 4 ofthe Capitola Village Enhancement Project that 'includes sidewalk and 
streetscape improvements along 'Capitola Avenue from approximately Stockton Avenue 
to Beulah Dxive. This project is directed at cOlUlecting people pm'lcing at Pacific Cove 
safely along Capitola Avenue to the Village. The project was originally identified as part 
of the Village Master Plan. ' 

General Plan Consistency: 

Maintenance Impact: 

All increas~ of landscape 
maintenance will be offset by a 
decrease in street maintenance. 

Public Art Funding Eligibility: 

Fiscal Estimate: 

Fiscal year 

'Project Construction 

Pla!1nlng & Permitting 

Design 

Right of Way 

Construction Management 

Contingency 

Project Totals 

Funding Sources 

Funding Totals 

Funding Shortfall: 

$ 858,000 

5% 
20% 

5% 

15% 

20% 

$ - $ 

Dla ram-S27 

Ungrogrammed 

520,000. 
26,000 

104,000 
26,000 

78,000 

--- 104,000 

858.000 

$ - '$ - $ - $ 

1 "-, 

Total 

520,000 
26,000 

104,000 
26,000 

78,000 

104,000 

858,000 

$ 

74 



223

Project No. S28 

'Capital Improvement Program 

Project Category Location 
41 st A venue Highway 1 Street 41st Avenue 

Overpass Widening 

Description: 
Widen the existing 4 lane Highway 1 overpass to 61anes. This project was identified as a 
middle priority project in the qity's previous transportation plans. It's value and . 
necessity should be evaluated. 'Proj ect may be eligible for RD A ftmding. . 

Geperal Plan Consistency: . 

Maintenance of existing local 
streets is consistent with Circulation 
Element general objectives for all' 
roadways. 

Maintenance Impact: 

Additional street resurfacing costs of 
$5,000 every 10 years. Struchrre is 
maintained by Caltrans. 

Public Art Funding Eligibility: 

Fiscal Estimate: 

Fiscal Year 
Project Construction 
Planning & Pennitting 
Design' 
Right of Way . 
Construction Management 
Contingency 

Project Totals 

Funding Sources 

5% 
20% 
5% 

15% 
20% __ _ 

Dia ram-S28 

STATE HWY 1 

2012-13 Unprogrammed 
3,500,000 

175,000 
700,000 
175,000 
525,000 
700.000 

5,775,000 

TOI 
3,500,00 

175,00 
700,00 
175,00 
525,00 
700,00 

5,775,00 

Funding Totals $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 

Funding Shortfall: 
$ 5,775,000 

75 



224

Project No. S40 
Capital Improvement Program 

Project Location 
Drainage Improvements . Grand Avenue, Depot Hill 

Description: 
A joint project with the Depot Hill Geological Hazard Abatem~nt District. The drainage 
volumes and basin plans were developed to divert all existing drainage away from the 
Grand Avenue Cliff. Thr.ee existing ontfalls over the cliff will be abandoned. 

General Plan Consistency: 

Maintenance Impact: 

Maintenance of improvements 
expected to be done as part of routine 
work. Expected increase in cost will 
be negligible. 

Fiscal Estimll:te:" 

, ... 

Fiscal Year 2006--07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 Un12rogrammed 
Project Construction 500,000 
Planning & Permitting 5% 25,000 
Design 20% 10,000 24,000 100,000 
Right of Way 5% 25,000 
Construction Management 15% 75,000 
Contingency 20% 1001°00 

Project Totals 10,000 24,000 825,000 

Funding Sources 
General Fund 5,000 20,000 
GHAD 5,000 12,000 

Funding Totals 10,000 $ 32,000 $ .- $. - $ - $ - $ 

Funding Shortfall: 
$ 817,000 

76 



225

Project No. S42 

Capital Improvement Program 

Project Location 
Retaining Wall Extension Wharf Road 

Description: 
Extend existing retaining wall below railroad trestle further up Wharf Road to mitigate 
continual hillside failmes. Project maybe somewhat mitigated by walls beiilg constructed 
011 propelty above Wharf Road at the old Lent House. 

General Plan Consistency: 

Maintenance Impact: 
Reduction of maintenance 
effOlts reqtiired on bare 
hillside. Projected savings of 
$2000 per year. 

Fiscal Estimate: 

Fiscal Year 
Project Construction 
Planning & Permitting 5% 
Design 20% 
Right of Way 5% 
Construction Management 15% 
Contingenoy 20% 

Project Totals 

Funding Sources 
General Fund 

Funding Totals $ 

Funding Sholifall: 
$ 412,500 

2008-09 

-

2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 Ungrogrammed 
250,000 

12,500 
50,000 
12,500 
37,500 
50;000 

412,500 

$ - $ - $ - $ - $ -

'\ .., 

Total 
250,000 

12,500 
50,000 
12,500 
37,500 
50,000 

412,500 

$ 

77 



226

Project No: S53 

Capital Improvement Program 

o Project Cate~ory Location 
Hill Street pedestrian Streets South side of Hill Street between 

improvements Capitola A venue and Rosedale 
Avenue 

Description: 
Hill Street between Capitola Ave and Rosedale Ave is narrow with parking on both sides 
ofthe street and no sidewalk or bike lanes. Pedestrians and cyclists are forced to 
compete with cars while in this area. This project would remove all parking along the 
southern side of Hill Street and constmct either a Class IT bike lane or a standard 

o sidewalk. 

General Plan Consistency: 
Chapter 9, Circulation, Policies 
35& 37 directs the development of 
safe pedestrian pathways 

Maintenance Impact: 
None 

Fiscal Estimate: 

Fiscal Year 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 UnQrogrammed 
Project Construction 87,200 
Planning & Permitting 05% 4,400 
Design 15% 13,100 
Right of Way 5% 4,400 
Construction Management 5% 4,400 
Contingency 10% 8,700 

Project Totals 122,200 

Funding Sources 
STIP 
Prop1A 

Funding Totals $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
Funding Shortfall: 
$ 120,000 

Tot 
87,20' 

4,40' 
13,10' 

4,40' 
4,40-
8,70! 

120,00' 

$ 

78 



227

Project No: S54 

Capital Improvement Program 

Project Category Location 
Reposa A venue Traffic Streets Reposa A venue between 41 sr 

Calming Avenue and 38th Avenue 

Description: 
Perform traffic studies to determine level of traffic calming on residential street. This 
street is impacted by commercial properties along 41 st Avenue and is used as a cut 
through to avoid traffic congestion. Items that may be considered would be landscaped 
chicanes, center islands,.and bulb outs. 

General Plan Consistency: 
Chapter 9, Circulation: Policies 
13 and 14, develop traffic control 
measures to maintain livability of 
streets while preserving the safety 
of travel on them. 

Maintenance Impact: 
Increase in maintenance efforts 
for landscaped areas. 

Fiscal Estimate: 

Fiscal Year 2009-10 
Project Construction 
Planning & Permitting 2% 
Design 15% 
Right of Way 0% 
Construction Management 0% 
Contingency 10% 

Project Totals 

Funding Sources 
STIP 
Prop 1A 

Funding Totals $ -

Funding Shortfall: 
$ 40,000 

2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 Unl2rogrammed 
30,000 

600 
4,500 

3,000 ---
38,100 

---
$ - $ - $ - $ - $ -

Total 
30,000 

600 
4,500 

3,000 

40,000 

$ 

79 



228

CCI 
Q 

Project List - Wharf 

Project 
Number 

W2 
W3 

Project 
Category Location 

Wharf 
Wharf 

Wharf Projects 
Fl,mding Sources 

Project 

Utility Improvements (Water, Sewer, Electrical) 
Restaurant & Restroom Remodeling 

Year 
Scheduled 

Unprogrammed 
Unprogrammed 

Total $ 

Total 
Engineer's Wharf City Available 

Estimate Funds Funds Unfunded Funding 

88,100 88,100 
300,000 300,000 
388,100 $ - $ - $ 388,100 $ 



229

Project No. W2 
Capital Improvement Program 

Project Category Location 
Municipal Wharf Wharf Wharf 

Utility Improvements 

Description: Improve water, sewer, and electrical services on the Wharf. Water 
improvements indude the constmction of a dry fire service line with hydrants for use by 
Central Fire. T:he-s-ewer improvements include looking at ways to protect the sewage pump 
station from damage during storms. The Electrical work involves replacement of service 
panels. 

General Plan Consistency: 
The Wharf is a maj or facility in 
meeting Goal 5 of Chapter 5, Open Space, 
Parks and Recreation, which specifies the 
conservation and enhancement of water 
front areas for public use and views. 
This project improves fire protection and 
better electrical and swage utilities to the 
Wharf. 

Maintenance Impact: 

This work will reduce existing emergency 
call outs to deal with failures. Estimated 
savings could be up-to $5,000 per year. 

Fiscal Estimate: 

Fiscal Year .2illill:ill! 2009-10 
Project Construction 
Planning & Permitting 
Design 
Right of Way 
Construction Management 
Contingency 

Project Tolals 

Funding Sources 
Wharf fund 

Funding Totals 

Funding Shortfall: 
$ 88,100 

5% 
20% 

15% 
20% 

$ - $ - $ 

2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 Ungrogrammed 
55,000 

2,800 
11,000 

8,300 
11,000 

88,100 

- $ - $ - $ - $ 

t 
L 

Total 
55,000 

2,800 
11,000 

8,300 
11,000 

88,100 

81 



230

Project No: W3 

Capital Improvement Program 

Project Category Location 
Restaurant & Restroom Wharf VVharf 

Reconstruction 

Description: Constluct a new restroom building between the existing restaurant and boat 
and bait shop to allow for the restaurant to expand into the area of the existing restrooms, 
provjdil1g them with westward looking views. 

Maintenance Impact: 
None 

Fiscal Estimate: 

Fiscal Year 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 UnQrogrammed 
Project Construction 235,000 
Planning & Permitting 0% 
Design 15% 35,300 
Right of Way 0% 
Construction Management 0% 
Contingency 12% 28.200 

Project Totals 298,500 

Funding Sources 
STIP 
Prop 1A 

Funding Totals $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -

Funding Shortfall: 

$ 300,000 

Total 
235,000 

35.300 

28.200 

300.000 

$ 

82 



231

City of Capitola Budget Adjustment Form 
ATTACHMENT 3 

Date 

Requesting Department 

Administrative 
Council 

Revenues 
Account # 

Total 

Expenditures ' 
Account # 
1200-00-00-000-4390.400 
1200-00-00-000-4390.400 

Total 

INet Impact 

August 9, 2012 

Public Works 

Item # 9.C. 
Council Date: 8/9/12 
Council Approval: 8/9/12 

: 

Account Description 

Account Description 
Construction-CIP Fund 
Construction-CIP Fund 

}i 

I·":" Increase / Decrease 

-

c' 

I ····· Increase/Decrease 

75,000 
133,000 

208,000 

(208,000)1 

Purpose: Adjust the FY12 budget to appropriate from CIP Fund Balance: 
$75,000 to the Lower Pacific Cove Parking Project 
$133,000 to Utility Underground Project /' 

Department Head Approval 

Finance Department Approval _____________________ _ 

City Manager Approval 

8/2/20123:30 PM 9.C. Attachment 3 Budget Adjustment Form.xlsxGeneral Fund 



232

Item #: 9.0. 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF AUGUST 9,2012 

FROM: COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

SUBJECT: AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
ADDING SECTION 12.56.090(C) (RIGHT-OF-WAY OBSTRUCTIONS) OF THE 
MUNICIPAL CODE PERTAINING TO THE REMOVAL OF ITEMS FROM 
PUBLIC PROPERTY 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Introduce an Ordinance adding Section 12.56.090(C) (Right-of
way obstructions) of the Capitola Municipal Code pertaining to the removal of items from public 
property [1 st reading]. 

BACKGROUND: The City Council recently amended the City's zoning regulation to allow for 
sidewalk signs in the Village. The City of Capitola does not have clear language in the City's 
Municipal Code to allow for the removal of either illegal signs or other items from public 
property. Adding Section 12.56.090(C) will provide this clear authority. 

DISCUSSION: As part of adopting an Ordinance to allow sidewalk signs in the Central Village 
area it became clear that an amendment to the City's Municipal Code is needed regarding items 
on public property. The City Attorney also suggested that as part of this process the City should 
add clear language and authority for illegal items to be removed from both public properties. 
This will be done by adding Section 12.56.090(C) as follows: 

If any vehicle, object, structure, construction material or construction equipment 
is placed or left upon any public street, sidewalk, roadway, pedestrian way or 
bicycle path in the city of Capitola, contrary to the terms of this chapter and 
without the written permission of the director of public works, any such vehicle, 
object, structure, construction material or construction equipment is declared to 
be a public nuisance, and the director of public works is hereby authorized and 
empowered to remove any such vehicle, object, structure, construction material 
or construction equipment from the public street, sidewalk, roadway, pedestrian 
way or bicycle path forthwith. If the person owning or otherwise responsible for 
any such vehicle, object, structure, construction material or construction 
equipment is present, then before removing the vehicle, object, structure, 
construction material or construction equipment, the director of public works or 
the person designated by the superintendent shall warn that person that he or 
she is in violation of this chapter and shall give that person the opportunity to 
remove forthwith the vehicle, object, structure, construction material or 
construction equipment. 

FISCAL IMPACT: N/A 

ATTACHMENT: 
1. Ordinance adding Sections 12.56.090(C) 
2. Underlined Ordinance 

Report Prepared By: Susan Westman Reviewed and~rded 
General Plan Coordinator by City Manag r: . 

R:\Agenda Staff Reports\2012 Agenda Reports\City Council\08-09-12\9.D. Remove items from sidewalk staff report. oc 



233

ATTACHMENT 1 

ORDINANCE NO. __ 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
AMENDING SECTION 12.56.090 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE 

PERTAINING TO THE REMOVAL OF ITEMS FROM PUBLIC PROPERTY 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA HEREBY ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Added Section 12.56.090(C) to the Capitola Municipal Code to read as follows: 

12.56.090 c. PUBLIC NUISANCE DECLARED . 
. -::; .. ~-::,-~. 

If any vehicle, object, structure, con~tfU~tion rrl~t~''rlal~£r'construction equipment 
is placed or left upon any public street. sidewalkr~trGl'~fdway, pedestrian way or 
bicycle path in the city of Capitola,c6tllraryJojh~nermskof this chapter and 
without the written permission of the'(:lT[~~t~p~of public'W<5JRs, any such vehicle, 
object, structure, construction materiaLoriconstruction equipment isideclared to 
be a public nuisance, and the director;)ofPf)I!rfjII9)~orks is hefelj:VF~.l..fthrQfized and 
empowered to remove any such vehicle, oble6t/structure, construCtion material 
or construction equipment from''tliepublic streetXsioewalk, roadway, pedestrian 
way or bicycle path forthwitb','Ifthe'person ownini:FOr:i'Otherwise responsible for 
any such vehicle, object, sth.idure, cOhstruction materlafi;or construction 
equipment is present. then'~before rerri6v1flQ'tb,e vehicle',<6bject. structure, 
construction materiali'~!j,constructio.rljeduipme~t,Jhe director of public works or 
the person designafeH;6y the supe'riritendentesnall'warn that person that he or 
she is in violation\;oUfhis chapter anCl'shall givelthat person the opportunity to 
remove forthwitfie'Yfn€Hvehicle, objed;.structure}'construction material or 
'Consii'UctioRe uimenb'e, j '0.' 

.Thi~;1;Ordinance wa 'l;,,'rQQuced,e::!lbe 9th day of August, 2012, and was passed and 
adopteH,,~yjJbe City Council of16~i9ity ofG§lPit()la on the _ day of __ 2012, by the following 
vote:e ".'>':;"." ','e"L e.e·,. .. "0 

AYES:! ••.•.. t;5·.!':!t:, 
'.::' 

NOES:' 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN 

APPROVED: 

Michael Termini, Mayor 
_________________ ,CMC 

Susan Sneddon, City Clerk 



234

ATTACHMENT 2 

Underlined Ordinance 

Chapter 12.56 PRIVATELY INSTALLED IMPROVEMENTS ON PUBLIC PROPERTY OR 
EASEMENTS 

Note 

* Prior ordinance history: Ord. 655. 
12.56.010 Purpose. 

By resolution(s), the city council has determined which streets, or portions thereof, are 
included within the city's "street system." In many parts of the city, the full width of property 
dedicated to, or acquired by, the city for street and related purposes has not been accepted into 
the street system. The city council determines that the public welfare would be more harmed 
than benefited from a complete prohibition of landscaping or other private improvements located 
within public rights-of-way but not within the street system. The purpose of this chapter is to 
regulate such areas in a manner that considers views, preserves necessary parking, does not 
unduly inhibit future widening of the street system, but at the same time allows privately
installed improvements that are not harmful to the integrity and character of the district in which 
the property is located. (Ord. 796 (part), 1997) 

12.56.020 "Street system area" defined. 

"Street system area" as used in this chapter means those street rights-of-way or portions 
thereof which, pursuant to Streets and Highways Code Section 1806 and Capitola resolutions, 
have been accepted into the city's street system. Subject to some minor exceptions, the street 
system area consists of those areas of street rights-of-way which are actually covered by city 
installed paving, curb, gutter, or sidewalk. (Ord. 796 (part), 1997) 

12.56.030 Shoulder parking area. 

The public works director may determine the extent of the area, which is adjacent to the 
street system area and within the right-of-way, and which, in his or her opinion: is appropriate 
for either public off-street parking; or has a Significant possibility of, in the next five-year period, 
being utilized by the city for street widening or installation of curb, gutter, or sidewalk; or is 
located over a utility easement. For purposes of this chapter, such areas shall be known as 
"shoulder parking areas." Before any private improvement permits (see Section 12.56.060 of 
this chapter) are issued pursuant to this chapter, the public works director must determine the 
shoulder parking area for the block of the street in which the property is located. Whenever any 
such determination is made, the public works director shall file a record of that determination 
with the city clerk, who shall cause notice of that determination to be given to each city council 
member. At the request of any council member, the public works director determinations as to 
the extent of any shoulder parking area may be reviewed by the city council, which may modify 
any such determinations at any time. (Ord. 796 (part), 1997) 



235

12.56.040 Shoulder parking area improvement permits. 

In the shoulder parking areas, permits may be issued for privately installed 
improvements such as paving, grading or gravel which do not inhibit the use of those areas for 
parking or street widening. Such permits may be issued by the planning commission in 
conjunction with other land development permits; when there is no concurrent developmental 
applications, they may be issued by the public works director. (Ord. 796 (part), 1997) 

12.56.050 Private improvements area defined. 

"Private improvements area," as used in this chapter, means that portion of any public 
street right-of-way in the city which is neither street system area nor shoulder parking area. 
(Ord. 796 (part), 1997) 

12.56.060 Private improvement permits. 

Permits may be issued to allow certain improvements to be installed and maintained by 
abutting private property owners, within the private improvements area, as provided in this 
section. 

A. . Minor Permits. Permits may be issued by the public works director for the 
following: items allowed in Section 12.56.040 of this chapter; mailboxes determined by the 
public works director to be of a reasonable size and reasonably located; property boundary 
fences not in excess of three and one-half feet in height (for a definition of fences, see Municipal 
Code Section 17.54.010); at-grade walkways and driveways meeting any applicable standard 
specifications; landscaping approved as part of a landscaping plan which had planning 
commission or city council review; or landscaping that does not include plants which, at 
maturity, will exceed three and one-half feet in height nor develop a root system likely to 
damage streets, sidewalks or adjoining property, nor expensive to remove at maturity. 

B. Major Permits Issued by Planning Commission. The planning commission may 
issue permits for private improvements not issuable under subsection A of this section. The 
commission's decision as to whether to issue such permit shall be made by weighing the 
following considerations: the expense and difficulty that will be entailed in removing the 
improvement in the event of street widening; whether the proposed improvements are in 
conformity with the size·, scale, and aesthetics of the surrounding neighborhood; preservation of 
views; and whether granting the permit would tend to result in the granting of a special privilege, 
in the sense that granting this permit would tend to preclude granting similar permits to 
neighboring property. If the benefit to the applicant and community is determined to exceed the 
detriment to the community, the permit shall be approved. The planning commission may, by 
providing reasonable notice to neighboring property owners, develop standards or criteria 
applicable to the entire block within which the property is located. (Ord. 796 (part), 1997) 



236

12.56.070 All permits revocable/hold harmless agreements. 

Permits issued under this chapter shall include a statement that by accepting such a 
permit, the permittee and his or her successor agrees to hold the city, its officers, agents and 
employees, free and harmless from any liability for injuries to persons or property resulting from 
the construction or maintenance of such private improvement, and also agrees that the removal 
of the structure, when so ordered by the city, shall be at the permittee's expense. Such permit 
shall also provide that upon failure of the permittee to remove such improvement within a 
reasonable time after notice from the city manager or designee, the same may be abated and 
removed by the city and the cost thereof made a lien upon the property (see Section 1.01.090 
and Title 4 of this code). As a condition of granting any such permit, the city may require 
execution and recordation of an agreement between the city and the permittee property owner 
regarding the requirements of this section. However, failure to obtain or record such an 
agreement shall not free any applicant, owner, or successor from the requirements of this 
section. (Ord. 955 § 13, 2011; Ord. 796 (part), 1997) 

12.56.080 State law and uniform codes not affected by this chapter. 

This chapter shall not expand or limit the effect of: state law or city ordinances relating to 
when utilities may install or repair their lines within city easements, Uniform Fire Code access 
requirements, Uniform Building Code provisions (see Chapters 32 and 33 thereof) regarding air 
space encroachments above public ways, or Municipal Code Chapter 9.40 which contains 
prohibitions on signs in rights-of-way. (Ord. 796 (part), 1997) 

12.56.090 Right-of-way obstructions-Installing private improvements-Prohibition. 

A. Except as allowed in this chapter, installing private improvements or otherwise 
placing obstructions in any public right-of-way is prohibited. For purposes of this chapter, 
"installing" includes permanent or temporary placing, erecting, constructing, or planting. "Private 
improvements" means any building, structure, accessory structure; fixture, sign, fence, paving, 
or landscaping (including trees), or any other object which obstructs all or a portion of any public 
right-of-way. 

B. Exceptions. This section shall not apply to the following cases: 

1. Parking of emergency vehicles; 

2. Parking of any vehicle in any place where such parking is permitted by law; 

3. The city's placement of structures or barriers for the protection of pedestrians or 
traffic; 

4. The city's placement of benches; 

5. Placement of structures or barriers by the city or any other governmental agency, 
when such structures or barriers are intended to serve the public convenience, safety, or 
necessity; 

6. The city's placement of street trees; 



237

7. Placement of newsracks in conformity with provisions of this code regulating 
news racks on city sidewalks; 

8. Placement of trash or other debris in appropriate containers for pickup by the 
city's refuse collection franchisee when placed in accordance with the applicable collection 
schedules. (Ord. 854 § 1, 2003; Ord. 796 (part), 1997) 

C. Public Nuisance 

If any vehicle, object, structure, construction material or construction equipment 
is placed or left upon any public street, sidewalk, roadway, pedestrian way or 
bicycle path in the city of Capitola, contrary to the terms of this chapter and 
without the written permission of the director of public works, any such vehicle, 
object, structure, construction material or construction equipment is declared to 
be a public nuisance, and the director of public works is hereby authorized and 
empowered to remove any such vehicle, object, structure, construction material 
or construction equipment from the public street, sidewalk, roadway, pedestrian 
way or bicycle path forthwith. If the person owning or otherwise responsible for 
any such vehicle, object, structure, construction material or construction 
equipment is present. then before removing the vehicle, object. structure, 
construction material or construction equipment. the director of public works or 
the person designated by the superintendent shall warn that person that he or 
she is in violation of this chapter and shall give that person the opportunity to 
remove forthwith the vehicle, object. structure, construction material or 
construction equipment. 

12.56.100 Miscellaneous. 

A. Whenever an application is made pursuant to this chapter, the city may require of 
the applicant such title or survey information as is reasonably necessary to respond to the 
application. 

B. The city council may, by resolution, establish application and/or permit fees for 
applications/permits considered or permits issued under this chapter. (Ord. 796 (part), 1997) 


	Agenda
	8.A. City Council Minutes Report 
	8.A. Attachment 1 City Council-Successor Agency Joint Minutes 5-31-12
	8.B. Slurry Seal Program 2012 Award of Contract Report
	8.B. Attachment 1 Bid Summary
	8.C. Police Officers Association (POA) Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) Report
	8.C. Attachment 1 MOU Between POA & City
	8.C. Attachment 2 Side Letter Between City & POA
	8.D. Patricia Wakefield Early Retirement Contract Report
	8.D. Attachment 1 Contract
	8.D. Attachment 2 Budget Adjustment Form
	8.E. Commission on the Environment Recruitment Report
	8.E. Attachment 1 Email from Susan Westman 
	8.F. Planning Commission Action Minutes 8-2-12
	8.G. Amendments to the Local Coastal Program Report 
	8.G. Attachment 1 Draft Resolution
	8.G. Attachment 2 Draft Resolution
	9.A. Transient Occupancy Tax Measure Report
	9.A. Attachment 1 Resolution No. 3912
	9.A. Attachment 2 Draft Resolution
	9.A. Attachment 3 Draft Resolution
	9.A. Attachment 4 Revised General Municipal Election Timeline
	9.A. Attachment 5 City Attorney Impartial Analysis
	9.A. Attachment 6 Santa Cruz County Conference & Visitors Council Letter 8-2-12
	9.B. Lower Pacific Cove Parking Lot Project Report 
	9.B. Attachment 1 Project Description
	9.B. Attachment 2 Detailed Project Estimate
	9.B. Attachment 3 Draft Request for Proposals
	9.B. Attachment 4 Draft Resolution
	9.B. Attachment 5 March 24, 2011 Staff Agenda Report & Study by Watry Design Inc., Report
	9.C. Capital Improvement Program (CIP) 5 Year Report
	9.C. Attachment 1 Draft Resolution
	9.C. Attachment 2 CIP 2012-2017
	9.C. Attachment 3 Budget Adjustment Form
	9.D. Removal of Items from Public Property Ordinance Report
	9.D. Attachment 1 Draft Ordinance
	9.D. Attachment 2 Underlined Ordinance



